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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 57, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 30 years of
experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 37, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 47, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and
has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong and China,
holding senior managerial positions. Mr. Cen has extensive
experience in dealership management, business formation and
marketing. He is responsible for market development of the
Group and overseas operations. He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 57, has been executive
director and is responsible for the overall operations since
August 2003 and in charge of various business projects in the
Group. Prior to joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’
experience in banking and management. He has been involved
in the financing and supervision of business projects in China
since the late 1980’s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 53, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over 20
years experience in the investment and real estate field, working
with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and China. Mr.
Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in charge of the
Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Wang Jian, aged 36, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s
Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wang
was engaged by a major bank in China and worked in its banking
business department. In November 2014, Mr. Wang obtained
a Doctor’'s Degree in Business Administration from School of
Business of Macau University of Science and Technology.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 64, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited, Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited
and Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 57, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient of
the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding Project
Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan has taken
up key management positions in engineering and technology
businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping equipment
and control systems, mini-piling, and software and hardware
engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GI

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 60, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in China, and has been
well connected in the finance and corporate sectors both in
China and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise includes public listings,
project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring and merge
and acquisition. He has taken part in a considerable number
of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises and other major fund
raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 July, 2006 and an
independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 to the
shareholders.

Despite an undesirable operating environment in 2015,
the Group’s energy business, being fueled by the strong
performance of end-user sales, has achieved remarkable results
with significant growth in both the gross profits and gross profit
margin. Regrettably, this was shaded by the net exchange
loss of approximately HK$292 million of the Group attributable
to the depreciation of RMB, reducing the overall profits to
approximately HK$759 million only, representing a decrease by
15.75% from the same period of 2014 and the first time for the
Group to record a decline in profits for years. As a matter of fact,
the Group has ceased to create any new structured matching
of RMB and USD during 2015, and by the end of the year, the
balance of such arrangements brought forward from previous
years have been reduced to the lowest level. It is believed that
future RMB fluctuations will no longer cause unexpected impact
to the operating performances of the Group in the future.

The Group has always been upholding the strategy of stimulating
development through end user sales and it has been proven that
end user sales often formed the strongest pillar when we were
hit by a sluggish market, allowing for continued growth amidst
unfavorable environment. During 2015, unfavorable factors
including the continued slump in oil prices, depreciation of RMB
and slowdown of economic growth in China has dampened the
market sentiments. Nevertheless, the Group successfully scored
brilliant results for its energy business, backed by an extensive
end user sales network. The merits of end user sales were fully
reflected not only in the sales volume amounting approximately
3.9 million tons but also a gross profit margin of close to
approximately 11.86% (2014: 7.01%).
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

In the future, we will continue to enhance the efficiency of the
logistics business in order to lift the operating efficiency through
the steadfast implementation of the end user oriented policy of
development. The Group will invest abundant internal capital
for the establishment of an even more extensive end user sales
network. This will be paralleled by efforts to extend our reach
to overseas, landing our energy business in the international
markets and securing its sustained development. Existing
projects under way include the construction of new bottling
plants for bottled LPG and LPG terminal receiving stations in
new markets, the construction of LPG terminal receiving stations
and retailing networks and marine and land network of refueling
stations in emerging markets overseas, as well as the continuous
development of C-LNG autogas refueling stations and expansion
of the network of C-LNG refueling stations. Most of these
project have already obtained the government approval, with the
remaining few still in the process of application. It is expected
that within two years the sales network we are determine to build
will gradually take shape to realize tangible gains to the Group.

The Board recommends a final dividend for 2015 of HK2.5 cents
per share.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 2 7w Mo

1.

Market overview

1.1

1.2

A brief on the overall China economy

Excessive capacity is the biggest problem that China
economy is now facing. The rapid growth in over
a decade, government injecting vast fund into the
economy and excessive construction of production
facilities have brought about oversupply in all areas
and industries in China. Now, the expansion of
investment which has driven China’s GDP growth
for many years, shows obvious deceleration.
Consumer market is weak and nothing can activate
the internal demand. The sluggish external economy
makes China’s export lifeless even after repeated
RMB depreciations. All these three most important
economic indicators of China are losing strength at
the same time and there is no sign of having any
effective measure to rectify these problems. Under this
situation, we can hardly expect the China economy
to achieve any substantiated growth, and deflation
seems inevitable. Perhaps, the only way that we can
take is to follow the One Belt One Road Initiative that
the Central Government is strongly promoting. Internal
problems could possibly be settled by exporting
excessive capacity to other countries thus creating
new markets and new demands.

The energy market in China

In 2015, amongst all industries in China, energy
should be considered as the sector having relatively
stable circumstances. However, as to importers
and wholesalers, the trading of energy products in
this year is an extremely difficult matter. Business
environment in the latter half of the year changed
adversely thus vigorously rocking the market
sentiment and creating chaos.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

The Brent oil price stood at around US$56/bbl at
the beginning of the year and moved up slightly to
approximately US$60/bbl by the end of June. Over
the period, despite occasional dips to US$49/bbl and
lifts to US$67/bbl, market had a general feeling that oil
price had stopped falling. Such positive view created
an optimistic sentiment in the market enabling stable
trading of energy products during the first half of the
year. The situation abruptly reversed when it came
to the second half of the year during which oil price
continuously slid from US$60/bbl at the beginning
of July to barely US$37/bbl by the end of the year
(further down to the rock bottom level of US$29/
bbl on 15 January 2016). Importers, traders and
wholesalers all hesitated to engage in the activities of
importing energy products. They feared that the price
would drop tremendously even when the cargo was
being shipped to China, and no measure is available
to effectively hedge or remedy the damages thus
incurred.

Apart from the continual decline of oil price, RMB
depreciation was an additional risk affecting adversely
China’s import business in 2015. The exchange rate
of RMB against US dollars stayed stably at around
6.2 throughout the first half of 2015. But over the few
days from 10 August to 13 August, the rate dropped
from 6.2 to 6.4, and since then, RMB weakened all
the way without any sign of revival. By the end of the
year, the rate further went down to 6.49 (and further
down to 6.59 on 8 January 2016). In substance, such
scale of depreciation has raised the costs of imports
(in RMB) by approximately 5%. As for the trading
of commodities and energy products of which the
profit margin is used to be thin, a 5% increase in cost
would have easily eroded the margin or even caused
a loss to the importer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25 wm AT

Currently, it is a general view of the market that the
international crude oil price will continue to stay at low
level for a rather long period. Even if there comes a
rebound, within the coming few years, crude oil price
is not expected to cross over US$90/bbl., the lowest
supporting price of crude oil that the market firmly
recognized prior to the commencement of the great
price fall. As international crude oil price is going to
remain low and the energy market of Southern China
is highly reliant on international supply, we reckon the
following scenarios to emerge in Southern China:

A. End-user sales benefits the most — under the
situation when oil price continually declines, in
making purchases, the retail operators actually
have very strong bargaining power. Always,
they can squeeze the supplier to minimize
their procurement costs. In respect of sales,
they can also make appropriate adjustment to
the selling price to cover the additional cost
brought by RMB depreciation, thus maintaining
their profitability. We strongly believe that the
operators of the end-users market will benefit
the most when the international crude oil price
continues to remain at low level, unless the
government intervenes.

B. Natural Gas (“NG”) development to
slowdown - when the crude oil price hit the
high level of US$102.8/bbl. In April 2012, the
international price of NG was approximately
US$14.6/bbl. (i.e. US$1.98/MMBTU), whereas
in mid-December 2015, when the crude oil price
plummeted by 66% to around US$34.7/bbl.,
the NG price merely dropped by 11% to around
US$13.0/bbl (i.e. US$1.77/MMBTU). Obviously,
the price gap between NG and oil has
significantly narrowed. Nowadays, government’s
claim that the use of NG would substantially
reduce energy cost is no longer convincing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 2 7w Mo

The public is getting extremely skeptical with
the issue of shifting from the usage of oil to
NG particularly when high replacement cost
will additionally incur for doing so. In 2015,
China’s total consumption of NG only grew by
approximately 4.8%. While the growths in past
years were all in double digit, the moderate
growth in 2015 sufficiently indicated that China’s
NG demand has started to slowdown. Such
trend shall inevitably continue as the price
difference between NG and oil is unlikely to
enlarge when there is slim chance for oil price to
rebound significantly.

C. The outlook of new energy is gloomy -
the development costs of other new energy
products continued to be high, making them
difficult to compete in terms of price with
traditional energy products that are currently at
rather low price level. Consumers’ motivation to
convert to new energy products was dampened.
Coupled with the fact that resources allocated
to this sector have been largely reduced, the
long term development of new energy products
is gravely hampered.

2. Overall performance of the Group

2.1

Outline

Despite a less than desirable operating environment in
2015, the energy business of the Group successfully
recorded shiny performances. Backed by a massive
retail network, the plunge in oil price has not affected
the profitability of the Group. However, as the Group
has this long practice of keeping a large amount
of pledged deposits in RMB and corresponding
loans in USD, the depreciation of RMB has caused
a substantial impact to the Group, leading to a net
exchange loss of approximately HK$292 million for the
year. As a result, profits for the year only amounted
to approximately HK$759 million, representing a
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decrease of approximately 15.75% compared to
the profits of last year. It was the first year for the
Group to record a decline in profits for more than
a decade. As at the end of the year, the carrying
amount of monetary assets denominated in RMB
and the corresponding loans in USD has decreased
substantially by over 65%, whereas the remaining
was locked up by forward exchange rates. Since the
Group has completely stopped this kind of matching
arrangements between deposits in RMB and loans in
USD, it is believed that future currency fluctuations will
no longer cause unexpected impact to the operating
performances of the Group in the future.

During the year, the Group and Sinopec Guangdong
branch have terminated their cooperation under the
joint venture, Sinopec NewOcean Energy Company
Limited in relation to subcontracting the operation
of 17 liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) refueling
stations in Guangzhou owned by the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, Lianxin Energy Development
Company Limited (“Lianxin Energy”), and have agreed
to dissolve the joint venture in due course. In effect,
the termination of this cooperation has no significant
consequences on the LPG business of the Group.
During 2015, the Group has consistently upheld
a steady operating strategy. Sale volume of LPG
recorded a slight increase, of which the retail volume
was at similar level as compared to last year, while
the wholesale volume (in particular the supply to other
bottling plants and terminals) showed an increase.
Benefiting from the drop in oil price, lower costs and
huge retail volume, the LPG business continued to
reap outstanding performance in 2015.

The oil products business maintained strong
development momentum in 2015. Leveraging on
the 70,000-ton new oil storage depot in Zhuhai’'s
Gaolan Port as a support, the Group has significantly
increased the wholesale amount in China, while
on the other hand raised the domestic trading
volume of oil products and reinforced the marine
bunkering business in the China waters, resulting
in a remarkable increase by over 234.35% in the oil
products business in China. As to the oil products
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business in Hong Kong, we have made corresponding
adjustments to the sales strategy in response to
the market environment and have, on the one hand,
significantly increased the oil supply to other marine
bunkering operators, while on the other hand reduced
the business of direct oil delivery to ships. We have
also increased the international trading of oil and
chemical products with the aim to achieve continued
stable development of the Hong Kong oil products
business under effective mitigation of price fluctuation
risks.

As to the NG business, we continued to see efforts
of end user sales network building without generating
any actual trading or actual revenues in 2015. In
respect to the development of compressed/ liquefied
petroleum gas (“C-LNG) autogas refueling stations,
the Group has, in addition to the proactive exploration
of direct cooperation with end users, sought
suitable sites for station constructions in the main
transportation hubs in Guangdong Province with high
traffic, in order to implement more C-LNG autogas
refueling station projects at favorable terms under the
present relatively sluggish environment for the NG
industry.

Guangdong Shenhai New Energy Company Limited
(“Shenhai New Energy”) established by Group
and Shanghai Conch International Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. under joint venture has
officially commenced operation in 2015. In view of the
general market consensus on the inevitable slowdown
in the development of the NG market, the operating
strategy of Shenhai New Energy has been amended
correspondingly. At present, Shenhai New Energy has
focused on the oil refueling business. Both parties
to the joint venture cooperated in the construction
of refueling stations in the cement production site of
Conch in Guangdong Province as planned to provide
oil refueling services to vehicles entering and exiting
the site. Land for development was also retained for
the construction of additional LNG refueling station
when the time is ripe. Such adjustment will allow
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2.2

Shenhai New Energy to generate economic returns
immediately while maintaining long-term cooperation
with potential customers, securing a solid foundation
for the migration to the long-term development of the
LNG business.

Considering the possibility that the energy market in
China is also facing excessive capacity, the Group
has already begun to investigate and study the
opportunities of extending to the overseas. In 2015,
the Group has conducted massive research on the
LPG market in Myanmar in Asia and Kenya in Africa.
It is believed that the Group will decide whether to
invest in these emerging markets with construction of
receiving terminals and different types of downstream
sales network, which in turn will promote the
internationalization and continuous development of
the Group’s energy business.

Overall Performance

The NG business remained in the stage of sales
network construction in 2015 without commencing
actual business or making actual contributions to
the Group’s overall revenue. Other businesses of the
Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
HK$15,514,990,000 during the year, down by
20.98% from the total turnover of approximately
HK$19,633,037,000 in the same period of 2014. The
significant decrease in the total turnover was mainly
attributable to the general decrease in energy product
price. In fact, the sales volume of LPG recorded a mild
increase during the period, whereas the sales volume
of oil products recorded a remarkable increase, and
that of the electronic business has rebounded to the
previous levels.

During the period, profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$756,643,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 15.95% as compared to approximately
HK$900,270,000 for the same period of 2014.
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2.3

The decrease in profit attributable to owners of
the Company was mainly due to the immense net
exchange loss (as explained below) and was unrelated
to the operating efficiency of the energy business.

The Group’s principal businesses of LPG, oil products
electronics business and property investment
and development in China recorded an aggregate
gross profit of approximately HK$1,839,904,000 in
2015, representing a significant increase of 33.59%
as compared to the aggregate gross profits of
approximately HK$1,377,227,000 for the same period
of 2014. The overall profit margin of the Group also
increased from 7.01% of 2014 to 11.86%, reflecting
the healthy development of the Group’s businesses.

In 2015, the Group has not conducted any activity
on the capital market. As to 31 December 2015, the
Company’s weighted average number of ordinary
shares was 1,480,398,216 shares (31 December
2014: 1,482,576,298 shares). Basic earnings per
share for 2015 was HK$0.51 (2014: HK$0.61),
representing a decrease of approximately 16.39%
compared to the same period of 2014.

Segment performance

In 2015, sales of energy products amounted to
approximately 3,886,000 tons in total, representing an
increase of approximately 1,057,000 tons or 37.36%
compared to approximately 2,829,000 tons for the
same period of 2014. The respective weight of LPG
and oil products to the total sales volume was as
follows:

Year Sales volume of LPG
F LPGHEER
2015 1,893,000 tons I 48.711%
2014 1,743,000 tons 61.61%
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Sales volume of oil products
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1,086,000 tons 1
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The businesses of LPG, oil products and electronic
products of the Group generated total operating
revenue of approximately HK$15,479,259,000 in
2015. The respective weight of these three business
segments in the total revenue of the Group was as
follows:

Oil products

£ EH2015F HWLPG: B B K&K &E
FTEREBREBRELEERAD
15,479,259,0007% 7T+ It = 8 %
BRI hEBEREETENLL 5D 5
=3

Electronic products

i & BETFER

2015 HK$8,488,519,000 #5t HK$6,331,336,000 i#& T HK$659,404,000 i& 7T
54.71% 40.81% 4.25%
2014 HK$12,664,606,000/87C  HK$5,214,037,0007%C  HK$1,699,397,000 % 7T
64.51% 26.56% 8.66%

Contribution to the gross profit by these three
business segments of the Group for the year was as
follows:

SEFRL=ZREBHEEREN
HIBE R B & -

QOil products Electronic products
R EFER
2015 HK$1,476,000,000 i#&JT HK$316,950,000 i#&JjT HK$28,503,000 i# T
80.23% 17.23% 1.55%
2014 HK$1,072,624,000 /% T HK$176,196,000 % 7T HK$99,695,000 % 7T
77.88% 12.79% 7.24%

LPG business LPG#%

The LPG business of the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$8,488,519,000 in 2015, down
by 32.97% from the turnover of approximately
HK$12,664,606,000 for the same period of 2014.
Sales volume amounted to approximately 1,893,000
tons, representing an increase of 8.61% compared
to the sales volume of approximately 1,743,000
tons in 2014. In 2015, the LPG business realized a
gross profit of approximately HK$1,476,097,000,
representing a significant increase of 37.62% from
approximately HK$1,072,624,000 for the same period
of 2014. The gross profit margin also increased from
8.47% of 2014 to 17.39% of 2015.
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The sales of LPG of the Group in 2015 were basically
the same as that in 2014. There were not much
changes apart from a slight decrease in the retalil
volume and a slight increase in the wholesale volume.
The drop in turnover for the period was entirely
attributable to the incessant decline in the market
price. In fact, the sales performance of LPG business
was well maintained at the same level as that of the
last year. Gross profit has significantly increased
as benefited from the fall of oil price and reduction
of costs; gross profit margin has sharply raised as
a result of dividing increased profit by decreased
turnover.

As to the termination of cooperation with Sinopec
Guangdong branch in relation to the LPG autogas
refueling business, the Group originally intended to
expand its energy business and open up the NG
market through this cooperation. The subsequent
slump in the oil price has affected the development of
the NG business, making it quite impossible to carry
out the addition of LNG autogas refueling facilities
to some of the refueling stations owned by Sinopec
as originally agreed by the parties, foreshadowing
the termination of the cooperation. In effect, the
termination of this cooperation has no significant
consequences on the Group. We neither have lost
any profits nor were obliged to assume any additional
liability or compensation. In terms of business and
operation, we still wholly own and fully operate
Lianxin Energy (including its 17 autogas refueling
stations). Perhaps the only regret was that we have
lost the chance of cooperation with Sinopec in the
joint development of LNG autogas refueling station
business. Nevertheless, our successful developing the
operating model of direct cooperation with end users
during the period has fully made up for the possible
loss of development opportunities resulting from the
termination of cooperation with Sinopec.
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Oil products business

The oil products business of the Group recorded a
total turnover of approximately HK$6,331,336,000
in 2015, up by 21.43% compared to approximately
HK$5,214,037,000 for the same period of 2014.
Sales volume was approximately 1,993,000 tons,
representing a remarkable lift by 83.52% from
approximately 1,086,000 tons for the same period of
2014. The oil products business realized gross profits
of approximately HK$316,950,000, or an increase
of 79.88% from the gross profits of approximately
HK$176,196,000 for the same period of 2014. The
gross profit margin went up from 3.38% of 2014 to
5.01% of 2015.

Similar to the situation of the LPG business, the
turnover only recorded an increase of 21.43%, failing
to show an increase in line with the increment in the
sales volume of oil products by over 80% under the
incessant slump in the oil price. The increase in gross
profit was entirely the result of the significant increase
in the sales volume. The improvement in the gross
profit margin was attributable to (1) the increase in
profit margin with an unmatched increase in turnover
that buoyed up the gross profit margin; (2) the
repurchase of the 51% equity interests in the project
company (“Oil Products Project Company”) engaged
in marine bunkering business in Hong Kong has made
the Oil Products Project Company to become a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group again, such that the
gross profits of the Oil Products Project Company
were consolidated in the accounts of the Group,
leading to a slight increase in the gross profit margin
of the oil products business.

During the year, the 70,000 ton oil products
warehouse in Gaolan Port, Zhuhai has commenced
operation, resulting in a significant increase in the
turnover of the domestic oil products business.
However, given that the domestic oil products
business was still in its infant stage, the business
remained highly reliant on the wholesale and trading
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business (marine fuel oil as a secondary business),
and thereby the benefits from the decline in oil
price remained limited. Nonetheless, the domestic
oil products business has successfully achieved
remarkable growth in the sales volume and
improvement in the gross profits during the period
and emerged into one of the founding pillars of the
Group’s oil products business.

Our oil products business in Hong Kong has, on the
other hand, underwent structured adjustments to
cope with changes in the market environment: (1)
during the second half of 2015, we have decided to
cut the business volume of marine bunkering (heavy
oil) services to large ships in an effort to evade the
vicious competition commonplace on the market.
Instead, we would shift to focus on the provision of
marine fuel oil to other marine bunkering operators
in the region. Although the profit margin was not
high, this nearly back-to-back business model
has enabled us to effectively dispose of the goods
already procured the soonest while avoiding the risk
of price changes; (2) we continued to step up the
development of retail business of vessel diesel within
the Hong Kong waters to maintain the profitability
of the oil products business; (3) we have recorded a
breakthrough in the business volume of international
trading of petroleum and chemical products (including
diluted asphalt and mixed arenes), making a new
addition to the Group’s profit sources.

Electronic products business

In 2015, the Group has only carried out trading
business of electronic products to customers in
Thailand. Unlike 2014, the Group has not invested in
the development and sales of new products during the
period, and has only maintained the general trading
of integrated circuits and electronic components
related to mobile phones and smartphones.
From this, the Group has recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$659,404,000, as compared to
the turnover of approximately HK$1,699,397,000 of
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2.4

the same period in 2014, representing a significant
decrease of 61.20% to the similar level in the past.
The contribution of gross profits has also declined
significantly from approximately HK$99,695,000 by
71.41% to approximately HK$28,503,000, whereas
the gross profit margin has diminished significantly
from 5.87% of 2014 to approximately 4.32%.

Net exchange loss and other income

When RMB had been depreciating (i.e. US$
appreciating), we had to dispose the RMB monetary
assets in exchange for US dollars in order that the US
dollar debts could be repaid as quickly as possible to
avoid the incurrence of greater losses. At the end of
the year, the resulting net exchange loss amounted to
approximately HK$292 million. It constituted the main
cause of a profit decline for 2015. The net exchange
loss for the period was comprised of three parts:

2.4
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2015 full year
20152

First half of 2015
2015 4

BERAX(ET)

Net exchange loss (HK$)

Net exchange loss from import trading i O Z 5 F7 5| BLA)

FIE AR (109,037,000) (38,231,000)

Net exchange (loss) gain from the BEBERNIHFARBIRE

Groups’ intra-group current accounts ROmENE EFTS B

and current assets denominated in FIE N (BR) W

RMB (59,518,000) 2,564,000
Net exchange loss from the structured ~ AARBEAEFEZIRET

matching of pledged deposits in RMB & e i1t fic b o4k

and corresponding loans in USD FIEEGoEE—ES (123,453,000) (54,877,000)
(1) Net exchange loss from import trading (1) AREOESFSIHMNFEER
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amounted to approximately HK$109,037,000
(first half of the year: HK$38,231,000; second
half of the year: HK$70,806,000). As there was
not a big difference between the turnover for
imported goods for the first and second halves
of the year, however RMB was significantly
depreciated in the second half of the year
which caused the material raise in the net
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exchange loss. Our subsidiaries in China used
the exchange rate at transaction date to record
the procurement costs of the imported goods
in RMB. For the payment of the goods, we
were required to sell RMB and buy US dollars
at a bank in order to remit the US dollars to
the suppliers overseas. There was inevitably
a big difference between actual exchange
rates applied in the transactions with the intra-
group prefixed rate, which was accounted
for as exchange loss or gain. In the event of
fluctuations in the RMB exchange rate, such
gain or loss would be considerable. In the past
when RMB was on the continuous appreciation,
import trading would only generate exchange
gains, which were more than welcomed by us.
However, when RMB was on the continuous
depreciation, bringing along exchange losses,
we would make upward adjustments to our
sales price in order to compensate for the losses
under the prerequisite that such adjustment
would not affect our sales. In respect of the
different kinds of sales, price adjustment
was the simplest and direct for the end user
retail business. As to long term customers or
industrial customers, it was more difficult to
adjust the prices as contracts would have been
signed. Overall speaking, part of the increase
in the gross profits from sales in 2015 was
attributable to the upward adjustments of the
sales price (mainly related to retail sales). As a
Hong Kong enterprise targeting China mainland
as the primary sales market, we were inevitably
impacted by fluctuations in the exchange rate of
RMB, and were only able to make up for part of
such losses through continuously increasing the
sales prices as the circumstances allowed.

Net exchange loss from the Groups’ intra-
group current accounts and current assets
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$59,518,000 (first half of the year: gain of
HK$2,564,000; second half of the year: loss

HEMREBEIRE R - S/
AEBAE ZERAR - DT
BN EOSYHARE
HEAAR - 8483
HME2RERITHEAR
BCEAET REAKE
GG HIERS - 58
EMEANEREX - XVF
BN EBTE E R BE =G T
B 2EEzEpetERE
HEXSERZ  IRAR
EmEEL LA K
B BRI EAEAE
BEEKXK UEE ARETE
AEONE EOEZRE
ORIE N B e - mATE A
BEELZ BEARETH
REmMSRERIBLRE - &
M ETFEIEBENRR
T ARHEEERE  WmYE
Ko EEEHEZT  UF
BERmTEXBNESRR
BEMERE ZERRARP
FTERPHER BEARE
BEARMKE - AT AR
AR - BEME - 20154F
HEEFNMREABITSEL
ERRHEEE(XFERTEX
BIFBEENER - KEER
—RUHFEA AT EHEE
ﬁ%%%%ﬁ% |k
eI ARBEZESHH
BE - WEEKRGLFTTT
BT EBRIEL AR - 4
A] LA 5 7 B Ut BT 7 2R A9 B
B .

HEEANPBARBERER
MEVEEFTSIBR FIE KB
%K K 4 559,518,000 7T
(k¥ F I %52,564,000%8




Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 2 7w Mo

of HK$62,082,000). The net exchange gain for
the first half of the year were attributable to the
fact that the exchange rate of RMB on 30 June
was higher than that of 1 January albeit only a
very slight appreciation, leading a small gain.
With the continuous RMB slump during the
second half of the year that tallied a depreciation
of over 5% from 1 July to 31 December,
considerable losses were incurred according to
the accounting standards. However, most of the
loss was unrealized net exchange loss on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
and had no significant impact on the cash flow
of the Group. We have to admit though, under
the current circumstances, there is a lack of
means to avoid such exchange loss incurred by
this type of current accounts and current assets
under the depreciation of RMB. We can at most
prevent the continuous increase of such loss
or hedge part of the related assets against the
related liabilities under the prerequisite that it
is in compliance of the accounting standards,
with the aim of minimizing this type of exchange
losses by reducing the amount of current
accounts and current assets denominated in
RMB in case of further depreciation of RMB.

Net exchange loss from the structured
matching of pledged deposits in RMB and
corresponding loans in USD amounted to
approximately HK$123,453,000 (first half
of the year: HK$54,877,000; second half of
the year: HK$68,576,000). The substantial
amount of deposits in RMB and corresponding
loans in USD in the accounts of the Group
was originally intended to utilize this kind of
structured arrangements to earn from the
interest spread between the deposits in RMB
and loans in USD and to earn exchange gains
from the appreciation of RMB. We also knew
the possibility of incurring loss from these
assets and liabilities once the exchange rate of
RMB dropped from the high level and therefore
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have started to minimize the growth of such
structured arrangements since 2014. In the
first half of 2015, we have cut the balance of
approximately HK$3.9 billion as at the end of
2014 to approximately HK$2.7 billion. Despite
that RMB has not started to depreciate during
the first half of the year, there has been a gap
between the exchange rate used for settlement
and the initial rate, resulting in significant
realized exchange losses. During the second
half of the year, the Group has stopped making
this kind of structured arrangements and
further substantially reduced the balance from
approximately HK$2.7 billion to approximately
HK$1.4 billion. Greater losses were incurred
for that period compared to the first half of the
year as RMB continued to depreciate. Such net
exchange loss for the entire year amounted to
approximately HK$123 million. Although there
remained a balance of approximately HK$1.4
billion as at the end of the year, the Group has
already fixed the exchange rate of RMB against
US dollar for it and the relevant price difference
has been account for in the exchange losses for
the year.

Due to the drastic cut in deposits in RMB and
corresponding loans in USD in 2015, the resulting
interest spread also decreased. Interest income
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$87.87
million (2014: HK$168 million) for the year, whereas
interest expense for the corresponding loans in
USD were approximately HK$51.78 million (2014:
HK$98.13 million), generating net interest income of
approximately HK$36.09 million (2014: HK$69.87
million). The gains were insignificant compared to the
huge net exchange loss of the year and could at most
make up for a small part.
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The structured arrangements of deposits in RMB
and corresponding loans in USD made by the Group
over the years have received mixed responses from
the public. We have now cut the balance of such
structured arrangements to the lowest level for many
years, putting an end to this kind of activities. The
simple analysis below is made to help understanding

SEETARBEREETERN
EBUERHTHCRZF  IAY
SEAREH L THFERRES
¥ o MR E BEBIERE 2B
BREURE Z FRMRIER - BRE
BRMAIEE—BRE - RTEFRR
HREEEBRELESET it

the whether it is worthwhile to make such
arrangements:

EITTIT BT -

(HK$ million) Bl AEET
Net exchange gain LRV RC ¥

and loss related to LR 8

structured matching TFIE H B2

arrangements +148.1 -86.0 +101.8 -8.6 = -123.5 +31.8
Changes in fair value ~ $T4EET A

of derivative financial RN B WE

instruments +8.5 +19.6 -26.8 +19.1 -33.7 -138.3
Gain from interest B =S

spread +16.8 +36.9 +37.2 +70.0 +36.1 +197.0
Total FEEy +173.4 -29.5  +112.2 +80.5 -121.1 +215.5

As seen from above, net exchange loss and gain
related to structured matching arrangements have
varied over the years with both gains and losses. The
overall result for all the years was generally neutral
without any significant negative impact to the Group.
However, gain from interest spread represented
a controllable item and have maintained positive
contributions over the 5 years, reaching HK$197
million in total, which in other words, reflected the
additional revenues brought to the Group over the
5 years by such arrangements. We believe that the
final results would have been better than what is
seen now if we have adopted more effective financial
instruments to hedge the risks of exchange rate
fluctuations.
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2.5 Control of operating revenues and costs

Finance costs

The Group’s total finance costs in 2015 amounted
to approximately HK$194,953,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.82% as compared
to approximately HK$226,210,000 of the same
period in 2014. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly attributable to the significant cut in
the pledged deposits in RMB and corresponding
borrowings in USD that has led to the decrease
in the related finance costs (interests mainly) for
the period from approximately HK$98,125,000 of
2014 to approximately HK$51,775,000 of 2015 (a
decrease of approximately 47.24%). On the other
hand, expenses of finance costs related to bank loans
for operations has increased from approximately
HK$128,085,000 for the same period of 2014
to approximately HK$143,178,000 of 2015 (an
increase of approximately 11.78%). The increase was
attributable to the following reasons, including: (1)
a slight increase of approximately 3% of such bank
loans (calculated on the basis of the loan balances
as at the end of the year) during the period; (2) the
increase in borrowings in RMB at a higher interest
rate as appropriate by the Group during the second
half of the year in an effort to mitigate the exchange
risks stemmed from the depreciation of RMB; (3)
the increase in bank charges resulting from new
syndicated loans and the premature repayment of
certain syndicated loans during the period.

It is the view of the Group on the money market that:
(1) although it is not sure whether RMB depreciation
will continue or not, market does not expect RMB to
turn around and appreciate given the weakness of
the China economy; (2) the cost difference between
borrowing in RMB and USD has narrowed as RMB
interest rate has decreased from 6%-7% prevailing
in the past years to the current level of around 4%-
5%; (3) continual Increase of the USD interest rate is
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quite possible when the US Federal Reserve Bureau
announced interest rate increase by the end of 2015,
the very first time in more than a decade. The interest
difference between RMB and USD is expected to
narrow further making RMB loan and USD loan
indifferent in terms of borrowing cost. In view of
these, the Group is preparing to adopt prudent
and conservative financing strategy in 2016: (1) to
focus on using short-term bank loans to meet with
operational working capital requirements; (2) to opt
for applying its self-owned funds instead of additional
long term bank borrowing for fixed assets investments
thus avoiding unnecessary increase in the finance
costs; (3) to use RMB borrowings in China to finance
RMB assets, and use USD borrowings in Hong Kong
to finance USD assets, thus minimizing the risk of
exchange loss that may produce in the financing
structure. As such, the Group’s financing cost is
expected to increase only in a moderate manner
in 2016. Our financing strategy will be adjusted
according to the change in the market situation for
year 2017 and after.

Selling and distribution expenses and
administration expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses and
administration expenses for 2015 amounted to
approximately HK$352,071,000 and HK$282,310,000
respectively, representing an increase of
approximately HK$100,415,000 (an increase of
39.90%) and HK$53,372,000 (an increase of
23.31%) from approximately HK$251,656,000 and
HK$228,938,000 of the same period in 2014. The
relatively significant increases in both selling and
distribution expenses and administration expenses
were mainly attributable to: (1) the consolidation
of the operating costs of the Oil Products Project
Company into the Group’s accounts upon its
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
once again in 2015, and the amortization of the
intangible assets of the Oil Products Project Company
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upon the repurchase of the equity interests in it,
leading relatively significant increases in the selling
and distribution and administration expenses of the
Group. In 2015, the Oil Products Project Company
has incurred selling and distribution expenses of
approximately HK$102,734,000, administration
expenses of approximately HK$13,443,000,
amortization of intangible assets (included in
selling and distribution expenses) of approximately
HK$17,120,000; (2) the termination of cooperation
between the Group and Sinopec Guangdong branch
in October, under which Sinopec NewOcean Energy
Company Limited (jointly established by the parties)
has ceased to subcontract the operation of Lianxin
Energy (and its 17 LPG refueling stations), leading
to the consolidated accounting of the operating
costs of Lianxin Energy for November and December
2015, including the selling and distribution expenses
and administrative expenses of Lianxin Energy for
the two months in the amounts of approximately
HK$12,076,000 and HK$2,594,000 respectively; (3) in
order to expand the business of the Group, the Group
has incorporated new subsidiaries and set out retail
networks in various locations in Guangdong province,
thus the salary and consultancy expenses increased
by approximately HK$23,609,000.

It is expected that with the consolidation of the
operating costs of Lianxin Energy for the entire
year (only 2 months of costs were required to be
consolidated in 2015), an increase in depreciation
upon the use of more infrastructure and an increase
in the preliminary development costs for the Group’s
intended development in the overseas in 2016, the
selling and distribution expenses and administrative
expenses will continue to increase significantly in the
coming year.
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2.6 Conclusion

Despite that the total turnover of the Group for 2015
has declined significantly by 20.98% to approximately
HK$15.5 billion under the impact of oil price slump,
the operating performance of the Group was in fact
outstanding with an increase of gross profits by
approximately HK$463 million and the increase of the
gross profit margin to approximately 11.9%. Yet, the
Group’s profits declined to approximately HK$750
million only in the end as dragged by its enormous
exchange losses. However, we are very pleased to
observe that the Group has recorded a free operating
cash flow of approximately HK$689 million for the
year with a significant decrease in RMB assets and
USD liabilities bearing potential exchange risks,
leading to an improvement in the gearing ratio. These
all indicate for sound prospects for the Group without
the fluctuations of RMB exchanges affecting the
performance of the Group as in the past.

3. Major changes in the financial position

3.1

Current ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total
current assets of approximately HK$7,867,265,000,
representing a significant decrease of 28.08% as
compared to approximately HK$10,938,936,000
of the same period in 2014 (mainly attributable
to decreases in pledged deposits in RMB). Total
short-term liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$3,866,582,000, representing a significant
decrease of 51.82% as compared to approximately
HK$8,025,300,000 of the same period in 2014
(mainly attributable to significant decreases in both
borrowings in USD secured by RMB deposits and
trading payables). The current ratio was 203.47%,
representing a further significant increase from
136.31% of 2014, fully reflecting the adequacy of
liquid capital held by the Group for the operation and
development of its businesses.
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3.2 EERERKE

3.2 Fixed assets and investments

During the year, the Group has not invested
substantially in the addition of existing LPG and oil
products facilities and has only invested approximately
HK$26,225,000 in the acquisition of new fixed assets.
To complement its long-term development objectives,
the Group has invested in the following projects: (1)
paid approximately HK$307,913,000 as the deposit
for the acquisition of 25 tank vessels ranging from
approximately 100 tons to 2,000 tons in China for
the development of the oil products business in
China; and (2) paid approximately HK$217,920,000
as the deposits for potential investment projects
related to the acquisition of LNG and oil stations
to facilitate the establishment and improvement of
the Group’s downstream sales network. The above
two investments have been accounted for as non-
current deposits paid in the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015.

The Group’s available for sale investment represented
shares of Integrated Energy Limited (“IE”). In view of
the continued instability of the Korean stock market
and the Group’s focus in the exploration of the LNG
and domestic oil products businesses, the Group
started to dispose of the shares in IE from 2014
owned. At the end of 2015, the Group’s shareholding
in IE has decreased to 9.65% from 27.33% as at
the beginning of the year. The disposal brought
along cash proceeds in the amount of approximately
HK$53,120,000 for use in other investments, and
recorded a loss from the disposal of available for sale
investments of approximately HK$17,898,000.

In 2015, in order to maintain the long term profitability
in energy business, the Group acquired a land
parcel in Yuen Long, Hong Kong at approximately
HK$25,000,000. The Group is preparing to apply
to construct a traditional storage for LPG and oil
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on the land. During the year, the Group had no
additional significant real estate project. The original
small project in China has been slowly put to the
market since 2013 and approximately 14.74% was
further disposed of in 2015. About 30% of the
property project has been sold since year 2013. The
remaining properties are expected to be disposed
in the coming year. The other project is related to
establishment of the headquarters of the Group in
Zhuhai and development properties available for
sale. The Group has concentrated to tackling certain
preliminary works during 2015 and is carrying out
construction at present. Upon completion, the Group
intends to dispose of part of the property to recoup
the investment in the entire project, whereas the
remaining parts of the property will be used as the
headquarters in Zhuhai.

On 30 October 2015, the Group and Sinopec
NewOcean Energy Company Limited (the “JV”)
entered into a subcontract termination agreement to
cease to subcontract the operation of Lianxin. The
shareholders of the JV also agreed to dissolve the
JV in due course. The arrangements for and reasons
of the termination agreement and JV termination
agreement have been set out in the discloseable
announcement published by the Company on 30
October 2015. According to the shareholders’
resolution of the JV in December 2015, the JV has
officially entered the stage of liquidation and has been
preparing for the company cancellation procedures.
The JV returned in full the shareholders’ capital
fund and parts of the dividend distributions on 25
December 2015, from which the Group has received
a total amount of approximately HK$76,454,000,
including return of capital funds of approximately
HK$61,432,000 and dividend distributions of
approximately HK$15,022,000. The remaining unpaid
dividend distribution will be made upon completion of
the Company cancellation.
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3.3 Gearing ratio 3.3 AfRHE

Bank loans

As at the end of 2015, the Group’s total bank loans
amounted to approximately HK$4,948,568,000,
representing a decrease of approximately
HK$2,474,853,000 or 33.34% compared to
approximately HK$7,423,421,000 as at the end of
2014. The balance as at the end of 2015 included:
(1) USD loans related to structured matching of
approximately HK$1,370,614,000, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$2,730,781,000 from
the balance of approximately HK$4,101,395,000 as at
the end of 2014; (2) short-term working capital loan
of approximately HK$1,544,199,000, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$593,942,000 from the
balance of approximately HK$2,138,141,000 as at the
end of 2014; and (38) long-term working capital loan
of approximately HK$2,033,755,000, representing
an increase of approximately HK$849,870,000 from
the balance of approximately HK$1,183,885,000
as at the end of 2014. The balance of bank loans
used for liquid capital amounted to approximately
HK$3,577,954,000, representing a slight increase of
approximately HK$255,928,000 from the balance of
approximately HK$3,322,026,000 as at the end of
2014.

Shareholders’ equity

During 2015, the Company has not undertaken
any fund-raising activities on the capital market.
The Group’s net profits amounted to approximately
HK$758,972,000, dividend paid of approximately
HK$97,706,000 and negative exchange difference
arising on translation to presentation currency
amounted to approximately HK$209,944,000. As a
result, the shareholders’ equity of the Company has
increased from approximately HK$4,874,600,000
as at the end of 2014 to approximately
HK$5,350,423,000 as at the end of 2015.
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Gearing ratio

Annual Report 2015

RRLE

TE-REFEFR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
HE 20155 HE2014F
12A31H 124318
Total bank loans RITERBE HK$4.949 billion HK$7.423 billion
49.49fBE T 74.23{E% T
Bank balances and cash and pledged RITEBEBRS R HK$2.678 billion HK$5.261 billion
bank deposits BHEBTR 26.78 ST 52.61 {887
Shareholders’ equity BEX N HK$5.350 billion HK$4.875 billion
53.50 BT 48.75 BB T

Ratio A: Bank loans/Shareholders’ equity AL : /T HRE
Em 92.50% 152.27%

Ratio B: Net bank loans (after deducting Bt : ZE1TEF G

bank balances and cash and pledged RITEHB LIRS REK
bank deposits)/Shareholders’ equity WERE) /R ER 42.45% 44.35%

FR KENEELRAIBHLEER)
MR - BURSE B Z R R
BEKE-

The Group’s gearing ratio (that is, ratio B) recorded
a slight decrease, reflecting that the Group has
maintained a healthy gearing position.

4. Business condition 4. EBRR
4.1 LPG business 41 LPG%¥
Purchase g

2015 F NEB TR LPGHREE £
#71,893,000M8 + Lt ¥72014F [
HA #71,743,000 18 - 3 A1 150,000
W - 3684 3 8.61% © 18 IR
B LPGEAEX A 1,042,400
£2 2014 4 [A) Hi 491,067,000 WE &)
REERBISE M B R (ER
4>24,60018) o 1B 1A f5R 5% £ BB 49
LPG# £ #) £ 850,600MF » Lt %
2014 4 A H3 £ % £ 676,000 W -
$EIN174,600WE - 1218 /5 25.83% ©

During 2015, approximately 1,893,000 tons of
LPG was purchased in total, representing an
increase of 150,000 tons or 8.61% as compared to
approximately 1,743,000 tons of the same period
in 2014. Approximately 1,042,400 tons of imported
LPG was purchased, representing a similar level to
approximately 1,067,000 tons of the same period
in 2014 with a slight decline of merely 24,600 tons.
Approximately 850,600 tons of domestic LPG were
purchased, representing an increase of 174,600 tons
or 25.83% compared to approximately 676,000 tons
of the same period in 2014.

756 R
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LPG Sourced from Overseas (“Imported Gas”)

The purchase of Imported Gas was directly
managed by the headquarter of the Group: (1) in
2015, approximately 980,400 tons of Imported
Gas accounting for 94.05% of the total volume of
Imported Gas were purchased by way of letter of
credit issued by international banks; the remaining
approximately 62,000 tons accounting for 5.95%
of the total volume of Imported Gas were paid
by banks’ telegraphic transfer; (2) there were 7
suppliers in total, amongst which, SK Corporation,
Petrobras and United Gas in 2015 had replaced
Vital, E1 Corporation and Longwell (the suppliers
in last year) that did not have any business with us
during the year. Out of all the suppliers, United Gas
supplied only 200 tons which formed a part of our
LPG sales in cylinder to Kenya, Africa. In 2015, Shell
has been the largest supplier in terms of volume
at approximately 713,300 tons (approximately
68.43%), followed by a national petroleum company
in the Middle East with the supply volume being
approximately 222,500 tons (approximately 21.34%).
Apart from United Gas, the remaining 4 suppliers
represented two national petroleum companies
and two international LPG trading companies with
the supply volume of approximately 106,400 tons,
accounting for approximately 10.21% of the purchase
volume of Imported Gas; (3) the gas was mainly
sourced from the Middle East at approximately
983,700 tons, accounting for 94.37% of the
purchase volume of Imported Gas. The remaining
approximately 58,700 tons were chiefly sourced
from Africa. Of approximately 1,042,400 tons of
Imported Gas purchased, approximately 222,700
tons were settled overseas, whereas the remaining
approximately 819,700 tons were first transported to
the bonded LPG warehouses in Guangdong Province
(including NewOcean’s LPG cargo terminal located
in Gaolan Port, Zhuhai and other cargo terminals).
Approximately 124,000 tons were re-exported to the
overseas market through NewOcean’s cargo terminal,
while approximately 695,700 tons were sold on the
domestic market.

w&EIMFIERILPG (BEH &N
/)
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LPG Purchased from the China Domestic Market
(“Domestic Gas”)

In 2015, the volume of Domestic Gas produced
by petroleum refineries or natural gas processing
plants in China purchased by the Group has
increased significantly to approximately 850,600
tons, representing an increase of 25.83% from
approximately 676,000 tons of the same period in
2014. As Domestic Gas transported by tank wagons
from provinces in northern China into Guangdong
Province has jumped substantially by volume, and also
at relatively lower prices, we have correspondingly
increased the purchase volume from this channel on
average over the year, in order to fulfil part of the
additional demand of industrial customers, bottled
LPG customers and other bottling plants. Domestic
Gas was still mainly sourced from refineries, gas
plants and NG processing plants of Chinese National
Petroleum Corporation, Sinopec and China National
Offshore Oil Corporation in Guangdong Province or
neighboring provinces (such as Hunan and Hubei).
Most of the Domestic Gas was transported by
tank wagons within Guangdong Province or cross-
provinces, while others were transported by pressure
vessels from northern China.

Sales

In 2015, a total of approximately 1,893,000 tons
of LPG were sold, representing an increase of
approximately 8.61% as compared to approximately
1,743,000 tons of the same period in 2014.

Sale volume in

HERA

Sales category

2015 (tons)
2015 F S E ()

fEREFELIFELLPG (H# &
Z|/)

20156F M+ B A R\ T’
HRARARMIMEBORERK
18 1% /0 &= K 49850,600MF » Lt %
2014 % [7] Bf #9676,000 Mg & hn 7
25.83% c =FFH TR LAEE
AT BB BER e A ABERNE
EXRIE  BROERER - ATUEK
figties TE A EMREE - Uk
EEHHTERF - RELPGEF
REMFTIMMmARBEING K - BIER
FEMABESTRM - FAREET
BB T RERE AL E D
(fBgn - 8E - B BRER - RE
RRAREIER - KNI AEHEE
TEREAARBELENER - HiIp
DRIAB ML FEA o

HE

20154 £ H H SLPGYH
1,893,000 + Lt ¥ 2014 4 [6] Hf
#91,743,000 MEE N4 8.61% °

Sale volume in Increase/
2014 (tons) (Decrease)
2014 % () 18/ (8)

Overseas customers NP 351,000 400,000 (49,000) tons W
Industrial customers I#%P 797,000 755,000 42,000 tons 1A
Other terminals and bottling plants ~ H 5558 k2 % #E 254,000 73,000 181,000 tons 1
Bottled LPG MELPG 279,000 271,000 8,000 tons M
Autogas refueling AENR 212,000 244,000 (32,000) tons 1
Total “we 1,893,000 1,743,000 150,000 tons 13
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Overseas customers — in 2015, sales of LPG to
overseas customers amounted to approximately
351,000 tons, representing a decrease of
approximately 12.25% from approximately 400,000
tons of the same period in 2014. Out of the sales
to overseas customers, approximately 222,700
tons were settled overseas, down by approximately
19.75% from approximately 277,500 tons of the same
period in 2014. The remaining approximately 128,300
tons were re-sold through the bonded warehouses
in Zhuhai Terminal, up by 4.73% from approximately
122,500 tons of the same period in 2014. The re-
exported goods were mainly sold to Philippines,
amounting to over 100,000 tons. Other regions
included Hong Kong, Vietnam, Indonesia, Malaysia,
Australia and Bangladesh, etc, with the individual
annual volume ranging from 1,500 tons to 5,100
tons. Guam accounted for the smallest share with
approximately 1,000 tons.

Industrial customers — in 2015, sales to industrial
customers amounted to approximately 797,000
tons, representing a mild increase of 5.56% from
approximately 755,000 tons of the same period in
2014. The sales to the industrial customers did not
vary in the first and second halves of the year. During
the second half of the year, some of the customers
who originally intended to migrate to use NG decided
to suspend the plan of switching to NG as it has
become significantly less attractive with the prices of
traditional energy products on a slump, stimulating
the demand for LPG and explaining the main reason
for the slight increase in the sales to industrial
customers for the year. Industrial customers in
Guangdong Province could be divided into three main
types: (1) customers using LPG to produce chemical
products with functions similar to gasoline and diesel.
They were the most heavily affected by the decline
in the oil price as the production of these products
generates only a thin margin and many of these
customers have chosen to suspend or delay their
production. Being the wholesaler to them, we were
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unable to secure any demand from such customers;
(2) customers using LPG as the raw material for the
production of other chemical products including
polystyrene, maleic anhydride, purified terepthatic
acid, and polypropylene (dehydrogenated propane).
The production costs of these customers lowered
with the price of LPG and therefore it would be easier
for the wholesalers to reach a deal with them to
stimulate the sales; (3) customers using LPG as the
production fuel, including ceramics factories, glass
factories, and even other autogas refueling operators.
These customers were less sensitive to price changes
and featured a more stable demand regardless of
price movements. It should be noted that some of the
customers who originally intended to migrate to use
NG decided to suspend such plans as NG has lost its
price advantages. This has provided a strong support
for the rebound of the LPG demand.

Other terminals and bottling plants — in 2015, sales to
other terminals and bottling plants were approximately
254,000 tons, representing a significant increase
of 247.95% from approximately 73,000 tons of the
same period in 2014. Sales of this category were
all Domestic Gas, mostly picked up by vehicles or
vessels sent by the customers to the refineries or
the auxiliary terminals, and we only acted as the
trader. During the year, the domestic trade market
has become exceptionally dynamic with the price
declines. In view of lower prices, we have increased
the purchase volume from refineries in northern China
and realized sizeable profits from the re-sale.

Bottled LPG - in 2015, sale volume of the Group’s
bottled LPG (including sales in Guangdong, Macau
and Hong Kong) was approximately 279,000 tons,
representing a slight growth of 2.95% from the similar
level at approximately 271,000 tons of the same
period in 2014. The major customers of bottled LPG
in China were commercial end users including the
general public, restaurants, entertainment venues,
small hotels and laundry shops. Given the loss of
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price advantages of NG with the significant price drop
of LPG, coupled with the slowdown in the customers’
migration to pipeline NG, the market demand for LPG
showed a tangible rebound during the year. During the
second half of the year, the Group recorded robust
sales of approximately 156,000 tons, representing an
increase of 26.83% from approximately 123,000 tons
of the first half of the year. Should the sales during the
first and second halves of 2016 were able to maintain
at the level of the second half of 2015, the sales for
the entire year would expectantly break the threshold
of 300,000 tons. Since its commencement in 2014,
the LPG business of the Group in Hong Kong has
established retail points in 18 districts in Hong Kong
(including outlying islands). A total of 28 distributors
have been engaged, 22 of whom have registered with
the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department,
while the remaining was currently conducting sales
on an on-call basis assisting other distributors
but would migrate to being an official distributor
under NewOcean upon completing the registration
procedures with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department in the future. In 2015, the sales
volume of bottled LPG in Hong Kong has increased
by more than double compared to 2014. Despite a
remarkable growth, we still have not achieved our
original objectives. Currently, our sales were directed
at commercial customers mainly, with the household
customers being secondary. This sales strategy
would be adjusted in the due course with the Group’s
increased input into encouraging and assisting our
distributors in securing sales to household customers.
As the use volume of the household customers is
relatively small and scattered, the related promotion
efforts can hardly achieve immediate effect. However,
given that the household customers feature very
stable demand and higher prices than the commercial
customers, expansion of sales to the household
customers will help to enhance the operating
efficiency of this business.
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Autogas refueling — in 2015, the autogas refueling
market was gloomy. Under the administrative order of
the government, some of the buses migrated to use
LNG as the fuel. During the same period, business
was dissatisfactory for many taxis as they were
affected by unregulated passenger lifting services. The
demand for auto LPG has diminished substantially
as a result, leading to a significantly drop in the
Group’s autogas refueling business. Lianxin Energy
has reinforced with its communications with the bus
companies and held promotional programs for taxis
during the period. However, the Group’s autogas
refueling business only recoded a total sales volume
of approximately 212,000 tons (including the volume
of sales to the JV from January to October and the
volume of sales in Lianxin Energy from November
to December), down by 13.11% from approximately
244,000 tons of the same period in 2014. With the
passenger volume of the taxis remaining on the
decrease, the sales volume for the second half of
the year showed an even more aggravated decline,
reaching only approximately 101,200 tons during the
half year, and down by approximately 9,600 tons from
the first half of the year, painting a very pessimistic
picture. The only relief was the terminal storages
owned by the Group, with which we were able to
directly import high-quality LPG from the Middle East
countries to enjoy the edges brought by the decrease
in the international LPG price, and the profitability of
our autogas refueling business was thereby prevented
from suffering any actual impact. We were negotiating
with the government in relation to the continuously
dwindling passenger volume of the taxis in the hope
that the government would step up the crack down
on unregulated commercial vehicles to help save the
dismal taxi market.
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4.2 Oil products business

In 2015, approximately 1,993,000 tons of oil products
were sold by the Group in Hong Kong and China,
representing a considerable increase of approximately
907,000 tons or 83.52% from approximately
1,086,000 tons of the same period in 2014.
Amongst this, approximately 1,005,000 tons were
handled in Hong Kong, representing an increase of
approximately 214,500 tons (an increase of 27.13%)
from approximately 790,500 tons of the same period
in 2014. The sales volume in China amounted to
approximately 988,000 tons, representing an increase
of approximately 692,500 tons (an increase of
approximately 234.35%) from approximately 295,500
tons of the same period in 2014.

Oil products business handled in Hong Kong

Purchase of fuel oil

During the year, the purchase volume of the
Group amounted to approximately 1,005,000
tons, representing an increase of 27.13% from
approximately 790,500 tons of the same period in
2014. Of which:

4.2 HRE®
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Increase

(decrease)

Product 18/(R)
Vessel fuel oll f PR AR

(commonly known as “black oil’) () 615,800 12.59%

Vessel diesel MR

(commonly known as “red oil") (R[4 ]) 174,700 23.64%

Other oil and chemical products HimR kI8 Not applicable

Em 0 ("N/A")

T

Total B 790,500 27.13%
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In 2015, most of the black oil was supplied by a
terminal bonded warehouse in the Pearl River Delta
Region at prefixed amount on a regular basis, whereas
a small part of it was purchased from oil companies
in Hong Kong for customers with special quality
requirements. As to red oil, we have no choice but
purchase red oil from oil companies with oil storage
depots on Tsing Yi Island.

Logistics

The Group has been using the two 4,500 tons oil
tanker to ship black oil from a Chinese bonded
warehouse terminal into Hong Kong Water and
then to make supply to the Group’s self-operated
small bunker ships. Apart from transporting oil, the
oil tanker can also be deployed as bunker ship to
refuel large vessels (more than 2,000 tons of oil
delivery in one time). Given that we have adjusted
our sales strategy in the second half of the year,
direct bunkering business for large vessels has been
reduced significantly. The oil tanker therefore could
only serve as an oil barge making oil supply to other
bunker operators instead of a bunker as originally
planned. As for red oil, (1) we assign small bunker
ships to take delivery of the oil from the oil terminals
in Hong Kong, then hand over to our floating station
in Yau Ma Tei waters, which in turn provides refueling
services to our customers; (2) after getting the oil
from the terminal warehouse, the small vessels
would sail directly to Tuen Mun or Lamma Island to
berth as a temporary marine bunkering station for
vessels nearby. Other oil and chemical products are
categorized as goods for trading and we are not
responsible for their logistics arrangements.
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Sales

In 2015, the oil products business in Hong Kong
recorded a total sales volume of approximately
1,005,000 tons, representing an increase of 27.13%
from approximately 790,500 tons of 2014. Out of
this, the sales volume of black oil was approximately
693,300 tons, up by 12.59% from approximately
615,800 tons of the same period in 2014, whereas
the sales volume of red oil was approximately 216,000
tons, up by 23.64% from approximately 174,700 tons
of the same period in 2014.

HE

BEBHMEBNR2015FNEIEE
£ #) 51,005,000 - Lt #2014
F 4) 790,500 M 3& N27.13% o H
Fh 2 i $E = 49 A2 693,3008 Lt
2014 4 [6] Hi #1615,800 W8 - £ 1
12.59% ° 41 ) 8 = 49 4216,000
WA - b ¥ 2014 4 R HA 49 174,700
WE - 3% 0123.64% °

First half of  Second half 2015 2014
2015 of 2015 Full year Full year Increase/
(tons) (tons) (tons) (tons) (decrease)

2015 2015 2015 2014
IRFE(H)  THE(W) 2F(1) 2F() /(&)
Black oil: direct bunkering 2 ERERH 310,900 41,000 351,900 425,400 (17.28%)

Black oil: supply to other B REMEBEE

operators 130,100 211,300 341,400 190,400 79.31%
Red oil: direct bunkering to ships 4L : EEXM 91,400 111,000 202,400 174,700 15.86%
Red oil: supply to other operators ~ £LJf : SEMEBLHE 13,600 0 13,600 0 N/A
TR
Oil products/chemical products &/t TEES 0 95,700 95,700 0 N/A
TR
Total: By 546,000 459,000 1,005,000 790,500 27.13%

The sales of black oil are mainly targeted at long
distance ships including import and export merchant
ships, container ships, cruises, and bulk carriers.
During the second half of 2015, market competition
was exceptionally intense with some traders quoting
their services at unreasonable price, resulting in an
extremely chaotic environment. Coupled with the
continuous decrease in oil price, we have decided
to significantly reduce such business (as seen from
the table above, the direct bunkering of black oil

EHMNIEZHEHRAELOB
Mo EHEM - B BEMRSERF
Mo 2015 F M T EFMERFE
BHR AEBEHFLSESIE IR
BERE  EXFEFRILLE
PN N T B B
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L REF AR 20165 T ¥+
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has decreased by 86.81% during the second half of
2015), almost entirely cutting off our business with
the traders and keeping only several reputed and
trustworthy medium to large shipping companies as
the backbone of our direct bunkering business. At
the same time, we have aggressively leveraged on
our price advantages to compete with oil companies
in Hong Kong through the providing fuel oil supply
to other marine bunkering operators (as seen from
the table above, the supply volume of black oil to
other operators has increased significantly by 62.41%
during the second half of 2015). After set off, the
sales of black oil for the entire year managed to grow
by approximately 77,500 tons, or 12.59% compared
to 2014.

The sales of red oil are mainly targeted at different
types of vessels operating within the Hong Kong
waters, including fishing vessels, pilot vessels, ferries,
engineering ships, barges, small cargo vessels
and cruises. During the year, we have lost the
contract with Cotai Water Jet, but the overall sales
volume of red oil successfully recorded a growth
of approximately 41,300 tons or 23.64% due to
increasing demand from engineering ships and stable
demand from other kinds of ships.

As for the start of trading of oil and chemical
products, we sourced one shipment of Bitumen
Mixture from Singapore and re-sold it at a reasonable
margin to an importer that owned and operated
sizable sea terminal and bonded warehouse in China.
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Oil products business handled in China

Purchase of oil products

During the year, the Group has purchased
approximately 988,000 tons of oil products,
representing an increase of 234.35% from
approximately 295,500 tons of the same period in
2014. Of which:

TEB P 8 BB 1 i a3
I an IR FE

FREBERARRREEBERD
/988,000 MF + Lt %2014 F [7 HA
#7295,500M8 + 1% HN234.35% °
Hr

Increase

2015 2014 (decrease)

Product tons/ i tons/ i 2/(®)

Marine fuel oil and diesel f PR RL % 480 399,000 181,000 120.44%

Land automotive diesel B E B AL 130,500 114,500 13.97%
Other oil and chemical products Himm ke IT8H

Em 458,500 0 N/A

TEA

Total B 988,000 295,500 234.35%

The Group has purchased a total of approximately
988,000 tons of oil and chemical products in 2015.
This type of oil products included marine fuel oil,
marine diesel, automotive diesel, fuel oil, industrial
heavy oil, diluted asphalt, and mixed arenes. Sinopec,
CNPC, Sinochem and CNOOC were the only
companies with the qualifications and capacities to
supply gasoline, diesel and fuel oil in the past, but
given quite a number of local refineries entering the
supply chain, coupled with the gradual improvements
in the civic-owned oil storage facilities in Guangdong
Province, during the year, the Group’s 70,000 oil
storage depot commenced its usage, the Group
was able to purchase various oil products through
different channels and match oil products meeting
the specifications in accordance with the customers’
needs to complement our efforts in expanding our
scope of sales.

2015 2F EFEERARES
¥ M f &b T E @ £ 49988,000
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Logistics facilities

During the past year, the Group has been working
with operators with a long history in the marine
bunkering business to leverage on their marine and
land transportation means in the delivery of marine oil
and automotive diesel in China. To further step up its
efficiency of oil products delivery in China, the Group
has started to establish a sizeable shipping company
(with up to 25 bunker ships) to provide more timely
and comprehensive service to its customers.

The 70,000 tons oil storage depot located in Gaolan
Port, Zhuhai has fully completed construction and
commenced operation. Before obtaining the approval
for the bonded warehouse, the oil storage depot
would mainly be used for storing diesel purchased in
domestic market. After obtaining the approval for the
bonded warehouse, the oil storage depot would be
used for storing imported diesel for supplying to Hong
Kong, in order to support the development of the
marine automotive diesel market in Hong Kong and to
minimize the cost of purchasing diesel.

Sales

The total sales volume of the oil products business
in China amounted to approximately 988,000 tons,
representing a significant growth of 234.35% from
approximately 295,500 tons of the same period in
2014. The sales volume was divided into different
categories as below:

93

BE—FEE-EEBRAEE LN
HEPERAELNELEHAE
MAELHMBEBENE ERELE
B TEGETTH Al R R SOHA R
- BTE—FREENHMAX
R - SEDEHAE-FER
MRE M AR (B8 T B 3 m M = =
265/8)  REFPRHELKLEE
H AR o

2 70 IR /8 = 1 78 79 70,000 WA Jh /&
EREHRIVELETERARL
A ERBENBRBREGIAZ
A R E B E B AR 2
mEFH R MEAF L o SR
BEFAI 218 - RBLHE B SR b
THEANMSRABHRESE - HY
MREENTEMARERSMT
15 [FIE R AR Sm R BRRB AN ©

HE

B 90 T 2 TSR 2015 F R R 42 8
& E #) 5988,000[F - Lt ¥ 2014
F R EfBIEE =49 295,500MF + K
18 = F+234.35% - $HESHBT
EREEEADEOT

First half of  Second half 2015 2014
2015 of 2015 Full year Full year Increase/
(tons) (tons) (tons) (tons) (decrease)

2015 2015 2015 2014
FREW) TRE(E) 2F(W) 2E() /(&)
Sales to marine end users AR RHE 135,000 264,000 399,000 181,000 120.44%
Wholesales of automotive fuel BB 18,000 112,500 130,500 114,500 13.97%
Qil/chemical products trading B/ IEERES 85,000 373,500 458,500 0 N/A
TR
Total: By 238,000 750,000 988,000 295,500 234.35%
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4.3

During the year, the Group has fortified the
cooperation with other marine bunkering operators
in China, forcefully propelling the marine bunkering
business with the sales volume staggering up by
120.44% to approximately 399,000 tons. On the
other hand, the Group has used the oil storage depot
in Zhuhai as the base for shipment preparation and
shipments to enhance the logistics efficiency. This
has opened us to the sales target of automotive
fuel with massive demand (including a number of
oil stations, industrial customers and transportation
companies to the west of the Pearl River), bringing in
a growth by 13.97% to approximately 130,500 tons.
In addition, the Group has leveraged on its capital
advantages to participate in different trading activities
of oil products/ chemical products (including: Bitumen
Mixtures and Aromatics) that achieved a sales volume
of approximately 458,500 tons, creating a stable
revenue-generating trading line for the Company.
In the forthcoming year, the Group will continue its
joint efforts with Conch Group in the layout of end
user sales network, including the establishment of a
supply station inside the production base of Conch
in Guangdong Province to provide fueling services
to the transportation fleet of Conch. Also, a marine
bunkering station will be set up at a suitable location
along the river way in the Pearl River Delta to provide
diesel supply services to the fleet of transportation
vessels and other vessels of Conch.

NG business

The efforts of end user sales network building
continued for the NG business without generating any
actual trading or actual contribution to the Group’s
overall revenues in 2015. During the year, we have
continued to uphold the strategy of stimulating
development through end user sales and have
incessantly enhanced our exchanges and cooperation
with the end users (including bus companies,
logistics companies, transportation companies, large

4.3
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production bases or networks). However, changes
in the NG market during the period has hindered the
development of NG autogas refueling stations albeit
not significantly. (1) in respect to the cooperation with
Conch Group, the parties have agreed to adjust the
original development strategy to first construct the oil
stations at the current stage in order to provide diesel
supply services to the large automobiles passing
through the production base of Conch at present,
before conducting expansion work for the addition of
LNG refueling facilities at suitable timing. Having taken
into account the fact that the NG business might
slow down, this arrangement would allow the JV set
up by the parties to generate economic benefits right
away while maintaining the long-term relationship with
the potential customers, which in turn would form a
solid foundation for the long-term migration towards
LNG business. (2) the cooperation with Sinopec
Guangdong branch was terminated in October 2015
and the plan of joint investment and operation of
LNG autogas refueling stations has been called off.
Although it seemed a regret to lose the opportunity
to cooperate Sinopec Guangdong branch, we have
been at the same time probing into the cooperation
with other enterprises involving the research and
development of LNG technologies, construction
of LNG autogas refueling stations, the marine and
land transportation of LNG, the construction of
LNG receiving terminals and the exploration of gas
sources overseas. Meanwhile, we have successfully
developed the operation model of direct cooperation
with the end user, which was expected to form a
small network of refueling stations encompassing
over ten stations within one to two year. Despite the
NG market in China being far from prosperous now,
this has given us more room and time to build a more
comprehensive supply chain to ensure the long-term
competitiveness of our NG business in the Chinese
market.
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Business outlook

Considering the current market anticipation of the oil price
momentum, the crude oil price is expected to remain low.
Prices of LPG and oil products are likewise liable to stay at
low levels, and it is very likely that the retail business will
continue to be the biggest winner. In view of this, we will
concentrate our efforts in further reinforcing the end user
sales of LPG and oil products in the coming year, with the
aim of keeping the Group’s total gross profit margin at the
outstanding 10% level.

In the long run, the Group will keep on promoting the
continuous expansion of the LPG sales network both
domestically and in the overseas. Parallel to this, we will
endeavor to integrate our chain of operation and expand
our sales network through mergers and acquisitions of
oil products businesses and assets within and outside
Guangdong Province. The LNG business will continue to
uphold the strategy of stimulating development through end
user sales to secure a solid foundation for the long-term
growth of the Group.

5.1 LPG business

In respect of the development of the LPG business,
we will continue to advocate the strategy formulated
at the beginning of 2015, that is, to choose new
markets based on their profitability. To date,
development plans with extensive preliminary works
already under way include:

(1) NG’s loss of price advantages has indirectly
extended the payback period of pipeline
networks, dampening the enthusiasm of
investors, postponing the network construction,
and substantially alleviating the threat of NG on
LPG. The significant increase of the Group’s
sales volume of bottled LPG was strong
evidence that the market demand for bottled
LPG has resumed. In response, we prepare
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to add two to three bottling plants to the
Group and commence the retailing of bottled
LPG in certain second- and third-tier cities. At
the moment, projects in the pipeline include
application for construction of two bottling plants
in Yingde and Shaogun, and the acquisition of
one existing bottling plant in Guangning County,
Zhaoqing. The addition of these bottling plants
in the related new markets (to the Group) will
further secure the long-term growth in our sales
volume of bottled LPG;

We will continue to step up the cooperation with
the manufacturers of non-gas/diesel chemical
products and strive for more long-term supply
contracts to buoy the sales volume to industrial
customers;

We will continue to invest more human
resources into the promotion of the bottled LPG
business in Hong Kong to strive for a bigger
market share. We will also participant more
actively in tender processes in order to win long-
term contracts for the supply of bottled LPG to
the government and the public sector. We will
continue to identify opportunities to enter the
LPG autogas refueling market in Hong Kong
in order to supply automotive LPG to autogas
operators in Hong Kong in an innovative and
safe business model;

We will assist the stakeholders of the taxi
industry in the negotiation with the government
of Guangzhou Municipal to eliminate the
unfair competition caused by the operation
of unregulated commercial vehicles, with the
aim of helping the taxis regaining the original
businesses and in turn stimulating the demand
for LPG by the taxis;
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(5) In respect of breaking out of Guangdong into
new markets, the Group is now preparing for the
introduction of our existing operation model into
Myanmar in Asia and Kenya in Africa. These two
countries both feature considerable potential
demand and less intensive market competition,
and appeal to our investment in constructing
the network of LPG terminals, warehouses,
transportation and retail points.

5.2 Oil products business

The future development of the Group’s oil products
business will focus on the establishment of a massive
sale network and enhancement of supply chain
integration to allow the supply of a wider array of
oil and chemical products by the Group. Parallel
to efforts to increase product sales, we intend to
enhance the profitability of each sales model through
leveraging on different modes of logistics. Currently,
the oil products business in Hong Kong are spearing
towards the following directions:

(1)  We are committed to becoming the largest
retailer of vessel diesel in the Hong Kong waters
with the goal of taking up 60% of the market
share. To this end, we have to explore stable oil
supply at a low cost to equip ourselves with the
competitive edges to match against the large
oil companies in Hong Kong. At present, we
have applied to the Hong Kong government for
the use of our own 4,500 tons tank vessels as
bonded warehouses for the purchase of vessel
diesel from refineries in Taiwan or Korean before
shipment to Hong Kong for storage in large
vessels and the subsequent direct bunkering
to the customers. This model of purchase (if
approved) will free us completely from the
dependence on oil companies and allow us to
more flexibly adjust our volume of import and
significantly slash our purchase costs to increase
our competitiveness and enhance our operating
profits;
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The market of vessel fuel was extraordinarily
competitive during 2015. Coupled with the
slump in oil prices, the marine bunkering
business was subject to increasing risks and
often unprofitable transactions. As such, the
Group has decided to cut down the direct
supply of vessel fuel to the ships in the second
half of the year, and migrate to adopt the
business of selling vessel oil to other marine
bunkering operators. Despite a slimmer margin,
the related profitability was largely guaranteed.
Given that we have successfully opened up
procurement channels of stable supply and
lower costs, we expect that the sales volume
brought by this channel will continue to grow in
2016;

Subsequent the shrinking of the direct supply
of vessel fuel to the ships, some of the logistics
tools (in particular, large bunker ships) were not
in their optimal use. We have decided to lease
some of the vessels through bare rentals to earn
reasonable ship rental fees in return and lower
the operating costs;

We target to ride on the advantages of Hong
Kong being an international trading and financial
hub to carry out the trading of oil and chemical
products. This product category has seen the
international market prices long remaining at
low levels and is very suitable for the supply to
private refineries in China as the raw materials
for production or for oil mixing. Given the
remarkably massive demand at present and
the model of back-to-back transaction for most
of the cases, we are subject to little price or
market risks and are only required to cautiously
assess the payment ability of the end buyer
before deciding whether to use letter of credit,
promissory note or deposit before payment
on receipt as the means of transaction. It is
estimated that the Group will achieve prominent
increase in the volume of this type of trading,
generating margins that will not be narrower
than that of selling vessel fuel;
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The oil products business in China will undergo
large scaled expansion according to the strategy
of stimulating development through end user sales,
encompassing a scope even wider than that in Hong
Kong featuring more extensive geographic span and
area:

(1)  We plan to build a sizeable network of refueling
stations in Guangdong Province to stimulate
the development of related businesses such
as the storage and delivery of oil products and
oil mixing. We will adopt a diversified mode of
cooperation in building the network and strive to
realize its intended complementary functions in
the shortest possible timeframe. The modes of
cooperation include: (A) the inclusion of refueling
station in the joint establishment of NG autogas
stations with the end users. Currently, a refueling
station in Yingde has commenced operation
and the refueling station in Yangjiang is in the
way of application. Moreover, we have already
joined hands with some transportation fleets
to construct diesel supply stations at Baoan in
Shenzhen, Tianhe in Guangzhou and Yangjiang
in Yangchun; (B) identification of opportunities to
acquire existing refueling stations or operators
owning a network of refueling stations. We
have already been negotiating with 2 stations
in Zhuhai and one station in Huizhu district in
Guangzhou, as well as one operator owning over
20 stations, and one operator owning 4 refueling
stations and preparing to set up 5 more refueling
stations in Shunde; (C) identification of suitable
sites for the construction of refueling stations.
Currently we have found suitable locations in
Zhongshan, Yingde, Xintang and Zhaoging
and have started the preliminary works for the
construction. Moreover, we have leased and
commenced the operation of a refueling station
in Zhaoqing right way;
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We will continue to expand the marine bunkering
business in the river and coastal region in
southern China. At present, we have been
closely cooperating with a number of operators
with long history, and might eventually acquire
or merge with these partners to expedite our
development. Our marine bunkering business
has currently extended from Guangdong
to Fujian, and the Group has established a
shipping company in Pingtan, Fujian to fortify
the logistic support for its marine bunkering
business. Furthermore, we will leverage on the
cooperation with Conch to facilitate the layout
of marine bunker stations in Pearl River, Beijiang
River, Xijiang River and the western coastal line
in Guangdong Province. We have at present
chosen to set up marine bunker stations at
two locations in Sanshui and Yangjiang to
provide comprehensive bunkering services to
a large number fishing vessels and Conch’s
transportation vessels (transporting cement and
raw materials for cement production) sailing
between Guangdong and Guangxi;

We will continue to encourage and promote
the wholesale business of oil products. To this
end, we will need to continuously perfect the
warehousing and delivery system in the coastal
areas in southern China. Moreover, we have
also taken aim at two mid-sized oil storage
depots in Tianjin and Qingdao for inclusion to
the warehousing and delivery system of the
Group through mergers and acquisition or long-
term lease with the objective of strengthening
our competitiveness in procurement of oil and
chemical products in the northeastern region
(including Korea and Japan), which will in turn
complement our move to expand the wholesale
market of oil products in northern China;
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(4) BBFEFEEBEGKE) AR QA (Ba Fu Yang
NewOcean Energy (Zhuhai) Company Limited,
“Bai Fu Yang Company”), which owns a
70,000 tons oil storage depot in Gaolan Port,
Zhuhai, will ride on the quality advantages of its
imported oil products and its capital advantages
to expand its scale of import business and
domestic trading of oil products. Bai Fu Yang
Company has entered into agreements with a
number of large oil storage depots in southern
China, which allow it to secure the capability to
receive large quantity of goods via short-term
leases, creating competitive edges for promoting
trading business of this type.

5.3 NG business

Despite a less than desirable market environment, the
NG business represents an essential key business
to be developed in order to secure the long-term
benefits of the Group, and will be invested with
ample manpower and resources to strive for the
establishment of a highly efficient network of autogas
stations through the setup of C-LNG autogas
refueling stations in prime locations, with the aim of
creating long-term stable revenues for the Group.
Currently, the Group has started to identify suitable
partners and desirable locations in the neighboring
areas of Guangzhou for the construction of an ultra-
low temperature NG receiving terminal station with
a capacity of approximately 200,000 cubic meters,
forming a giant end user sales network to provide
comprehensive logistics and supply services.

Other than adjustments to the cooperation with
Conch (construction of refueling stations followed
by construction of C-LNG refueling station), the
cooperation with Sinopec Guangdong branch has
been terminated. Around eight existing projects
promoted by the Group include:
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(1)

LNG autogas refueling station on Shima Road,
Guangzhou — under this project, a land parcel
of approximately 2,800 square meters has
been rented. The project is currently subject
to approval by NDRC and is expected to
commence construction works by the end of
March;

LNG autogas refueling station in Huadu District,
Guangzhou - under this project, a land parcel
of approximately 11,000 square meters has
been rented. The project has already been filed
with NDRC and is currently under construction,
and is expected to complete the works and
commence operation by the end of March and
the end of May, respectively;

LNG autogas refueling station in Shabu,
Huangput, Guangzhou - under this project,
a land parcel of approximately 4,000 square
meters has been rented. The project has already
been filed with NDRC and is currently under
construction, and is expected to complete the
works and commence operation by the end of
March and the end of May, respectively;

LNG autogas refueling station in Junan,
Shunde - under this project, a land parcel of
approximately 3,000 square meters has been
rented. The project has already been filed with
NDRC and is currently under construction,
and is expected to complete the works and
commence operation by the end of March and
the end of May, respectively;

Gas and oil station in Xintang, Guangzhou
— under this project, a land parcel of
approximately 7,000 square meters has been
rented. The project has already been filed with
NDRC, while its layout planning and design has
been approved and is currently under planning
and approval. It is expected to commence
construction works and operations by the end of
June and the end of the year, respectively;
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(6) Gas and oil station on Zhaoging Main Road,
Zhaoqing — under this project, a land parcel of
6,800 square meters in total has been rented.
The project has already been filed with NDRC,
and is currently under approval by the provincial
Economic and Information Commission. It is
expected to commence construction works,
complete the works and commence operations
by the end of March, the end of September and
the end of November, respectively;

(7) Gas and oil station in Wangbu, Yingde — under
this project, a land parcel with a site area of
15,000 square meters n total has been rented.
The project has already been filed with NDRC,
and has completed planning and approval
procedures. It is currently under construction
and is expected to commence construction
works and operations by the end of July and the
end of October, respectively;

(8) The Group is currently negotiating with a non-
related party to acquire one project company
which owns 10 LNG filling stations currently
at the stage of application for construction in
Guangdong. The acquisition is at the stage of
negotiating and performing the due diligence
work. The Group has not yet entered into any
sale and purchase agreement.

Apart from the above projects, the Group has been
discussing with multiple parties in relation to LNG
autogas refueling station projects in different locations
in Guangdong Province. We believe that new projects
will continue to emerge, and more autogas refueling
stations will commence operations upon the approval
of each of the projects and the implementation of
construction works as planned.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2015, apart from the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$1,108,142,000, the Group also pledged its oil
vessels with carrying value of approximately HK$90,244,000 to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.

Employees and Employee Benefits

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 1,231 (2014:
1,166) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and other
regions in the PRC. The Group remunerated the employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
practice. Employee benefits provided by the Group include a
mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance scheme
and an employee share option scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that none
of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term,
instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions for
retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the bye-
laws of the Company (these provisions are described in the
paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The board
of directors believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors (the “Board”)

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2015 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company.

The Board establishes the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
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processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.

With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2015:

Name of director

EERR
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REERTAEFSERLRERER

TRERHE2016F12A31HIEFERS
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Number of Meetings

Executive Directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Attended
HESERE
HITERE -
B (FE) 4/4
BB (EFMEWEE) 4/4
T4 4/4
AR 4/4
EXRE 4/4
FE 4/4
BUHHTEE -
K975 4/4
R B JE 4/4
XAl 4/4
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During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.

Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is
summarized as follows: —

Annual Report 2015 —Z—RFFH

FA- AAEEEEHRIARAEBHH G
BREH BEEERMREREH - KF
TREZMETTEAR - R LRGN E L
EERENEI  MERMERIERALTA
FIE SRR S e BE ©

EREFEBRL2EARANEFTEEENE
Eggd MEHAARANEBLREBZHE
WREH - EWIELNTAREZTG NARAH
REEMEBRNER - ARRCHEIBUE
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Type of Training

Name of director Attended
EElE H e
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BME(ERE) A, B
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLELHE) A, B
Cen Ziniu T4 A B
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR A B
Siu Ka Fai, Brian FEY A, B
Wang Jian FEX A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony w95 A, B
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIESE A B
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEMEL A B
Notes: it

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to
corporate governance law and practice

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and
finance and on the industry generally
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Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.

Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s bye-
laws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

Dr. Xu Mingshe (“Dr. Xu”), who is to retire by rotation in the
coming annual general meeting, has served as an independent
non-executive director for more than 9 years. The Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of Dr. Xu for re-
appointment as non-executive director and concluded that he
has satisfied the independence factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, that there are no relationships or circumstances
which would interfere with the exercise of his independent
judgment in taking up his role as independent non-executive
director, and that he has the required professionalism, integrity
and knowledge to continue to fulfill his role as an independent
director despite his length of service of more than 9 years. The
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Nomination Committee also noted the positive contributions
of Dr. Xu to the development of the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed
contributions supported by his valuable professional knowledge
and experience, and from his active participation at meetings.
Hence, the Nomination Committee recommended to the Board
that Dr. Xu be nominated for re-election as independent non-
executive director..

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.

Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. Through direct communication
and meetings with the management, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the financial reporting of the Company, including the
Company’s interim and annual reports, and the financial position
of the Company as disclosed in the financial reports, and it
has also reviewed the engagement of external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2015 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

o Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

° Financial reporting process and risk management functions;
° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

o Review of interim results and audited financial statements.

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:
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Shum Chun, Lawrence = 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.

Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in the
year to review and discuss the structure, diversity, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Board. The Nomination Committee
considers that all Board members possess the relevant skill and
knowledge in the area of the business operation of the Group.
The Nomination Committee also considers that an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on
the Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2015, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.
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Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include the
Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the bye-laws
of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of certain
rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for easy
reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the bye-
laws of the Company should be referred to for a full account of
such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.
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Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to ensure
all necessary information and appropriate updates are made
available to investors in a timely manner through corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website under the column of “Investor Relations”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 22/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered

ARFINE EHE R AR X5 2 A5
b AAEER  EWEAEARE -

ZEEn &

FR- BN/ EBRTFARRARZEMEY « 7
=R EEITZERMT

Fees paid/payable

BRF54R it B2ft EFER

HK$’000

FEIT

Audit services BT IRTS 3,360

Non-audit services IEEETARTS 769

Total A&t 4,129
Accountability and Audit BERBEREH

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 85.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 9
to 57 of the annual report under the heading “Management
Discussion and Analysis”. In summary, the Group’s revenue
from operations for the year was down by 20.98% reflecting the
substantially low price of energy products compared with last
year to approximately HK$15,515 million. The total sales volume
of energy products increased by 37.36% to approximately
3,886,000 tons. The gross profits increased by 33.59% to
approximately HK$1,840 million with gross profit margin improve
from 7.01% in 2014 to 11.86% in 2015. The profit for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company from operations
decreased by 15.95% to approximately HK$757 million mainly
due to the net exchange loss of approximately HK$292 million
arising from the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”) in the second
half year of 2015. The basic earnings per share from operations
decreased by 16.39% to HK$0.51. The equity attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 9.76% to approximately
HK$5,350 million.

There are a number of principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group as follows: (i) global economy is gloomy especially China’s
economy growth has slowed down in recent years; (i) the
fluctuation of the oil and LPG price in the global market; (i) PRC
government’s policies in promoting green energy such as NG
and; (iv) the substantial fluctuation in RMB exchange rates. The
above are not intended to be an exhaustive list of all principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group. These may change over
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time as new risks and uncertainties emerge and others cease to
be of concern. Looking ahead, the global economy will remain
uncertain. However, as necessity goods, the rigid demand for
energy products will continue to exist, thus LPG and oil products
are still the core business for the Group In addition, pursuant to
the existing PRC government policies, the demand for LNG is
expected to grow in coming years and the Group is now actively
developing the retail network of LNG in Guangdong province.

Particular of the major suppliers and customers of the Group
are set out on page 76 of the annual report. The Directors are
satisfied with the relationship with customers and suppliers.
The Directors recognize the importance of having good working
relationship with its staff as staff are the key assets to the Group.
The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff nor significant labour disputes or industrial actions. The
Group did not experience any significant staff turnover especially
for the management level. The Directors believe that the Group
has good working relationship with its staff as a whole. In
respect of corporate social responsibility, our target is to commit
to motivating the low-carbon growth of the industry, providing
green energy for the developing of the whole society and taking
into account the needs of our stakeholders, including impact
on the environment and the communities in which we operate.
The details of the above are set out in the Environmental Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2015
published on the Company’s website www.newoceanhk.com.

Save and except for one deviation from the Corporate
Governance Code as set out under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the details of the deviation are set out on page 58 of
the annual report), the Company has complied in all material
respects with all relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Results and Appropriation
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 87 and 88.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.5 cents per share to the shareholder whose names appear
on the register of members of 6 June 2016 amounting to
approximately HK$37,010,000. On 18 March 2016, the number
of shares issued and fullx paid is 1,480,398,216.
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Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 208 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately HK$22,717,000
(2014: HK$101,722,000) on property, plant and equipment
to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant. Details of the
movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, sale or redemption of securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Reserves of the Group and the Company

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 91 and page 92.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

Annual Report 2015 —Z—RFFH
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REERBESTFXE - EENBBRES
REFIRE208 7 -

YME BRRERMG

F R KN EE EZH 422,717,000% T
(2014 : 101,722,000 70 ) R % - R X
BELE UIBARRAE BT E R HE -
AEBREANDE  BERIXEZEZFH
5 HRNGRAU SRR E16 -

i % N

PR B B R IE O BN AR B B TS SRARFRE 33

HE HERBOFATRZLEHTES
R2015F 12 A31BIEFER > KAl
TRHBARMERE  HEREBERAR A
2 FhEE -

EREREATERE

FRAAEERFREOEDFBEHRN
ZIFAREEB RN -

F91Kk92E

KRR 2015F 12 A31 BAl ok AR &
MEENT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT BT

Contributed surplus N 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings fRE Y F 296,300 187,641
297,967 189,308
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 13% and
36% (2014: 17% and 51%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 7% and 23%
(2014: 19% and 49%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$667,000.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond and Mr. Wang Jian,
executive directors and Dr. Xu Mingshe, independent non-
executive director, shall retire by rotation from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All
directors retiring at the annual general meeting have offered
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the

period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2015, the interests of certains directors and
chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company

EERERTHRARIRKNREMKG
PR

R20156F12A31H  EFRETBTHAE
MFE B8 ARRR G REMBEEE 2K
B RBBROT  MEARRAREZESFR
HRE 510 55 352 1645 TE SRR IR A B Pt i 75
BErEwMAEzD REESLTARE
FHTELFRDH2BETAUHE  BAANEE
NaE| R FT EmINT

(a) FLTFISHMEMEO0.10 BT HERPZIF
2

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held FritZE 2 F
Name of director Capacity RSB 8T ERTRG
BN S BEBRARR Bipk
Executive directors:
HITEE:
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 56,872,358 3.84
21 En#EEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15
AR RE (Mt 1)
547,651,638 36.99
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 57,623,558 3.90
2E EmEA A
Other (Note 2) 73,616,892 4.97
HEm(Haz2)
131,240,450 8.87
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.15

=Pz gnst EmEA A
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(b)

Notes:

1.

These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung,
and were the same block of shares as referred to in note
1 under section (a) in the paragraph headed “Substantial
Shareholders” below. Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, 15% by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and
15% by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr.
Shum Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by
Uniocean.

(b)

Share options
Exercise Number of
price per underlying
Name of director Date of grant Share  Exercise period Shares
4 3.3 gHBeMH SRITER TEH HRRABE
(HK$)
(E1)
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 16/6/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 - 6,626,905
iRz 05\ 31/12/2015
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 15/5/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 - 4,970,179
EES: 31/12/2015

Note: The share options in this section are held by the relevant

directors in the capacity of beneficial owner.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group,
none of the directors, chief executive nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2015.
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B70% - 15% f15% °

2. ZEERTNIEZALAEERLOIESH
P48 490,779,280 % HI15%

MRk iE
Outstanding
Outstanding share
share option option as at
as at 1.1.2015 31.12.2015
#1.1.2015 Expired during  #31.12.2015
AETHEZ the year AETE
Tk RENEH R
6,626,905 (6,626,905) -
4,970,179 (4,970,179) -

e AR BRE T A EE AR S
HAEANGORA -

BEXEEERETEERERAEER
WEREAmMRETHERARFZEZAR
BARMIN - B2015F 12 A31H » &
BE IEZTHRABRESERHZHME
ALTWEFEB R QR RZHE QR ZFE
FREDIAR ©
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Share Options

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

Outstanding at

MR

RABZBREAEBFBENG AV BRE
Bt 34 -

TRBEARD TR 2T -

Expired during Outstanding at

1.1.2015 the year 31.12.2015

Category 1: Directors Option type #1.1.2015 HWER 7 31.12.2015
SE1:EE &5 HWERITE EHA HWERTE
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 20068 6,626,905 (6,626,905) _
AR
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 2006A 4,970,179 (4,970,179) —
N

11,597,084 (11,597,084) —
Category 2: Employees 2006A 9,940,358 (9,940,358) —
S22 AT

21,537,442 (21,537,442) —
Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures BEROEESZRHE

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether

B EXPRREESN - ARF] - REBRAFL
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Connected Transaction

The Group had the following continuing connected transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

On 18 December 2013, Sound Management Services Limited
(“Sound Management”) entered into an office tenancy agreement
with Ever Lucky Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and wholly owned by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office
premises owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on 23/F., The
Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period of one
year commencing on 1 January 2014. On 29 December 2014,
Sound Management and Ever Lucky Limited entered into another
office tenancy agreement to extend the rental period for another
one year commencing on 1 January 2015 with the same monthly
rental fee. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate
amount of the rental paid or payable to Ever Lucky Limited was
HK$4,560,000.

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreement governing such transaction that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Group’s continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the
Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders ETERE

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders 2015412 A31H » RBEAR KR ES
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the NMEAE G0 336 (KA EER Y 7 T ERE &
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the RN BRETEERFETRAER £
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief N BE RN A IRE AN E AN T
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company EBANANTIDBETRAZ B AR -

of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued share

ordinary capital of the

shares held company

Long/Short X QT Fr{EF 4T

Name of shareholder positions Capacity ERTEER ERTERF

BRMR Be #ke 213 &8Ae Bt

Uniocean Long Beneficial owner 490,779,280 33.15

i e EmEAA

Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15

=N S RicEzm(Mat1)

Long Family interest (Note 2) 56,872,358 3.84
5= RictEm (Mt 2)
FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Long Interest of controlled corporation 75,706,000 5.11
(Note 3)
e G A RS EES (HiE3)
Fullerton Fund Management  Long Investment manager (Note 3) 75,706,000 5.11
Company Ltd. FE BRI (K7E3)

Notes: Htat -

1. These represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held 1. ZEROGDHEEIBZLZREBZDHEE
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. & BB R AR R 2 490,779,280 Ik iR
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the - (RIESERFETHAERRMD REHA
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in P ziER]@BWE1)  WHREBEN
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the AL ETURGERFEE °
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

2. These represent the same block of 56,872,358 shares held 2. HEBRMHUEBIHAZLIZEESVELLET
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu @A 256,872,358t HR(RIEF
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief REZTHAERKRD REBERN T 2 #
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and @) WHER AR INAZT AR GESRE

were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.
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3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd. as investment manager
is deemed to own a total of 75,706,000 shares through various
funds under its management. Fullerton Fund Management
Company Ltd.’s entire interest is indirectly owned by FFMC
Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 15 October 2014, Sound Agents Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a facility agreement
for a syndication loan facility of up to US$105,000,000 for the
purpose of financing the general working capital requirements of
the Group and refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group. The loan to be made to Sound Agents
Limited upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in 3
instalments, 10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date
which falls 24 months after the date of first drawdown, 15%
of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls 30
months after the first drawdown and the remaining 75% of the
utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls 36 months
from the date of first drawdown.

On 4 September 2015 the Company entered into a facility
agreement for a syndication loan facility of US$170,000,000 for
the purpose of financing the general working capital requirements
of the Group and refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any
member of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in five instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
12 months after the date of first drawdown, 10% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 18 months after
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the date of first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 24 months after the date of
first drawdown, 12.5% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 30 months after the date of first drawdown, and
the remaining 55% of the utilized amount is repayable on the
date which falls 36 months after the date of the first drawdown.

Under the above facility agreement, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2015 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 40.89% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Deloitte.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
W FRERRAR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 87 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit

HHhG ¢
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AV 2 CIE S

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
e Bm REM T E R

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EE2015F 12 531 HILFE
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FRET F&T
Revenue WA 6 15,514,990 19,633,037
Cost of sales SHE RN (13,675,086) (18,255,810)
Gross profit EF 1,839,904 1,377,227
Other gains and losses Hupris MEs1E 8 (343,596) 15,677
Other income EH A A 8 113,141 248,534
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HY B (352,071) (251,656)
Administrative expenses THXZ H (282,310) (228,938)
Finance costs BhE R AN 9 (194,953) (226,210)
Share of profits of joint ventures AMEE BT 2,631 1,713
Share of profits (losses) of associates G HE & A &% A (E518) 13,009 (14,129
Profit before taxation BR A5 A g A 11 795,755 922,218
Taxation Fi1E 10 (36,783) (21,312)
Profit for the year F N A 758,972 900,906
Other comprehensive expense ,ﬁ\ﬂiﬂ’i\ﬁﬁuﬂ
ltem that will not be reclassified to eEMHEIERER
profit or loss: ZIE B :
Exchange differences arising HwE R REE
on translation to presentation EEZIER
currency =% (210,056) 4,810
ltems that may be reclassified BEfE Al pe e BT FEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEx AR :
Fair value gain (loss) on available AIHHEREZATF
for sale investment BEE(E8) 8,932 (87,5083)
Reclassified to profit or loss upon BEHE—EE28BA
the disposal of certain amount HEERERER
of available for sale investment DR EZK 17,898 7,588
(183,226) (25,105)
Total comprehensive income for the S R4 2 E W=
year 575,746 875,801

HHhG ¢
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
ireBam L EM R a T

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EE2015F 12 531 HILFE
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt F#&iT FAETT
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMRFEREF
Owners of the Company RATHER A 756,643 900,270
Non-controlling interests JEFEHIRE 2,329 636
758,972 900,906
Total comprehensive income fEfhBEE i
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEBA 573,529 875,168
Non-controlling interests JE RS 2,217 633
575,746 875,801
Earnings per share FRAF
Basic BEAR 15 HK$0.51 HK$0.61

Diluted #E 15 HK$0.51 HK$0.60
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re MR R

At 31 December 2015

R2015% 12 431 HilF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
k3 FEIT FETL
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - HEs s 16 1,506,653 1,642,891
Land use rights - 3 5P A A 17 266,611 268,426
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEBENHERA 18 7,214 8,527
Goodwill Fﬁ =2 19 658,648 668,139
Other intangible assets H i & B 20 357,310 417,720
Interests in associates BN A RE e 21 15,960 71,766
Interests in joint ventures A%ﬂé%*féﬁu 22 21,332 19,969
Available for sale investment AIHEHERE 23 37,770 81,958
Deposits paid BfiEe 24 663,005 120,472
Deferred tax assets REBIBE E 35 3,197 7,312
3,537,700 3,307,180
Current assets :R!ﬂiﬁ
Inventories FE 25 260,285 444,082
Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUE 5 BRI R UL
mh? 26 2,518,348 3,053,093
Other debtors, deposits and HMEWERR &S
prepayments INSEUN) TAIE 26 1,890,558 1,414,734
Amounts due from associates FEHW;‘%A’“ FRIE 27 124,303 342,586
Amount due from a joint venture I —ZRE ﬁ%v’( 1,078 =
Derivative financial instruments ?ﬁi,ﬁ\ﬁ%lﬂ 43 12,378 1,222
Land use rights - 3 5P A A 17 11,701 11,313
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEBENHERA 18 822 872
Properties held for sales BEEFEmE 157,754 185,035
Properties under development for SFEERPYE
sales 28 211,959 224,936
Pledged bank deposits B IRRITIE K 29 1,108,142 3,522,442
Bank balances and cash IRITHEH NS 29 1,569,937 1,738,621
7,867,265 10,938,936
Current liabilities ﬁﬁﬁ
Trade creditors and bills payable EREZERRENSEE 30 641,816 1,378,694
Other creditors and accrued charges ﬁ‘r&ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ K% fE Jr%)fﬁ 214,952 353,592
Amount due to an associate JE — KBt & A R FIE 31 8,706 =
Amount due to a joint venture Fgﬁ—ﬁé\%ﬁ:\¥§ﬂlﬁ 31 479 509
Derivative financial instruments PTEMB T A 43 25,785 3,600
Tax liabilities MBAaE 60,031 49,369
Borrowings secured by pledged 53] ETR?‘?%ETTT?KF&EW
bank deposits (BN
— repayable within one year — AR—FANEERE 32 1,370,614 4,101,395
Borrowings secured by other assets B Efth & E R E R
— repayable within one year — BR—FAEE 32 11,227 11,227
Borrowings unsecured EERAE R
— repayable within one year — AR —FANEE 32 1,532,972 2,126,914
3,866,582 8,025,300
Net current assets mENEERE 4,000,683 2,913,636

Total assets less current liabilities REERADAER 7,538,383 6,220,816

456
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re MR R

At 31 December 2015

R2016% 12 A31 Aif
2015 2014
NOTQS HK$°000 HK$’000
itz3 FHET FAET
Capital and reserves BE R
Share capital &N 88 148,040 148,040
Share premium and other reserves B 3% (8 M E b 5 5,202,383 4,726,560
Equity attributable to owners of the KRB ZHEB ANEGERE
Company 5,350,423 4,874,600
Non-controlling interests FEPE il =S 38,193 31,184
Total equity EEs 5,388,616 4,905,784
Non-current liabilities EinEIAR
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBRE 35 116,012 131,147
Borrowings secured by other assets ~ HH A EEREER
— repayable over one year — BR—F&EE 32 30,404 41,631
Borrowings unsecured EEIRIE K
— repayable over one year — AR —FREE 32 2,003,351 1,142,254
2,149,767 1,315,032
7,538,383 6,220,816
The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 207 were BEXECN2016F3 A 18 HEH IR 2
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on E8TE207T B2 iR Mk - WA FNIIE
18 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: EREESE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun Lawrence
Hu =i
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

FRE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTCHE B
Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests

13 &t
Bk BRER WHER BEBGE  ERER WRNGE REER BARBE  REER  RERN @2  FRANR

HK8000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKB'O00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
7T 7T 7T 7T 7T 7T FET FET 7Er  FEr FEn TEr TEn
(Note j (Note i)
) (ki)

M1 January 2014 3820145
1A1A 148340 1,450,967 122,085 40,799 208,046 3,743 (19,658) 1,667 (127) 2,139,674 4,095,536 21261 4,116,797

Poftforthe year AR _ - - - - - - - - 900,270 900,270 636 900,906
Exchange RE B3

diferences arising ~ E4 &4

on tranglation EiEE

to presentation

currency - - - - 4,813 = = = = = 4813 8] 4810
Farvaluelosson W HERE

avalable for sale ~ ATEEE

investment - = = = = - - - - a0y - TNy
Reclassified to profit &~ HE

or loss upon HAkiHE

the disposal of  REREH

certain amount of 4%

avalablefor sl EHE

investment = = = = = = 7,588 = = = 7,588 - 7,588
Total comprehensive £AZE N

income (expense) (it )&

for the year = = = = 4813 = (29,915) = = 900,270 875,168 633 875,801
Incorporationof A3

subsicaries with X KB

non-controling A7

interests - - - - - - - - - - - 9,290 9,290
Appropriations ik - - - 5,851 = = = = = (5,851) = = =
Dividend paid BfikE

(note 14) (Hit1e) = = = = = = = = e L T - [BasEY
Repurchassof  EIEELERA

ordnary shares  (#233)

Inote 39 B0 (11250 - - - - - - - - (1) - ()
M1 December  H2014F

2014 12A31H 148040 1439717 122,085 46,650 212,859 3,743 (49,673) 1,667 (127) 2,949,539 4,874,600 31,184 4,905,784

7l
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
R8BS EH %

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FORCHE AR

Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests
; Ef
k% BRER WA ERER RRREE KRG MARRE  RMER  GEE g FEINR
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note | (Note i)
(at)  (Wti)

Proftforthe year AT - - = B - - - = = 756,643 756,643 2,329 758,972
Exchange RAE BAIE

diferences arising ~ E4EE

on translation EiEE

to presentation

currency - - - - (209,944) - - - - - (209,944) (112)  (210,066)
Fairvaug ganon  TfEERE

avalable for sale ~ HATE

investment fig - - - - - 8,832 . . - 8932 . 898
Reclassffied to proft HE-Z&E

orloss upon WkiE

the disposalof ~ REEEH

certain amount of A3

aalableforsale  BAR

investment = = = = = - 17,898 - - - 17,898 - 17,898
Total comprehensive £A2E

(expense) income (it

for the year fg - - - - (209944 - 26,830 - = 756,643 573,529 2217 575,746
Incorporation of ~ FL A

subgioiares vith #5218

non-controling 2l

interests - - - - - - - - - - - 4,792 4792
Appropriations K = = = 1,857 = = = = = (1,857) = = =

Dividend paid Bfiks

(note 14) (Hit 1) - - - - - - - - - (97,706) (97,706) - (97,706)
Transfer to retained  EERIEFIH

profis upon BERIIR

expiration of share 247

options - - - - - (3,743) - - - 3,743 - - =
M 31 December 120155
2015 128318 148040 1439717 122,085 48,507 2,915 - (22,743) 1,667 (121) 3,610,362  52350,423 38193 5388616

Notes: KiaE -

()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between (i) NE B 2 R e 1 IR BN R Rk 9
the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of ZAREEREKERARZEA - RHEE
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were MEREOFE - BARAIMREK 1999 F 4 A
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of 14 BRI 2 BB EELTHE &M BEITIRG 2
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of HEEZZE%E -
arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

(i)  The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development (i) ZEEBRBEEEBRERFEARLME(SH
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after Bl )z =@ kARG B B A BB
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic BHFMDREEERE —REEHES -
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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TE-RFFR

B E2015F 1231 HILFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Profit before taxation F A5 K 795,755 922,218
Adjustments for: T
Share of profits of joint ventures DIEE B EEF (2,631) (1,713)
Share of (profits) losses of DIEE AT CHEA)
associates &8 (13,009) 14,129
Finance costs B AR AR 194,953 226,210
Interest income B WA (110,808) (231,229)
Loss (gain) on fair values changes of T4 B8 #% T EAF(E
derivative financial instruments W EE (PT1S) 33,690 (19,083)
Gain on deemed disposal of WR A HEEE AR
associates Z P15 - (21,860)
Loss on disposal of available for HEAHEERE Y
sale investment &8 17,898 2,528
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - HER KRS
equipment e 88,587 85,182
Loss on disposal and written off of ﬁ%&%ﬁ%%% e
property, plant and equipment Hees K SR 1a 4,632 875
Amortisation of land use rights T b R S 5RIE
3] 10,806 10,623
Amortisation of prepaid lease BEENEERIE
payments for coast B 5 860 867
Amortisation of other intangible HihfEf & s
assets 43,404 27,050
Operating cash flows before LEBESEHA LLER
movements in working capital ERE 1,064,137 1,015,797
Decrease in inventories &R 174,820 354,849
Decrease in trade debtors and bills FEWE B IR ERE R
receivable oA 515,058 140,452
Increase in other debtors, deposits HEmBEWERR - He &k
and prepayments ?Eﬁmlﬁi“ﬂﬂ (457,168) (714,389)
Decrease (increase) in amount due JrE LA B 2 X B K08
from associates Ve (i‘le]) 218,283 (663,470)
Increase in amount due from a joint JEW—RE & HEFKIE
venture 0 (1,078) =
Increase in properties under FEERPYEEM
development for sales - (16,695)
Decrease in trade creditors and bills ~ JEfIE 5 BREN FE 2%
payable Vs (723,448) (999,180)
(Decrease) increase in other creditors Eﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ KR FEETE
and accrued charges ORI )& AN (77,038) 52,396
Increase in amount due to an FEf— %H&ﬁ%ﬁ’_\j KIE
associate 0 8,706 =
Decrease in amount due to a joint R —RE&EEERIE
venture > (30) —
Decrease in properties held for sales #7513 & W25 2> 17,377 26,285
(Increase) decrease in derivative PTHEM T A (M)
financial instruments > (22,661) 2,471

456
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEREeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EE2015F 12 531 HILFE
2015 2014
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
izt F#&iT FAETT

Cash generated from (used in) mEEE (TR RS

operations 716,958 (801,484)
Income tax paid AR EFTERL (27,708) (22,134)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBEE(FFA)AR&

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE 689,250 (823,618)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRED
Interest received 2 R F B 86,670 158,602
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B8~ &) (2 $0BR P

(net of cash and cash BeReRERRE

equivalents acquired) IHE) 36(iv) (100,000) (125,786)
Dividend received from an associate  [AE& A & UEUR 2 21(a) 15,022 2,124
Addition of land use rights N Hb(E A (25,047) (33,343)
Purchase of property, plant and EEWHE  #RRRE

equipment (26,225) (149,580)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits Uz Bl 2 K 4R 1777 K 4,856,908 7,280,719
Placement in pledged bank deposits 172 K HE 1T (2,482,069) (6,947,814)
Refund of the registered capital from  — Rt QR B EME

an associate ViN 21(a) 61,432 —
Proceeds from disposals of property,  HEWE - #28 N RE

plant and equipment FTis - 356
Proceeds from disposal of available HERHEERERSG

for sale investment 53,120 22,133
Capital contribution to an associate m—REEARIHE (8,986) —
Capital contribution to a joint venture H—FRK&&RELEE - (6,357)
Loan advances to independent parties E X F¥E 5 - (233,600)
Repayment of loan advances from B EEER

independent parties - 403,664
Increase in deposits paid BEf&E 2380 (554,686) (79,652)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REEHELH PR

ACTIVITIES 1,876,139 291,466
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFE

—E—HFFH | 95

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MR
Interest paid BEASFE (153,084) (194,467)
New borrowings raised EEHIER 9,835,734 12,918,917
Repayment of borrowings BEER (12,303,705) (12,130,155)
Dividend paid B E (97,706) (84,554)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary [51 Fi e 3m AR 1) Sz H
shares - (11,550)
Capital contribution from a non- RKE—MBAFA
controlling shareholder of a FEEHINR R 2 &
subsidiary 4,792 9,290
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MRS (A EERS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B (2,713,969) 507,481
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeREREEBERARD
CASH EQUIVALENTS BE (148,580) (24,671)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Ex@#EziE
RATE CHANGES (20,104) 15,680
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERERTRLER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,738,621 1,747,612
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRREREFATRLER
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,569,937 1,738,621
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HR&RERBEQEHSH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRNIE S 1,569,937 1,738,621

456
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—=AN £+ 2
RE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company acts
as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB?”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements and convenience of the
financial statements users, the results and financial position
of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Defined benefit plans: Employee

HKAS 19 contributions
Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

—REH

ARRBDMRBREEMA L EHREE
RELAA  ERNEEEMERXSHHM
BERAR(BRA]) Em - E&ER
HEERARRBEMERARAR(NE
1) —ERRBRELXSEMKILZ A
Al e KRB DREERAT - REEZ
TEXBREERDHBRIABER(R
LR ERAR(TRAR]) ~ MamEH
MIHEEFEmM °

ARBZNEEBBARBIAR
¥ RASEREMEIERERE
ZEE - RREE AV BRI LT EY
BRERERE  ARE 2 FERMBEN
MABTT([B L)) (R A M |mK I IR
EB)RTR -

ERHITREESTERMBEREE
AT EEMBREERN])

RAFEE  AEEBXERBATHEE

SEMAR([BAGTMA®]) B
EARYBRELEANETA

BEGEAFE19 AERAFE &

SR AERT A B
BT HHELER  R2010FE 2012
ZABE] AR TR BB
B E LR 2 F

ERe:
BT BHRELER R 2011 FE2013
ZABE] AR TR BB
B E LR 2 F

ERe:

RAFEERH MRIE] T BB R
SREABAEERANFERBEFEL
MBRIBEMR - R K Fra W5
BRABZBREZTALBEEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre g R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

ERHIIREETEEMEREE
R(TEEMBREEN ] &)

ERBERRENZHTRIESTER
MIHEER

AR B AR R R A DA 2 AR M B R R
ERZHET REETEBHBHREE

effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

2016.
2018.

be determined.

Financial instruments®

Revenue from contracts with
customers®

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations'

Disclosure initiative'

Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer plants’

Sale or contribution of assets
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2.

gL

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

recognised in profit or loss,
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under
HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s investments in equity
securities of listed company that are currently classified as
available for sale investment may have to be measured at
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss).
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS
15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Ildentify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the other
new and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective is not expected to have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CQO”").
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3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline
with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its return.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted (please describe how the adjustment
to non-controlling interests is determined) and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see accounting policy above) less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement
to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue

from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are recognised so that to
write off the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. For vessels,
the residual value of each vessel is equal to the product of
its light weight tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at
dry dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as
they are incurred and depreciated these costs using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both
the land use rights and development cost for the property.
Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development costs of property comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially

recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful live less
impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the other
comprehensive income.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 45.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held to maturity investments.

Equity held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial
assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of AFS equity investment are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial ass}ets below).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange
gains and losses that are recognized in profit or losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary
asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised on other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits, amounts due from associates, trade
debtors and bills receivable, other debtors and refundable
deposits are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For AFS equity investments, a significant on prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
pbankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts prewously wntten off are credited to profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
|s recognlsed in profit or loss on the purohase sale, issue
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, amount due to a joint venture and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held for
trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivatiye, their risks and characteristics are
1 to those of the host cont
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been received and receivable is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets
relating to the sales and distribution of LPG/oil products
business and acquired in a business combination are
impaired that requires estimation of the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. The group performed
impairment assessment by estimating the value in use of
the cash-generating units in which the goodwill and the
intangible asset are attributable to, which approximately
the fair value less cost to sell. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents the rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or where
there are revision in future estimated cash flows due
to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amounts of goodwill and other
intangible assets are approximately HK$658,648,000 and
HK$357,310,000 respectively (2014: HK$668,139,000
and HK$417,720,000). There was no impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
2014. Details of the goodwill and other intangible assets
are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively.

Estimate of net realisable value of properties under
development for sales and properties held for sales

As at 31 December 2015, properties under development
for sales of approximately HK$211,959,000 (2014:
HK$224,936,000) and properties held for sales of
approximately HK$157,754,000 (2014: HK$185,035,000)
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value

respectively. The estimated net realisable value represents
estimated selling price less selling expenses and estimated
cost of completion which are estimated based on best
available information. Where there are any decrease in the
‘wt ated in;

Jpprice arlsmg from any changes to the
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 32, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.

Categories of financial instruments

BFEAREERMBEIR

REARER

AREZEAER R ERERAEERN
EEBBTARESREE - FEER
Y T8 (RS A AT R AR
KEH - AEE 2 EEFBE F R
BT -

AEEEARBIHBERFIB(EER
MEES2 I EE Z fE 7)) RA R R EE AR
EHEDZ(BREBTHRAN - RHHE -
fré 8 S AR B ) ) FTARLAX. ©

AEBEEBEARESKNAREBENR
ERZRARFERNEARE - AEE
B BBITH - XS RIEINERTT
ERREERG ZRITEFTNFEHEE
BEARE -

FAREERBREERGIE

MEIAZERN

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets HMBEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ EF K& EWFE(BER S
and cash equivalents) FERRESER) 5,532,909 8,912,994
Available for sale investment A EERE 37,770 81,958
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBETA 12,378 1,222
Financial liabilities MBAR
Amortised cost BESH AR 5,748,400 9,105,046
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBITA 25,785 3,600
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade debtors
and bills receivable, other debtors, deposits, available for
sale investment, amounts due from (to) associates, amount
due from (to) a joint venture, trade creditors and bills
payable, other creditors and accrued charges, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade debtors,
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies as disclosed in notes 26, 29 and 32
respectively.

756

HEWOCEMN 5

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE

AEBEZIENBIABERITERR
B BERRITER  BEESER
REWERE  EMEWIERR - S 7
HIERE - BURIBE R BRIE
KR/ N—REEEEFE  ENES
AR ENRE - RN R ER
B BRRITEMBIA - ZEUB
TRAZFBREMERE - TXH5HE
& E S T EA R 2 B M Al R K 7%
ERBBK - EREEREREEXE
R - ARER KBS A A R IR BUGE E 2

s ©
mGmEE
) EEER

ARARETHBARE AINERHE
ZEBE  SAEEATINERR o
AEEETERESER  RITE
BEAS - BEPRITEREE
K ASNEEE(FFIBE 2 BIR M
7126 29 M 32 W) °




1341

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #/EsEREBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A = =
RE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5.
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets

BE

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE(E)

mEmE(E)

U

B (&)
AEBIINESIECEREERE
BEERERPRZEEMENT :

Liabilities

iR

2015

2015

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET F#ET FET
United States Dollars E([EmT])

(“UsSD”) 7,353 11,852 1,322,600 856,150
RMB AR 352,390 2,682,202 - —
European Dollars BT ([T )

(“EURQO”) - — 186,887 —
During the financial years, the management has REMBFE - AI@FE?RDT%W?
entered into several derivative contracts to reduce TETASOREREERR
the exposure of currency risk. As at 31 December &- N2015F12A3818 " A f%
2015, the Group has outstanding deliverable forward £ ZE LA 587,575,000 AR Z

contracts with an aggregate notional amount of
approximately RMB587,575,000 for HKD/USD/EURO.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has outstanding
cross currency interest rate swap contracts with
an aggregate notional amount of approximately
USD84,282,000 in relation to RMB. The details of the
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note
43.

In addition, a number of subsidiaries of the Company
with functional currency of USD/HK$ have intergroup
W‘““"”m bg @ that are denommated in RI\/IB or verse visa, ‘

WALEBT  EL/BLTZR
ZR A A - B20145F12 A 31
H B# %%+ 5484,282,000
ETLZMABEARBRI X EHEF
KWHEH - STEMB TEZFF15
BRHFE43HE ©

BN« AR R BAIAET, T
BIESZIEAT - AEmy
ﬁ‘AE SRR - 2
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5.

B H5 ¥ I

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the currency risk is mainly arising from exchange
USD/HK$ against RMB/EURO and RMB/EURO
against USD/HK$. The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in USD/EURO against RMB and a 5% increase and
decrease in the RMB/USD/EURO spot rate and
forward exchange rate. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
the RMB/USD/EURO exchange rate and the RMB/
USD/EURO forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and derivative financial
instruments and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates or their fair value at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in forward exchange
rate. For monetary assets and liabilities, positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where RMB strengthen 5% against USD/EURO. For a
5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be negative. For
derivative financial instruments, a negative number
below indicates an decrease in post-tax profit where
RMB strengthen 5% against USD/HKD/EURO. For a
5% weakening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be positive.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. EXRARETERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMEREETEERREE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) G mEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEEE)

BREDWT(E)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD against RMB impact RMB impact EURO against RMB impact
RTRAERFE ABRRXE ETRARRRE
2015 2014 2015 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET TET AT
Increase (decrease) in profit R 1N
for the year (Note) (RD)
Hit)
— monetary assetsand  — SBEAER
liablities af 54,917 35,268 14,802 120,357 7,803 -
— derivative financial — (TERBT
instruments i - (955) (13,459) - (7,803) -
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding o5z EIBRENERRETHARKS
on bank balances, receivables and borrowings BTEB Y R EBHRTES - EI
denominated in USD or RMB or EURO and derivative BEZN « FEBE S R 42 2 LA R AT AL Bt
financial instruments as at year end. BT RAER YRR -

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%

IAKEZ KERGHREAT ZINERE R

increase and decrease in USD/HK$ against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure on
intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate used by
the management in the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated amounts due between subsidiaries of
the Group and adjusts its translation at the year end
for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive number
below indicates increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB strengthens 5% against USD/HKS.

MmE - TRAJET  BTAARE L
FARTHE% 2HBEE 5% RERE
AHEERA IR BB FE R ZHRELL
Ko BRENMEBEAKENE AR
ZERARBEEZREERESE
FTREFERHEBE L 5% ARKER
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. EXRARETERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREEEEERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) i) AC=)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEER(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DN (E)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD/HK$, there MARMRZET BT THKES -
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post- E'JAMTJ/){TﬁW%%ﬁ?&iﬁ?ﬁﬂ%i*ﬁ
tax profit for the year below: ERERZFE :
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAEIT FET
Increase in post-tax profit for the year 4RI 5114 % F1Z A0 31,988 104,114
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is TEERE  ARERERIT TR
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange MERZERE - BUXE DI T
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the REBEINERE -

exposure during the year.

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIE@E G
The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash AR ITHS R B 27 B4RTT
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the fﬁ%’\Zﬁ%ﬂ¥5)§Z§b C NEE VS
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank (THEZEAES RSN EAE

loans which charge interest at prevailing market rates.

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value SN - Rl R B D IR T
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate FHNEZEKREE AHAE
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings BT EEYEAFEENERRE - R
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December 201512 A31H B EWE
2015, the loan receivable included in other debtors HIREER RS HEt A A pE
exposed to fair value interest rate risk as the loan W BR 2k 7 FE UG E RN A FEE T
receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The Group’s KA o NEE 7 A FLENERRR
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed- TEYRTEEER(REER T
rate borrowings (see note 32 for details of these [E5E BHTEE32) « 5 A EfbfE UK ER
borrowings), loan receivable included in other debtors ZvEWBSR(ZEREWEZ Y %
(see note 26 for details of these loans receivable) and 1S B M08 RATABFE T A -
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed and B E B RT B U E S H (3%

receive floating interest rate swaps (see note 43 for ENMEMBIAZS
e derlvatlve financial mstruments) The  43) o ANE=[E E] 3 &
ERERSRENER
ﬁé%ﬁﬂﬂ ZEtER -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and EURO Interbank
Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”) arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and partially set off by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed and
receive floating interest rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
would decrease/increase by HK$16,050,000 (2014:
HK$15,914,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has
significant concentration risk on certain customers and the
loan advance to an entity.

As at 31 December 2015, the top ten largest trade debtors
amounted to approximately HK$2,111,378,000 (2014:
HK$2,348,751,000) and comprised around 85.2% (2014:
78.0%) of the Group’s trade debtors. The following table
shows the analysis of the top ten largest trade debtors by
their business nature and location etc:

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBEZ)

157 M5

R2015F12 A31H - B A FETE
EHLSAEEZZUBKELAZESEER
E R A& BERGRE AR ER#T 2
ERRAMEEEZFEHE ~AEEE—
tEERR—REEBRHEZER LAY
BAZEFRR -

MR2015F12 A31H @ B 10 & K &
W E 5B 4 A&2,111,378,000%8 T
(2014 : 2,348,751,0003 7T ) » fh A&
SEMEWE SIRNA85.2% (2014 :
78.0%) c TRETHI0MEKRE R
SRABLZERS B Kb @ 2 DT

Customers included in the top ten individual largest trade debtors

AREETUENRXELR AERCER
Number % of the total trade debtors Locations
#8 SELEAERAESL HE
2015 2015 2014 2015 and 2014
Sales of LPG HERILR 2 5 49.6 529 | PRC, Thailand
and others
HE  REREM
Sales of oil products HERM 8 5 35.6 2.1 PRC, HK and
others
HE EEREM
10 10 85.2 78.0

456

HEWOCEMN 5
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5.

porses el

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the customers of the Group are large wholesales,
trading or shipping companies in the PRC, Hong Kong
or overseas. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible to implement
credit monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtors, other debtors and deposits at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale and distribution of LPG
and oil products and thus exposed to the risk arising from
the fluctuation of the commodities price in the market.
The Group entered into a number of commodities swap
contracts during the year ended 31 December 2015 to
reduce the commodities price risk. As at 31 December
2015, the Group has outstanding commodities swap
contracts for LPG and oil products with aggregate
notional amounts of approximately USD2,190,000 and
USD9,240,000 respectively. The details of these derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in note 43.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the outstanding commodities swap contracts as at 31
December 2015. If the prices of LPG and oil had been 5%
higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$3,713,000 as a
result of changes in fair value of the commodities swap
contracts.

T

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREZARRBE ()

ERmRE ()

AEBRIHELBTE - FEREI
1 BHIMBAR - RAEEER
o AEEEEERAEETEEEERE
B DARECRERERER # 77 B 2R Uk 038 B AR
R BE AEEEEZHRHKR €55
WA AR 2 EUE 5 8RR - H YR
RRES 2 AT EIEIR - ARERBES B
NREWRE 2 FIRE B 50 2 B E TR

HRRZEF 7 RBEREEFRMET
ERBEEFNRZRT  MRDESRZ
EERBRAR -

EEmAE

AEEFZERFHERD HRER KR
M Rt EEREAMSEREREEM
EEZRR - #HZE2015F12A31 81t
FE  AEEEVETRARESEEGH
LUBE S mE R o 2015412 B
31H " BEZRESFED 542,190,000
% 7T 19,240,000 7t 2 B 1L & A S
MAREEZEREREL - ZSTEM
BTAZFBERMF43KE -

T XAtz 8RR 2 IR B 2015
F12ABZAmIE I NEE-
EREREHMA BB EA Tk
5%  NEBEEF R 2 Bk HE 0, R
A #78,713,0008 7T » LTI E @ E
ez AT EBE M -
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk on available for sale investment

The Group’s available for sale investment as disclosed
in note 23 are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2015. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate is decreased to 10% in the current year as
a result of the disposal of certain amount of available for
sale investments. A 10% (2014: 15%) change is used when
reporting equity price risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in equity price. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, if the market bid prices of
the listed investments had been 10% (2014: 15%) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s investment valuation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2015 would increase/decrease by HK$3,777,000
(2014: HK$12,294,000). This is mainly attributable to the
changes in fair value of the listed equity investments.

756

HEWOCEMN 5

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREEARRBE ()

A A H B 1R R 3 R A I B

AEEZAHHERE (RKIFE231HE)
Jy12 2015912 A31 B2 A FE:t &
At - NEB Y S ERER o

X Pl SR E AT Th R IR 2 3R H
RIAZZEZERRAKRET - 10%
(2014 : 15%) 2 BB HR RN R EEE
BEAEMEERZERER  TRBEE
BEYWEREBRAIER LR 2 T -
RE E2015F12 831 B IEFE © i
EWEREZTHEEG LR, TEK10%
(2014 : 15%) KT B HME & EFD
B AlAEERE E2015F12 A 31
BIEFEZRESHREBRIEN B
3,777,000/ (2014 : 12,294,000 7
) WD EZHR ETHEREERTF
B -
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has undrawn short
term borrowing facilities amounting to approximately
HK$12,339,711,000 (2014: HK$11,273,631,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash outflows on derivative instruments that settle on
a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the
projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

BEAREERMBIA(E)

MERREZARRBE ()

oA kg4

EEERPDECRRE  AEEEIER
FREEEERRENIRENFRRS
BEHE UWAAKEZXHEERM
B2WRERERENB2FE - BE
BE R IRITIE R 2 LA BER KRR E T
fERELLY °

MR2015F12 A31 B » AEEZ AR
EHE REE X A 12,339,711,000 74 7T
(2014 : 11,273,631,00077T) °

TRANAKREFRITENBRBEZHRT
BHZAHMBR - TRODERAKER
AEERMBARZEFRAHZARTAER
EREMEE - TRERMNERASZ
BERE - WA SRERFEEM R
B RIRBEBRSBEUZ2 AR M =HE

i m

AN TRFIAKENTEN B TR
MBEENIT - ZRREBRBEUNFELEE
ZUTETAERMRANA SR FER
o ERMNFUAYIFEER - KES
HMEZEZREBRHRZ W AHRMER
ZHEHNXREBE  AKETEMBTA
ZRBEEOMNRBENIBER
2 RAREEER/ANIMALE
BUETAZREREZRHEERE
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥EREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMEREETEEERKE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) EEZLmE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table TLEN B2 J T [
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2015
interest rate Over 2 years to cash flows R2015%
miEFs 1 year 5 years @XER 12A318
ERfI® 1£0E 25E5% ReRE ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
% FET FET FET FET FET
2015 2015
Non-derivative financial HTEBaE
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills ERHESEAR
payable ERZE - 641,816 - - 641,816 641,816
Other creditors Bl - 152,040 - - 152,040 152,040
Amount due to an BN —FHE LT
associate 3B - 8,706 - - 8,706 8,706
Amount due to a joint ER-ZaE0%
venture LR - 479 - - 479 479
Fixed interest rates TEER
borrowings 3.00 781,875 2,567 78,616 869,058 859,109
Variable interest rate FEEH
borrowings 2.87 2,203,974 1,092,186 930,261 4,226,421 4,089,459

3,794,890 1,094,753 1,008,877 5,898,520 5,751,609

o A T

Derivatives — net settlement  $74TE - £EFE

Interest rate swaps outflow  F| RS - 1,480 - - 1,480 1,480
Commodities swaps faliaad it
outflow - 16,783 - - 16,783 16,783
Derivatives — gross 1TETA - BEES
settlement
. Derivatives forward outfiow 7 EE S 691,845 691,845 691,845
Dl ow itk (696,701) (696,701) (696,701)
- 746 O

y  MEWOCEWS
~

c
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥EREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREEHEEERBEK(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) EEZLmE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continueq) BB RFREfRE(E)
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2014
interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows R2014E
MET 1 year 1 year 5 years BRER 12A31H
ERfI= 16/ 1EE 2EE5E Reng EEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET AT TET AT TET
2014 2014
Non-derivative financial FITEBEE
liabilities
Trade creditors and bills ERZ S5 RE
payable NEE - 1,378,604 - - 1,378,694 1,378,694
Other creditors HEfEMER - 333,721 - - 333,721 333,721
Amount due to a joint ER-ZAE0%
venture | - 509 - - 509 509
Fixed interest rates EEEH
borrowings 1.84 2,982,023 - - 2,982,023 2,955,965
Variable interest rate ZRER
borrowings 2.8 3,339,220 426,210 800,361 4,565,791 4,467,456
8,034,167 426,210 800,361 9,260,738 9,136,345
Derivatives — net settlement #7142 - BEF&E
Cross currency interest RNEHF|EiH
rate swaps/interest rate /HEBHRE
swaps outflow - 2,018 360 - 2,378 2,378
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

o the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments are set out in note 45.

-

H#%6

HEWOCEMN 5

®

BEAREERMBIA(E)

AFE

MBEERMBAB(IEETETA
ZRFESRFBARERED T RFR
TARRBERBELARBEBEAETE -

\/

o IRIEEERRAGH A E R EN T
SEEZUBEEZ AT ELERN
WMEEEmMET : &

e PTHEMBIARFTEIIEAKIRE
T AFFRIETAE T A Z HIRE
B2WSRMGAE - MA&E ME
TRAAREEERNGTE

EERR/REEVBHRRTIZEHKA
R BEERY AR REESR
HRFERE

P TEsATFEFEF BN
45 o
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6.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns, sales
of properties and rental income of oil vessels and LPG
bottles and subcontracting fee for the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

A

WA BRAFERAEERIIAREFHE
5 o PTUCER K B W ER 2 & BRORAT
BERARENIRE) #HEMEREEH
R BIERBBAREBDER 2 AF
B -REAFE  REBZRADH M
T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HE RS HBRIER 8,460,373 12,617,037
Sales of oil products 55 M M 6,331,336 5,201,885
Sales of electronic products HEETEM 659,404 1,699,397
Sales of properties SHEY % 35,731 54,997
Rental of LPG bottles HEREFIA 18,744 34,926
Rental of oil vessels HE MM - 12,152
Subcontracting fee B ER 9,402 12,643
15,514,990 19,633,037

Segment Information SHEEH

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

RERDERDBERAFEMAARRAF]
THEANETELLEARARE(TETEZRER
REDEBZEREFIREEERZKE
ARE - TERERKRETHENZ
FUWA IR BB B AN 5 B % 2B () M ER
HEZEM  UNEERT &S ELFE
HRR - REFALAEBZ2HDEE
VEAFERRKERREMBAN 2 EE

DR e
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

The Group currently organises into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesaler customers, bottled LPG end-
users, auto-gas end-users etc. The operation is
carried out in Hong Kong, PRC and Macau for both
onshore and offshore customers.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from selling of oil products to both wholesaler
and retailer customers and leasing of oil vessels.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones etc.

During the year of 2014, the Group began to venture into
sales and distribution of NG industry, but still in preliminary
stage, the segment information reported below includes
assets related to the sales and distribution of NG business.

-
{

H#%6

HEWOCEMN 5

SBREHEE)

AEEHRCEBUTIEZLESHR H
BERAEEZEENZRNE

1. HERSHEBRLR — HOBEHE
ERERTIRAERE - BRIER
F - AENREER  BIMLER
B BRI R K AP &TEM
RSB FEERA © ZEBIR
HTEE  PRRRMZERREE
RFEP -

2. HmEH — WoBAESHST
HENTERF  URBEERME
HEUA °

3. HEBETEM — UWOFHHEEE
TEM WEAERRMEFHREL
WA e

R20145FFR AEBERKIEANLE
HERDHRARER - BB
B TMIREHRZOBER(BRAHEE
RAOBERAREHERE L EE) °
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Segment revenues and results FRBAR ¥R

UTRZEEBNEREEDRED 2K
SEBARZEST

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EF2015F 12831 HILEE

Sales and Oil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HERAH HeE
. L[4 R BETER i=a
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F#EIT FEIT FET
Segment revenue 2L LON 8,488,519 6,331,336 659,404 15,479,259
Segment profit ok gl 799,457 144,905 21,345 965,707
Share of profits of associates DG E R EE A 13,009 - - 13,009
Share of profits of joint ventures D 1E& &1 X% F 2,631 - - 2,631
815,007 144,905 21,345 981,347
Other income H A 110,808
Profit from property investment B Z WEKRE K&
and development in the PRC BRm A 18,354
Central administration costs R E IR AR (59,734)
Loss on disposal of available for & a] fit i &% 4
sale investment B8 (17,898)
Directors’ emoluments EEME (8,479)
Changes in fair values MTEMBIART
of derivative financial Bz
instruments (33,690)
Finance costs BB (194,953)
Profit before taxation B4 A i F ) 795,755




Annual Report 2015 =ZZ—HFEFIHR | 149

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SRk AREE(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHE2014F 12831 AILEE
Sales and Ol Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products  Consolidated
HE K& HE
DHERIER B BEFEM oe)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue DEERA 12,664,606 5,214,037 1,699,397 19,578,040
Segment profit D48 F 667,855 154,759 97,015 919,629
Share of profits (losses) of DB & N B F)
associates (F#8) 8,953 (23,082) = (14,129)
Share of profit of a joint venture  D1E—RE L%
gl 1,713 — — 1,718
678,521 131,677 97,015 907,213
Other income Ht A 231,229
Profit from property investment B ZWEERE R
and development in the PRC BRI 28,712
Central administration costs R EIR KA (48,067)
Loss on disposal of available for H & A] it & #% &
sale investment B8 (2,528)
Directors’ emoluments ==& (9,074)
Changes in fair values TEFBIAAT
of derivative financial B2
instruments 19,083
Gain on deemed disposal of BEAHEBE A
associates alZ 15 21,860
Finance costs BE A (226,210
Profit before taxation B 258 A s A1) 922,218

|
1
L

-
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is
from external customers, associates or joint ventures.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of interest income, profit from
property investment and development in the PRC, central
administration costs, loss on disposal of available for sale
investment, directors’ emoluments, changes in fair values
of derivative financial instruments, gain on deemed disposal
of associates and finance costs.

The total reportable segment revenue can be reconciled
to the revenue as presented in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

SERHEE)
SEBMARERE(E)

EBN RGN BRALEENMES

SEBEMER - EXFERZAES
BRABRBINBER - BERRHA
EhE - DHREMNESDBERDENE
WA FEMERRERBERAEL 21
Mo PREERA - HEAHEERE
ZEE E2ME  TTAEMBIALQT
B2E WRASHEBERAZME
RBERKA

BERDBRATEEABREREME
E WSR2 5 2 WA BRI T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Total reportable segment revenue @2y U A 15,479,259 19,578,040
Add: Revenue from property investment f7 - FREI¥)Z£18E M 2R B

and development in the PRC EE WA 35,731 54,997
Revenue as presented in the ReEmkEMERKER

consolidated statement of profit or Fr 2% 2 WA
loss and other comprehensive income 15,514,990 19,633,037

The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property
investment and development in the PRC and the revenue
generate from this business is included as the consolidated
revenue of the Group. The operating result and other
financial information of this subsidiary are not reviewed
by the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

AEEZ —HHBATRDBLEYE
RARER - WEEBHELHUAD
BEAKEENSARA - WHBAT
ZEERERAMAE AN L EEEE
EERREEN  AFERHRRER
-
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SERHEE)
SERERAR

UTRIREENREND 2 AEBEER
BEDHT

DHEE

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

F&iT T

Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HRIER 4,333,157 3,997,348
Sales and distribution of NG HE R D HRAR 148,626 26,550
Oil products business JH mh T 3,177,649 3,618,852
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 98,660 293,590
Total segment assets RO EE 7,758,092 7,936,340
Available for sale investment AHHERE 37,770 81,958
Deferred tax assets FEEF S EE 3,197 7,312
Pledged bank deposits BEHEIRRITIFR 1,108,142 3,522,442
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 1,569,937 1,738,621
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBEITA 12,378 1,222
Properties under development for sales {F&E3RE MY 211,959 224,936
Properties held for sales REREME 157,754 185,035
Other unallocated assets BEMARDEEE 545,736 548,250
Consolidated assets IREEE 11,404,965 14,246,116

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5
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7.

Segment Information (Continued) 7.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

SERHEE)
SERERRARGE)

DEAR

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEIT THET

Sales and distribution of LPG HE M HBIER 462,493 1,125,849
Qil products business o ET 384,021 489,800
Sales of electronic products HEBSTEM 120 120
Total segment liabilities ‘oA’ 846,634 1,615,769
Derivative financial instruments ST T A 25,785 3,600
Tax liabilities MIEAE 60,031 49,369
Deferred tax liabilities BB AR 116,012 131,147
Borrowings EEN 4,948,568 7,423,421
Other unallocated liabilities EMARDEEE 19,319 117,026
Consolidated liabilities mEAE 6,016,349 9,340,332

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments (other
than available for sale investment, deferred tax assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, and certain deposits
paid, certain other receivables, properties under
development for sales, properties held for sales and
certain property, plant and equipment); and

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets.

REZEIBRBALRRSBEESEEIRM

il

BEEDNTEZ2H/DR(AIH
HERE BERBFEE - S 5M
RITEHR - ROTEHLAS - 074
BB TARETENEZEE EHTH
KRR - FEBRRTYE - F
BREVMERETHR  #ELER
RSN+ R

s MARBNAEEZHDECIE
FELRBAE - B3R TE8H
TARETEMREMFRERIN)

AREEEBESREEMAEERS
AR -
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)
Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Sales and Sales and
distribution  distribution

of LPG of NG
HERSH HERSH
RILR TAR
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amounts included in the FENBRNEA S
measure of segment profit BERTALE
or segment assets: &
Addition to non-current assets B IEREIEE
(Note) (i) 42,327 144,751
Depreciation of property, plant 1% + &R tE7
and equipment & 81,787 -
Amortisation of other intangiole  E-fh & A & 8
assets 26,284 -
Amortisation of land use rights ~ + i i 55 2,617 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease (SR BENAET
payments for coast 860 -
Loss on disposal and written ~ HERMEME - #
off of property, plant and BRZEZER
equipment 4,587 -

7. SEEHE)

Hti s WABEH

#HF2015F 12531 HILERF

(o] Sales of
products electronic
business products Unallocated Consolidated
#HE
mRRE BETER £ He
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

407,699 = 27,099 621,876
5,668 - 1,132 88,587
17,120 = = 43,404
1,083 = 7,106 10,806
_ - - 860

45 = = 4,632

i

y  MEWOCEWNS
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Other segment information (Continued) HttFEEIE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 EHFE2014F12H31 HILFE
Sales and Sales and Ol Sales of
distribution  distribution products electronic
of LPG of NG business products  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HER HER #HE
PERILR  PHRAR AmER BFEMm RAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Amounts included in the HENERNENE
measure of segment profit ~ AEHIAZE
or segment assets: o
Addition to goodwill NEEE - - 372,022 - - 372,022
Addition to non-current REFRBEE
assets (Note) (Hizt) 89,009 26,550 243,672 = 84,402 443,633
Depreciation of property, MmE - BERRELZ
plant and equipment e 81,135 - 3,371 — 676 85,182
Amortisation of other EtEREESH
intangible assets 27,050 = = = = 27,050
Amortisation of land use Tt R
rights 2,380 - 1,092 - 7,151 10,623
Amortisation of prepaid lease &R & Hii i
payments for coast 867 — - — - 867
Loss on disposal and written & R #isE M - #
off of property, plant and BRREZER
equipment 865 - 10 — - 875
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and Mt FERBEETREMH LA KELEH

deferred tax assets. THEE °
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Geographical information HMEZEHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country AEBEBZREEBMNEB(EELE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. @)  RPIRHE
Information about the Group’s revenue from external REBIIBEFPRAERARFLEE 2
customers is presented based on customers’ location of NEBEY - NEBIERBEEZERIA
the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current EEMBMEZYWOT
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
SFMERKA EREEE
PLRES 2014 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#&T FET F#ET FET
Hong Kong BB (EELEE)

(country of domicile) 3,867,146 3,712,747 666,571 612,055
The PRC FE(TRIESRH)

(excluding Hong Kong) 7,864,302 11,509,177 2,828,316 2,601,949
Other countries H xR 3,783,542 4,411,113 1,846 3,906
Total &t 15,514,990 19,633,037 3,496,733 3,217,910
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Bzt -';lEiﬁ%jJ;ﬁ\Eﬂ:@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%;ﬁE&ﬁj

available for sale investment. HHERE -

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Information about major customers FREEERZEH

R2015F U TERFEBAEEHESE
EEE10% A EZ WA 2014 F 2 #8

Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group in year 2015 and corresponding

: g }‘g%-ym'nt i
o t 5 B 7‘6;%

figures in 2014 are as follows: JEEF :
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
Customer A' ZEEA N/AFRER® 3,421,478
Customer B? ®FB? N/AFRER® 2,060,439
Customer C? BFEC? 2,068,000 N/A T3 3 °
Notes: Bt -
! Revenue related to the oil products business. ! BRMmERL WA ©
2 Revenue related to the LPG business. 2 BREABREREBZIWA -
s The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of ¢ HEEWATEEAEEEERTE10%
the total sales of the Group. AL -
8. Other Gains and Losses and Other Income 8. HttfffRERREMA
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Change in fair values of derivative DT BT AR E
financial instruments (33,690) 19,083
Loss on disposal of available for sale HERHHEREEE
investment (17,898) (2,528)
Net exchange loss (Note) P& W BB FEE (A aE) (292,008) (22,738)
Gain on deemed disposal of associates #18 /& H EHE 4 A T TS
(note 36(ii) (W13 36(ii) - 21,860
Other gains and losses HAF1S K EE (343,596) 15,677
Interest income on pledged RMB bank & 10 A RIER1T1F70F 5
deposits WA 87,866 168,173
Interest income FE U A 22,942 63,056
Others Hi 2,333 17,305
Other income EH A A 113,141 248,534
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9. Finance Costs 9. WMERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interests on bank trust receipts loans BT ETBIEE R R EMmE
and other loans KA B 69,004 79,237
Interests on bank loans pledged with UIARBBETEREHZH
RMB bank deposits MIRITERZFIE 51,775 98,125
Interests on bank borrowings wholly BNSERNEEERZRITE
repayable within five years M2 AE 74,174 48,848
194,953 226,210
10. Taxation 10. MEXH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated RiFERELEMEEKSRAHERZ
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income MRS B ELE
represents:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
Other regions in the PRC B b [
Current tax BIEARR IR 40,640 34,030
Deferred tax (note 35) BIERIE (A7 35)
Current year REZHE (3,857) (12,718)
36,783 21,312
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BB NS T5E M B F R 2 5 RS
estimated assessable profit for both years. There is no HEANEHEA6.5%E - ARARFR
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the Hp B QR AERBLEERTEH -
consolidated financial statements as the Company and oK 8 SR Bt i ) 2 1 A ) A5 7% S 1R 22 D
other subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in Hong U - B AR & B #5 a0 Em BB A F
Kong or the assessable profits are wholly absorbed by tax SRIELEE -
losses brought forward.
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BEFEAREIMBESERSRE( D
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation ERBREDREEMETEEHE

il EPWE/AE?%EFHZT)%Z\%%%i

756 -\

HEWOCEMN 5
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10. Taxation (Continued) 10. RIEZMH(#Z)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit REE2BBEY B HiRE B REM
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or ZHE WSR2 BRF AN FIE BRI T

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
Profit before taxation FR 15 A A 795,755 922,218
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% BT 25% 51 & 2 Bi1E 198,939 230,555
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for “NA] 1Rk Sz H 2 7 75 57 28
tax purpose 88,169 23,539
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax /BRI UT A 2 T 75 57 28
purpose (43,968) (39,656)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted &8 F| 2 i 2
from tax (182,329) (215,002)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERTHISE R 2 HIETE 27,803 22,313
Utilisation of deductible temporary &) 3 5T i R FERR 2 AT 4008 By
differences previously not recognised MR (3,392) (415)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 4E B RIER 2 BB &R
recognised (50,772) (2,385)
Effect of different tax rate of group REEFRENF H ANz HAtb
entities operating in jurisdictions other ~ BXR&EL 2 NEIF R 2 £
than PRC 2,333 2,363
Taxation for the year RNEEHIE 36,783 21,312
The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income FRZHREARNER XBREHEERE
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group & A2 AN F R (B0 AP B 2 PT1S B AR
is substantially based is used. K)o
Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out in EERSEERABFBIHNYFESIS ©

note 35.
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11.

Profit Before Taxation

11.

FRIZARF

—E-_HFEFHR |159

2015 2014

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Amortisation of land use rights
(included in administrative expenses)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast (included in cost
of sales)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(included in selling and distribution
expenses)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:

— Premises

Gross rental income from leasing of oil
vessels, office premises, leasehold
land and warehouses

Less: Direct operating expenses

Staff costs

Directors’ fees (note 12)

Directors’ other emoluments
(note 12)

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes excluding HK$105,000
(2014: HK$100,000) included in
directors’ emoluments

Staff salaries and bonus

BB AT M E R (FEA) T
JIERE :

T AR (RIEETT
B HA)

BFBENEERREHE(E
REHEKRAA)

Hib | & E#BH(BREE
HERDHHA)

Z AN
Y% B RBREITE

w2 B
REHHORERS

— g

HEwM  WoEWE -
ErmkAEzAESK
A

B BEREEXH

=1 %N
BEWE (Mt 12)
ERHMES
(Hiat12)
B 105,000 (2014 :
100,000 C) EsTAE
Ei¢ 2 BRIKREF T2

e
#\ A

BTI#HEhES

HK$’000 HK$’000
10,806 10,623
860 867
43,404 27,050
4,130 3,874
88,587 85,182
4,632 875
37,274 11,520
(1,518) (17,304)
88 3,483
(1,430) (13,821)
330 330
8,149 9,294
6,171 4,230
111,339 68,246
125,989 82,100

46 N

HEWOCEMN 5




1601 NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7188 REBER QA
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= A H ==}
RE SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE
12. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 12. EERIETRAR#NE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2014: 9) BT ER FOM(2014 : 9ML) BEE R
directors and chief executive were as follows: AZBNE&T
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
yfrEn BlkufrEs
Chiu Cheung
Shum Sing Kwan ~ Chan Yuk
Shum Chun, Cen  Chung, Hung, Wai, Xu Total
SiuHung  Lawrence Ziniu ~ Raymond Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe 215
)] -7 S 5 ] BEE MEG B Al
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T fEr fEr TEr TR v fET  TET  TET TER
Fees fis - - - - - - 130 100 100 30
Other emoluments Efie
Salaries and other benefits EERAREH 3,000 600 1,107 1,500 1,381 456 = = = 8,044
Contrbutons to retrement RIRRHEE
bengfits schemes 18 15 18 18 18 18 - - - 105
Total emoluments Heas 3,018 615 112 1,518 1,399 474 130 100 100 8479
Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
i Buings
Chiu Cheung
Shum Sing Siu Kwan ~ Chan Yuk
Shum Chun, Cen  Chung, Ka Fa, Wang Hung, Wai, XU Total
SuHung  Lawrence Zniu Raymond Brian Jan Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe 2014
20 28 AHE #RR BRE B RS KRR BEk Aham
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
tér  fEr  TEr FEr o FEr FEr TEr o FEn
Fees hs = = = = = - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments e
Salares and other benefts FoRAER 3,000 325 168 1,660 1,639 92 = = = 9,194
Contrbutons to retrement RCRHEEE
benefits schemes 17 15 1 1 1 1 - - - 100
Total emoluments Heag 3017 340 1545 1867 1,556 969 130 100 100 9,624
No director or chief executive waived any emoluments RREALEEERETABE -
during both years.
The executive directors' remuneration shown above were LB CHITEESHE T EAARS
mainly for their services in connection with the management EERARNAIRAEEER 2R
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The independent non-executive directors' remuneration i Es B IERTEEMNE EEH
shown above were mainly for their services as director of REBEEARRBIESE 2R -
the Company.
uwmﬁ"“*““ MLETEN m»‘\m s r

Mr. Shum
’Company and-

ose Bnsen

rvices
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13. Employees’ Emoluments 13. EEE £
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REBESUFKEEHALTEEIE(2014
Group, three (2014: three) are directors of the Company M)A RNRESE  EEEEH N Ll
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. FEERMN - Hfp207(2014 : 247 ) 1@ Bl
The emolument of the remaining two (2014: two) individuals AL ZEHELNT ¢

are disclosed as follows:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#EIT FET

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 3,231 3,521
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes & /R7@ F 5 2] it 3% 36 34
3,267 BIo00)

2015 2014

Their emoluments were within the following ~ EB& N FIA T & E

bands
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 & 7T - 1
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AEEWERE RN LM @R AL
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon e - ERBEEMASMARER R
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. 2 B2E) - SHERKR KA FIE -
14. Dividend 14. B2
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2014 final dividend recognised as FRER BN IR L2014 FR
distribution during the year EARR B
— HKB.6 cents (2013 final dividend: — Thk6.6 BIL(2013F
HK5.7 cents) per share REFRR B ¢ 5.7 781{L) 97,706 84,554

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

®
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14.

15.

Dividend (Continued)

Subsequent to 31 December 2015, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK2.5 cents (2014: HK6.6 cents) per
share amounting to approximately HK$37,010,000 (2014:
HK$97,706,000) to be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members
on 6 June 2016. This final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. On 18 March 2016, the shares issued and fully
paid is 1,480,398,216.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14.

BB (&)

MR20156F12A31H%® EFEZ N
MR2016F 6 A6 H &% IR &z A
RRABREIRZERBKRE - FRIRKE 2.5
B AL(2014 - 6.678 1l ) » & HE IR B4
37,010,000 7L (2014 : 97,706,000 75
TC) o It 7R B A% B 78 £ AR B FE JiE AR R
RERE E#ER - ARAEE - K2016
#3H18H ' BEETTRBEZRHHEE
/431,480,398,216 fi% °

sRET

ARBZFEEANBESRERAREETR
MR T BURETE -

Earnings a2%
Earnings for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share (profit for

the year attributable to the owners of

the Company)

eI F PR H)

A EERERREEE A
RAZEF (RRFEEAA

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
756,643 900,270

2015 2014

Number of shares Bir& B

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive ordinary shares
Share options

AR

HESERR T E

AEERERBINMERAZ
TN

1,480,398,216 1,482,576,298

17,514,459 18,888,180

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

AAEBREERNAERA
BRI 8

1,497,912,675 1,601,464,478
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. W% - RBRBME

Pumps
and Furniture,
Gasandoil  equipment fixtures

Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and for gas and Motor 0i

in progress Buildings improvements  machinery facilities andoil  equipment vehicles vessels
RERAE  RRMAC  BAOKE

ERIE BF HRWRRE  ABRONE BB  RRRRE B il | L]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7T AT FET T 7T FET FET AT ./ AT

008T 2
At January 2014 ROUEIA1H 358,591 3,647 13,074 3360 1001887 1O/ 17813 41,000 2000 1911809
Aising on acquistion of WENBAAME

subsiolaries - - - - - 43 196 - - 609
Addtions hE 53,154 6114 2407 = 37,831 10,737 313 11,23 %217 2093
Transer 2 (102.484) 1,394 = - WA 13784 = = = =
Disposdls and wie-of HERH# - = ) = (269) (1,056) (169) (1374 = (3,0%)
Exchange realignment [k 2010 () 2 (1 2,140 (66) 3 16 - 79
At 31 December 2014 R0ED A 7250 43150 15,336 330 1428901 443,159 20,982 50877 R 213032
Addiions ikt 15,400 = i = 903 6414 1,400 9,002 o 33,146
Disposdls and wie-of HERMH - (1,590) (296) - (8075) (2,981) (1,085) (6,535) @ (16,585
Exchange reaignment EiHE (1,101) (241 204) (199 @878 (4739 (965) 2392 - (100792
At 31 Decemoer 2015 Bo0155 124318 21,550 30,142 14,863 3165 1356044 42185 20362 50952 17260 2,046,091
DEPRECIATION AND AERGE

INPARMENT
At January 2014 R0l 1B = 18,833 3201 8§10 195,062 150,159 12,367 0440 86 403,858
Provided for the year EhgE = 2678 1352 165 13678 26,650 1,081 6,305 3073 8,182
Eiiminated on disposals and INHERMER S

Witeoff = = (t5) = (%) 531) (150) (1,076) = (1.867)
Exchange realgnment [ - 8 - 5 167 ) 2 ] = 28
At 31 December 2014 B014E12A31R = 21,719 4628 %0 22 176310 13322 21,641 3060 48748t
Provided for the year EqiE = 1,5 1,550 164 46,547 517 1718 7139 4821 88,567
Eliminated on disposals and BHE o

wite-of S (¢16) 2%6) S ) (1,270) [m) (5,091) M (195
Exchange reaignment EiE = (1,299) 25) 69 (o489 (10,70 (662) (1,384 = (24621)
At 31 December 2015 R015%12 4318 - 2476 5,857 1,080 210818 189,512 13,601 28,305 8,789 530438
CARRYING VALUES KAl
At31 December 2015 0155128318 21,550 17,666 9,006 2085 108612 230341 6,761 2,647 1084711 1,506,653
At31 December 2014 R014E12A318 7.5 21,431 10,708 2819 1190090 266789 7,660 2,23 11338 1,642,801

6 >

HEWOCEMN 5
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold 20% to 33'/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33"/,%
Gas and oil plant and Over the shorter of the lease
facilities term of coast use right and
land use right, or 25 years

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33'/,%
for gas and oil
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 16%/,%

equipment
Motor vehicles 16%/,% to 33"/,%
Qil vessels 3% to 11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated
outside Hong Kong, in the PRC.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$2,552,000 (2014: HK$2,866,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$18,744,000 (2014:
HK$34,926,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, oil vessels were
leased to an associate to generate rental income of
approximately HK$12,152,000. On 29 December 2014,
the associate became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, the details of the acquisition are set out in note
36.

16. W% - WMBREM(2Z)

BREZTERI - LiliE  #ERRE
HE - RTNFMEUERENE -

¥ R LT

HEYERE 20% %= 33'/,%

W28 K 3R 4% %= 33'/,%

RENHER REREAERLT

B9 HfE AR AV F
HAEk 25 FHA 2 8
BE

FEHMZRAE 10%Z=33".%
&

BRI HEBRER  15% 2 167:%
B

RE 16°/,% %= 33'/,%

H A 3% E11%

BFIHURPE(FBHEIN)

EERHETDRTE(FERIN)

FARRE MEEPEEEL 2,552,000
7 78(2014 : 2,866,000 7T ) 2 RIL R
BIOLEBEABETFER  UELEHS
WA > REEZE2015F 12 B31 BILEE
FrEL 2 e WAL A18,744,000 % 7T
(2014 : 34,926,000 7T) °

H E2014F 128318 It &F E- &
12,152,000 L 2 MM E R E ¥ — R
ERNRIAEERSWA - R2014F 12
B298 ' ZHERRKNABEARBIZEE
BEEWB AR - WEFBEHINNH T
36 °
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17. Land Use Rights 17. Lt E R
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FETT FET

The Group’s land use rights comprise: ~ N&EE Z b {F AR

Land use rights in Hong Kong KBS 2 b FA#E 26,345 -
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, in MBI (FEEIN) 2 i fE

the PRC P 251,967 279,739
278,312 279,739

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BE2MRE WD
Non-current asset ERBEE 266,611 268,426
Current asset mENEE 11,701 11,313
278,312 279,739

In November 2015, the Group acquired a land in Hong
Kong and leased to an independent third party for one year
commences from 15 December 2015. For the year ended
31 December 2015, the rental income generated by this
piece of land amounted to approximately HK$69,000 (2014:
nil). The land is carried at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses items.

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the “Land”)
in year 2011. The size of the Land is 15,750 square meters.
The Group is developing half of the Land to construct a
property for owner-occupied purpose and the remaining
half for properties for sales. The detail of the properties
under development for sales is disclosed in note 28.

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

R2015F 11 A AEEBA—RES
Mt HEF—BYE=7  HEH
20159 12 15 B ABH—F - RE
1F2015F 12 A31 B I F & » 7% L it
EL 2 e U A% 69,0008 L(2014 :
) o 5% L HE Ty IR BE 5B R AN R R BT 5
M REHRVERETE B HIER -

AEBER 2011 FWE—RUNRKEZ
MEt((ZtH])  ZLHmEL
15,750 ¥R o AEBEEZEREZ M2
—¥EE—BEITEAME BT —
FRBRIEAFEVE - FEBETYD
¥ ZFBRKIE28 HE o
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18. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 18. BEMAMHEERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FAET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REE 2 HFEMHEHERE
for coast comprise: BIE:
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC R E(FHEBINEEZ
B 8,036 9,399
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERENDNT:
Non-current asset IEMBEE 7,214 8,527
Current asset MEVEE 822 872
8,036 9,399
The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights EEENAERENIERK G 5= E
to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years, FA#E - A1999F1 A1 HAMK  HHEH
starting from 1 January 1999. NF20FE28F -
19. Goodwill 10. &
HK$’000
TET
COST BE
At 1 January 2014 Mm201441 A1 H 296,060
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U B — R B A R FTEE 4 (M2 36) 372,022
Exchange realignment B H K 57
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31 H 668,139
Exchange realignment b H (9,491)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 658,648
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2015 M2015%F 12 A31 H 658,648

At 31 December 2014 R20144 12 A31 H 668,139
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19. Goodwill (Continued) 19. B8 (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
acquired new subsidiaries (“Ego Time Group” as defined
in note 36 and the goodwill arising on the acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$372,022,000. The details
of the acquisition are set out in note 36. This goodwill is
assigned to a separate CGU.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to ten (2014: ten) individual
CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG and oil products
segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rate at 9% (2014: 9%) for LPG segment and
18% (2014: 20%) for oil products business segment. The
cash flows for the financial budgets are using a steady
decline/growth rate ranging from -5% to 5% (2014: 0% to
5%) for a 5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year
period are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
included budget sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.
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HZEZ2014F12A31BILEFEE A&
E U BE B B A Bl (MY 5 36 )& A Ego
TimeskE])  MEBAELEZEENA
372,022,000 7T ° 1B AME36 °
EESEEEPRESEEEN -

BERNANS  EXFHEZEEE S
Rz 101E(2014 : 1018) 84 & K5 84K
bR Fh @D BERIRESELEN -

RERESELBM 2 AINEESE &
REFERBEREHRIT

SR SEABM 2 AT E £ 58 T iIRE
FREEEELAET - ZTE AEB
EHEECHEZSFHYKBEERP 2
RemeEBAlRRIEI[DEIIREI%
(2014 :9%) ~ M REB DB R X
18% (2014 : 20%) 7t & - I BFEE X
ZHEEREUSFHZBETR R
RNF 5% FE 5% (2014 : 0% & 5%) #E
B o W FHEZRERENTHEE
HE - BB RERA S REERAE
B EEZEMEERABIEREHEE
KEFE  ZhrEREEM 2 BEE
BREEEEMFZTBERMIED °
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20. Other Intangible Assets

20. At R E

Distribution Business Leasing Customer
network license  agreements relationships
AR BERURE HakE EFRmME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT FET FHT FHAT
COST B¥
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 A 1H 370,273 29,763 15,461 = 415,497
Arising on acquisition of REE—RIB A
subsidiaries (note 36) P8 (H#36) - - = 102,722 102,722
Exchange adjustments S (127) (o) () = (141)
At 31 December 2014 2014%12 4318 370,146 29,754 15,456 102,722 518,078
Exchange adjustments S (21,353) (1,516) (892) = (23,761)
At 31 December 2015 2015%€12 4318 348,793 28,238 14,564 102,722 494,317
AMORTISATION AND HARRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 710 48,538 9,183 15,461 - 73,182
Charge for the year FRTH 24,633 2417 = = 27,050
Exchange adjustments TR 122 9 (5) - 126
At 31 December 2014 m2014F12 53108 73,293 11,609 15,456 - 100,358
Charge for the year FRZH 24,426 1,858 - 17,120 43,404
Exchange adjustments B 7 AR (5,311) (552) (892) - (6,755)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015612 A31R 92,408 12,915 14,564 17,120 137,007
CARRYING VALUES WRE{E
At 31 December 2015 72015612 A31H 256,385 15,323 - 85,602 357,310
At 31 December 2014 "2014F12 A31H 296,853 18,145 - 102,722 417,720
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20. Other Intangible Assets (Continued) 20. Hti I\ EE (2)

The distribution network, the business license, the leasing
agreements and customer relationship were acquired from
third parties in business combinations.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license 5 to 15 years
Leasing agreements 5 to 10 years
Customer relationships 6 years

10 to 15 years

During the year ended of 31 December 2014, the other
intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of new
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$102,722,000.
The details of the acquisition are set out in note 36.

For the purposes of impairment testing, other intangible
assets set out above have been allocated to five (2014:
five) individual CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG
and oil products business segment. The recoverable
amounts of these CGUs have been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering 5-year period, and discount rate at
9% (2014: 9%) for LPG segment and 18% (2014: 20%)
for oil products business segments. The cash flows for
the financial budgets are using a steady decline/growth
rate ranging from -5% to 5% (2014: 0% to 5%) for a 5
year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are
extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budget
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development.
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DHEPE  EXAR  HEBBELEP
REDEXBEHTRAE=ZTBA -

LB EEEBRAERES -
BV EENABERAEA T B

i

%

Ak = ik 10E 154
&R 5E 154
HE W= 5& 104
=P BIR 6 F

REZ2014F 12 A31 BIEFE - WEE
B AR MEScEMBEREENR
102,722,0008 7T - WEEHI B A 7] 2 &
BRAKEIBHE -

FRERRANE  EXFE EMmER
BECHEZES5E(2014 : 5{@)HE K&
DRI R EEDEENRESE
EBAN - WEFERSEABNZAIKES
HIRBEREBEFTEAMETE © &t
BEAFATEEC M A S FHIUERE
BRI\ eRETER M BRIER D BT
IRE Q% (2014 : 9%) * SHRES D LT
I % 18% (2014 : 20%) 5t & - B 778
BER7ESREUNSEHZBETR
#E RN F5%%E5% (2014 : 0% =
5%) T o WS FHE ZHEERENT
WERKEE - FAGTESRA R
FARBENEAZEMEERIVIER
HHEREMNE  ZHFTEBREEMZ
BREEELREEEREF 2T EEREMME
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21. Interests in Associates 21. BELFER
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Cost of interests in unlisted associates 3 _ mE & A g s Ak 45
At 1 January »1A18 71,766 306,327
New associate incorporated DAV NG| 8,986 —
Share of losses and other PMEFEAEE R
comprehensive expenses, Hith 2 E Yz
net of dividend for the year (BRERE) (3,360) (16,225)
Deemed disposal upon acquisition B — SR Bt & A R RO BRI
of additional equity interest in an WA AT E
associate (note 36(iii)) (B 7t 36(ii)) - (218,336)
Refund of the registered capital from —KEEE R AR E
an associate (Note a) EMERHEa) (61,432) —
At 31 December ®12 A31H 15,960 71,766
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had R20154F k201412 A31H @ K&
interests in the following significant associates: ERUATEEHEAFFAE R

Country of  Principal Proportion of nominal value
Form of incorporation/ place of Class of of issued capital held
Name of entity entity registration  operation shares held by the Group Principal activity

HmEL/ FREMBERT
REgR RiEgs BEEX FERENE FRRHER BEmELA FRED
2015 2014

Sinopec NewQOcean Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 49 49 Sales and distribution
Energy Company Limited capital of energy
(“Sinopec NewOcean”) products
(Note a)

mREGREERAT  BafiRky  HE e FHEA HERD R RER
(THA{LmE])(Wita)

HEBMeeRERA8  Incorporated  PRC PRC Registered 50 = Sales and distribution
(‘LEBHE") (Note b) capital of energy

products
weETmsRERERAR Ky A i FHEA HER D R RER

(KEEHE ) (Witb)
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21. Interests in Associates (Continued) 21. BFELREES &)
Notes: Hiat -
(@ On 10 April 2013, NewOcean Baifuyang Investment (8 M2013F 4 /108 + £ B B & i A

Company Limited (“NBIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company incorporated in the PRC, entered into an
agreement with China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
(“Sinopec”) to establish a company. On 1 September 2013,
Sinopec NewOcean was established. Sinopec NewOcean
had a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, of which
51% is owned by Sinopec and 49% is owned by NBIC.
The principal business of Sinopec NewOcean includes: (i)
motor vehicle refueling in Guangzhou for LPG vehicles; (ii)
motor vehicle refueling in Guangzhou for liquefied natural
gas (“LNG”) vehicles, which will be added in stages to the
business; (iii) sales of non-petrol chemical consumer item
with sales support from Sinopec’s chain of petrol filling
stations; (iv) sales and distribution of bonded oil products for
marine bunkering; and (v) sales and distribution of bottled
LPG.

On 17 October 2013, Sinopec NewOcean entered into
a subcontracting agreement with NBIC (“Subcontracting
Agreement”) to subcontract from NBIC all the 17 LPG
refuelling stations in Guangzhou currently owned and
operated by the subsidiary of NBIC, Lianxin Energy
Development Company Limited (“Lianxin Energy”). Under the
terms of the Subcontracting Agreement, the subcontracting
period of Lianxin Energy’s business will be 10 years
commenced from 1 November 2013 (“Subcontracting
Period”) during which Sinopec NewOcean will pay a
subcontracting fee of RMB10,000,000 to NBIC each
year and the Group is allowed to charge Lianxin Energy
information and technical services fee up to RMB48,300,000
each year. In addition, as set out in the Subcontracting
Agreement, the Group will be the sole supplier of LPG for
Sinopec NewOcean.

On 30 October 2015, Sinopec and NBIC entered into a
termination agreement to terminate the subcontracting
agreement with effect from 1 November 2015. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the subcontracting fee
received from Sinopec NewOcean amount to RMB8,333,333
(2014: RMB10,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$10,448,000 (2014: HK$12,643,000)). The details
of the arrangements are set out in the announcement
dated 30 October 2015 issued by the Company. On 31
December 2015, a shareholders resolution was passed
by Sinopec and NBIC, Sinopec NewOcean will be
dissolved in year 2016. On 25 December 2015, NBIC
received the refund of the registered capital amounted to
approximately RMB49,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$61,432,000) and distribution of dividend amounted to
approximately RMB11,982,000 (equivalent to approximately

$12 5. rom Sinopec.NewOceanssThere will

of divid jing 2=

ope
-

. 72 15,022,000 7% 7T ) 2 IR B2 K

| ERTRAFBOBRE -

YZARBREENBRRHEE B
REBRAR(TEEFIRE ) EFPRH
BRIETRHAERAR(HRAELDE
Vg AR A E QA - R20134F
9B1H 68 ARF AL EE K
Mo HRALEFAEZAMERAAEARE
100,000,000 7t * HH51% B+ A1k
HE - MA9% A EBFIREHES - F
BEFEBZEEX£BHBE  (()REMNA
WAL RIRE LT RE NG 5 (i) B BE M
ARIERAR(TBRIERAR]) REE
TAENR  ZXEBBIBEMAZE
TSR s (i) FE AP AL 2 EE S N vk 2 38
EXRET HEFAHLLIEER
(iv)$HE Ko 8 EIRRE AR &
(V) SHERDHEHRERER -

R2013F108178 » & A 1L 1 )8
HEEFRE AR HE( AR
#FD NABEEFREABAS TR
BrHMEBEARBIELRERFR AR
(TBEEEEIR IR A RICENL N E
Mz 2 E17 BRERINE U o RIFHA
BRE G BHERER 2 EAE
HA RS 18 2013411 A1 B £ 5t & H
10 F((ESHED B8R FA1EL
HEBERNEBEREEFIMNARE
10,000,000 T 2 & B E - fAEE
LA A K B AR 75 5 A R B T A TR UK
B & % A R % 48,300,000 7T ° Ut oh
WA BB - AEEEK AR
BBz — BRI Rt -

R2015610830H A ALLERE
FIRERT M — DR IEHEARIEEB
Wi X R2015F11 A1 £ -
HZE2015F12A31BIEFEE - AAF
A8 E 2 %8 % A A 8,333,333
A B #(2014 : 10,000,000 A & # )
(H8 % R #710,448,00078 7T (2014 :
12,643,000 70)) ° 2 BLHE 2 715
B RIS R AR RR20159F 10 A 30
AEHZAENRN- R2015%F 12 A 31
A AR EEFREHBBRRE
GRS - P AEFNEBR 2016 FARE
By o R2015F 12 A25H © A B F#%
& W B R A (b 37 /8 3R [B] 49 49,000,000
AR (HHER 61,482,000 7T ) Z 5t
MEAR - %49 11,982,0000A RH (1HE

FAALEE TRk MR AL - 8
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21.

Interests in Associates (Continued) 21.

Notes: (Continued)

(b) HREHEHE is established on 5 February 2015. ¥1/88R
(%8) BB AT owns 50% of the ownership interests in Ik
BAFNE and the remaining 50% owns by ER/EE T & &M
RAERATCHKEMMERE"). However, according to the
memorandum and association of IKEBHFE, WEMHE
& has over 50% voting power and thus has control of the
board of directors in ZREEH1E, thus ZREEFTE is treated
as an associate of the Company.

Summarised financial information of associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for
using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

BEAREDR Z)
Hiat - (&)

(b) FREBEFER2015F2 A5HK L °
FBER(KE)ERARFBERES
FE50% 2 HERS - MR T Z50% s
HERERmEBMRBRAAEKE
WMEEREE - A BEKES
MEBZER KEEMEERERA
50% 1% W MEALKBEIEE
Ee R L KEEFIEHR
BARRARZEENE] o

BELAFCHMERHEE

AEEZHLERR M BERBEZERN
X - TR BERBRE SRIER B
5 5 2 R R B 2 Bt ' 1 R B A AR AT
IR &8 - FRALLEHE R B EHA
REENHFHEAMBHRRAR -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sinopec NewOcean hARILHE

Current assets MENEE 160,130 514,906
Non-current assets FEREEE 587 742
Current liabilities nBaE (146,811) (369,178)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (72) 9
Revenue YA 1,625,000 2,194,601

Profit and total comprehensive income  ANEFZa F & 2 E U S 4258
for the year 26,132 18,375
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21. Interests in Associates (Continued) 21. BiBLAFESRK &)
Summarised financial information of associates BREAFZMBESHEE (&)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial MBS E R R AR A IS SRk
information to the carrying amount of the interest in R 2 B2 A7) f”f‘?& mEZ %R
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial T
statements:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FAETL
Net assets of Sinopec NewOcean AT EEFE 13,834 146,461
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBMEFRALEINIEZ
interest in Sinopec NewOcean 7B TR 7 L 1B 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A& B AL 2
in Sinopec NewOcean HERIREE 6,779 71,766
HK$’000
F#ET
HRENS BEEWS
Current assets MEEE 22,131
Non-current assets EMENE E 84
Current liabilities mBEE (3,853)
Revenue WA 63,371
Profit and total comprehensive income AN E % F & 2 mEUN S 4258
for the year 409

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5
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21. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

21.

BEAREDR Z)
BEATICHMBRHBE(E)
LB E M B ERN AR A M HmR T

WRzBE A E=EREE SRR
T :

HK$’000
FET
Net assets BEFE 18,362
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEBMEIREENEZ
interest in ZR/AEHTE WA R L 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZN& B IKEH#/E 2
in RSB S SR E 9,181
22. Interests in Joint Ventures 22 SELEER

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FETL
Cost of unlisted investments in joint EEMEEEERERARN
ventures

At 1 January w1 A1H 19,969 11,893

Share of net profits and other D45 F AT ) &
comprehensive income for the year ~ HibZ2mEUkas 1,363 1,719
New joint venture incorporated IR 2B &% - 6,357
At 31 December ®w12 A31H 21,332 19,969

Ml

oSl
s =l
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22. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 2. SELEREB (2

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

Form of Principal
business Country of  place of Fully paid up

Name of entity structure incorporation operation registered capital
e
ERReh REREERN BREEX IREENE CHREREF

EMNTEHRAEELE  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000
("fBF") (Note a)

BNTRIREEARLAR iy HE e 2,250,000 A%
([#))(Wita)

EMEEETERERART  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000
(“8&") (Note b)

ENEEETEREERAR Bafiky  $E HEl 10,000,000 A K
(T8 ) (Hith)

Notes:

(@)  The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qing Yuan
Shi Qingxin District Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company
Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the joint venture partner of %7 on 3 November 20086,
the operation of #&%7 has been subcontracted to BFY with
a subcontracting period of 8 years until 2015. On 8 June
2015, both parties entered into another agreement to extend
the subcontracting period for another 3 years to 2018.

(b)  50% interests of registered capital of & is owned by &
RANEERFERERAF(CERIEEF") in which 60% of
ownership interests of ER¥TEHEF is owned by FIIEH
BRE AR AT a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Thus,
the effective ownership interests of the Group in #E i is 30%
(2014: 30%).

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interests in joint ventures which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown

he joint' venture’s financial statements prepared in

756 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

S BT,
—~ 2

MR20154F K 2014128381 H @ A&
ERUATAEhESEEER

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital held

by the Group Nature of business
FEEFRRFERT
BRETELH RHRE
2015 2014
49% 49%  Sales and distribution
of LPG
HERDERILR
30% 30% Sales and distribution
of LPG
HERDERILE

Hfat

(@ AEESEESELEZENITIEIN
TEEHRIR R 2 A& B H & 2 AT
HRZHEAERERLIFE -

BEARFRZEZENBARBRT S
FREEEAMCIARAR(ES
FDREHZEERHER20064F 11
ABBEIN W% @ B2 EBHE N
FEEF  INHEHZ=20154F - AHES
F o R2015F6 A8H ' EHE L
BB HEGINEERIFE2018
io

b) ERFEBEFEREBRAATERT
EEFE DFEREES0% R EME R
MERIEBEF60%NEDHFIIE
EMRERARFEE - Ut A&EE
EREEREE 2#EZmB30% (2014 :
30%) °

AEBAERSHEARZAEELER
S BERREHINWT - TRMKE
HMESREEBH EREENRHZ
BELEVBRRMINITL SR -

1175
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22. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 2. SELEREB (2
B’ B
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current assets mEEE 6,873 5,480
Non-current assets FERBNE 3,971 4,631
Current liabilities mEEE (26) (4)
Revenue WA 27,107 32,346
Profit for the year F R A 2,765 1,713
Other comprehensive (expenses) FREMEE(Z )=
income for the year (909) 6
Total comprehensive income for the FAZEM BT
year 1,856 1,719
- REE
BE B¢ was newly incorporated in late of year 2014 and BE I8 72 2014 4F 1% BB 7 AX 32 37 74 2015
remained inactive in year 2015. As at 31 December 2015, FARRFAIBENE - RBIE20155 12
the assets of #EfE was mainly deposits paid, construction AS1HIL  EBZEEXZERENET
in progress and bank balances and cash, and there ® ERIBRERTEHEE S kI
was no significant liability. The loss for the year and MEAAE FARLBERBEZE SN
total comprehensive expense for the year amounted to 73 Bl 49 % 444,000 7% 7T & 805,000 7% 7T
approximately HK$444,000 and HK$805,000 (2014: both (2014 : MEHAE) °

nil) respectively.
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23. Available for Sale Investment

23. MEHERS

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEIT FAETL
Available for sale investment comprise: Al HEREHIE -
— Equity securities listed in Korea — BR LW 2ESHF)
(Note) 37,770 81,058
Note: As at 31 December 2015, the Group owned 9.69% (2014: Bt 72015612 A31H A& B # A

27.33%) equity interest in Integrated Energy Limited (“IE”).
Although the Group held more than 20% of the voting power
in IE in the past, the directors of the Company considered
the Group had no significant influence to govern the
financial and operating policies of IE. As such, the equity
securities of IE was not accounted for as an associate
and the amount was accounted for as available for sale
investment. The fair value of IE shares is determined based
on quoted market bid price of shares of IE traded on Korean
Securities Dealers Automated Quotation which amounted
to approximately HK$37,770,000 as at 31 December 2015
(2014: HK$81,958,000).

24. Deposits Paid

The amount included deposits of approximately
RMB181,887,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$217,920,000) (2014: nil) paid for potential acquisition
of investment projects. The Group has not entered into any
formal sales and purchase agreement as at 31 December
2015. The remaining amount mainly represents the deposits
paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment
including approximately RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$323,489,000) (2014: nil) for acquisition
of several oil vessels.

25. Inventories

Integrated Energy Limited ([IE]) Z
9.69% (2014 : 27.33%) A% # & 25 °
BEAEBEFBIER ZE Z220% A
F ARFEERBAEBILEEKR
FENUBEEEZH B REERR -
At - IEXEARYEHBERA - IE
B2 AFEDERERELERHE
BESHREHSEEZIERMMBEA
REBET  R2015F 1283184 A
37,770,000 7£(2014 : 81,958,000
BIL) °

24, BfiE&

S REEEREERENREEE X
7181,887,000 ARBEHZE  HER
#9217,920,000% jT(2014 : & ) o R
201512 A31H » A& B EERTT
MEXMEE WS HBEITERRES
ME - EBRIEMINNES 81
Uiy B B4 45 S i 49 270,000,000 A R #5 (48
Z1449323,489,000787T) (2014 : ££) o

25. R

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
LPG BIER 128,976 81,780
Oil products JH B 32,649 68,712
Electronic products BFfEm 98,660 293,590
260,285 444,082

iﬁq 5 ?v?é &ﬁﬁiﬂ%@l&mi?ﬂ&%

The cost of mventorles charged to the consolldated

4 n\.

I[Iﬂt[l//i

1177
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments

26. BBRHIRR - BURE - AMHE
WRER - BeRAMRE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade debtors U E S BR K 2,477,122 3,009,943
Bills receivable eI =% 41,226 43,150
2,518,348 3,053,093

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. The
bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 days
to 180 days for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated
the respective revenue recognition dates:

AEBZIFHEEHREOKX HE
20154 K 2014512 A31 B I EfE
H&zm%ﬁz FEAEHINFE0XE180K °

i&iﬂﬂﬁizﬂké’i%ﬁé R e IR ZE i
RO Z B SRR ARERH
H) 25T -

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

0 to 30 days 0E30K 1,263,989 1,089,026
31 to 60 days 31 260K 316,609 563,023
61 to 90 days 61 = 90K 297,171 111,832
91 to 180 days 91 & 180K 584,914 957,868
Over 180 days BB 180K 55,665 331,344
2,518,348 3,053,093

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, debtors of
approximately HK$5,000 (2014: HK$6,000) are
denominated in USD/HK$, which is not the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customers. Recoverability
of the existing customers is reviewed by the Group
regularly. Included in the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable balance are receivables with aggregate

carrying amount of approximately HK$2,283,925,000
giﬁ“"(zm“xlw @87 365 000) ‘

- which are nei

’@ing

AEE 2 EINE SR 45,0008 7T
(2014 : 6,000/ T ) BET/ B ITE
B Zxn/ BTl ERBEEEEE 2

EE -

AEBERERTATELAE LTEE
EREEZEEEE TR TEEESE-
AEBTHEMRERFP ZERES -
PIEEAEE B SRR EKE
& B0 #92,283,925,00078 75(2014 :
2,587,465,0008 70 ) BN E SR 2 42
AES T EBERRE
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 26. B EZIER BIGSE - HtE

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$234,423,000 (2014: HK$465,628,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over the balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical default
of payments by the respective customers. The average age
of these receivables is 129 days (2014: 206 days). As at 31
December 2015 and 2014, the Group has no provision for
allowance for doubtful debts.

Aging of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

WIER - BERAMREF(E)

AEBCZEKREZERGBES

8k m {E %9234,423,000 71(2014 :
465,628,000 % I ) 2 & UK AR SR R &
HEAERY  BAEETREREES
BEE AEBUWEFFEMNENZE
HEIKEG -  DBBEREREGZIE
WESEREEBRAFEREBE =X
HEREBETELRIAE - ZZEK
Rz FHERER A129K(2014 : 206
K) e R2015F 201412 A318 -
AEEWERRIREH B -

EBMEXRBEZEHRRSRERERR
H Rz IREe

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

31 to 60 days 31 E£60K 27,013 —

61 to 90 days 61 290K 29,539 93,410

91 to 180 days 912 180K 160,556 74,407

Over 180 days HBi#E 180K 17,315 297,811

Total A&t 234,423 465,628
Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits HERERBREENHERE S

paid to suppliers of approximately HK$1,530,080,000
(2014: HK$956,833,000) in relation to the purchase of
LPG and oil products which will be delivered within one
year commencing from the date of the signed purchase
contract.

Also, approximately HK$24,138,000 (2014:
HK$72,627,000) included in other debtors are interest
receivables from pledged bank deposits and bank deposits,
those amounts will be received monthly or when the
pledged bank deposits are released.

Included in other debtors, there was a loan advance to
an independent third party to provide short term loans of
approximately RMB82,319,000 (2014: RMB82,319,000)

equivalent _to @roxmately HK$98,627,000 (2014:

456

HEWOCEMN 5

d-at ﬂxed

¥ 4 #91,530,080,0007 (2014 :
956,833,000/ 70 ) * W REERIELR

MHRITNERTBESORT —FAR
F o

g EMEKRERTEED
24,138,000 £ (2014 : 72,627,000 75
TL) Z ERIBIRITFERRIBITFERZIE
WA E - ZF 28K A BE R R
B R ERTT7 SR ULER ©

Ht KRR BE—HEEYE =55
VERBEURESHERNARE
82,319,000(2014 : AR#82,319,000)
M % B #98,627,000, (2014 :

1Q_4664000/%75) B B Al
5%m$ IR —FREE -
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27. Amounts Due from Associates 27. BERHBELTRE
The amounts due from associates are in trade nature aged JEWEE N RIRIE E S HEEIREER
within 90 days based on invoice date. A credit period of 30 HASHE 2 BRIG A 90 KA o ZN & (& ) Bt
days to 90 days are granted to associates. The balances BRNRIRTFI0OREQXRZEER - AT
are neither past due nor impaired at the end of the BHEHRTE R RBHATORE -
reporting period.
28. Properties Under Development for Sales 28. HERRDPYME
HK$'000
FEIT
COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1 H 208,218
Additions NE 16,695
Exchange adjustments b 5, B 23
At 31 December 2014 R2014% 12 A31 H 224,936
Exchange adjustments P 5 % (12,977)
At 31 December 2015 M20154F 12 A31 H 211,959
The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for AEBEBRRZIMWZ —FAFEY
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 17. All the ¥ o T ZFFIRERMEE17 - FIBER
properties under development for sales are not expected ERRTYEERY TS EREHRE
to be realised within twelve months after the end of the 12 ARNER - FEERPMEZLERE
reporting period. The carrying amount of properties under BRIARHEZ T -
development for sales is situated on land in the PRC.
29. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and 29. BEMHETER  HITHGERAS

Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans, and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits included an amount of approximately
HK$1,108,142,000 (2014: HK$3,520,169,000) carried at
fixed interest rates which ranged from 0.30% to 4.80%
(2014: 0.35% to 4.73%) per annum and will be released
upon settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. As
at 31 December 2014, the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$2,273,000 carried at floating interest
rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.25% per annum and
mﬂ“"“ﬂ _ ,;é;ubon settlement of the relevant bank

f V)
&

¥

ZAREEEATRTEALNERER
RITMECERZIHER - ZEEARD
EIHERRBRITERZER D
HARBHEE BDHEBRITIGERFE
¥E & % #91,108,142,000/% jT(2014 :
3,520,169,0007% 7T ) #Z & & F 7 &=
F0.30% & 4.80% (2014 : 0.35% &
4.73%)FH B WK R BARITERS
BEMREE- N2014E12H318 4
2,273,000 7T 2 B IR R 177 3K IL %
FEFMENF0.01% E0.25% 18 I
1A BRI TE B B R -
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29.

30.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash (Continued)

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 3.80% (2014: 0.01% to 3.88%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2015, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$2,155,552,000 (2014: HK$4,946,577,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$7,348,000 (2014: HK$11,846,000) denominated in
USD/HK$ and approximately HK$352,390,000 (2014:
HK$2,682,202,000) denominated in RMB, which are not
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

In December 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group and a bank entered into an offsetting arrangement
for certain amount of pledged bank deposits and bank
borrowings. The disclosures are set out in note 44. There
was no such offsetting arrangement as at 31 December
2015.

Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

29.

30.

BERRTER BTRBRRAS

(%)

R 17T & 8 B N F0.01%£E3.80%
(2014 : 0.01% % 3.88% ) 2 T 5 & H| K
58 -

M2015F12 A31H » BEFRITER
RaRT#E R IR € #92,155,5652,000 7% 7T
(2014 : 4,946,577,0007 7T ) A A R #
EE - WA ERERAEMEE- &
SEZEEBRITTARRIBITESRT -
#)7,348,0007%8 7£(2014 : 11,846,00075
TL)AZETT B ITEE ¢ #352,390,000
BIT(2014 1 2,682,202,000 7% 7T) AILAA
RETEE  Ex/ BTk AR IER
FEEER e -

R2014F 128 AEE—H2ENE
AR R —BERITRESCEN DA R
FERRIRITEREI LK LZH: - FBE
M FE44 7 B FE - K20159F 12 A 31
B I T R 8 2 Bk o

FE 11 52 55 R o ¢ P £+ SR 48

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Trade creditors B E S ERK 261,981 1,209,525
Bills payable FERT =& 379,835 169,169
641,816 1,378,694

The aged analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as
follows presented based on invoice date:

N E SRR RENREZRK DR
BHEAH25IMT

0 to 30 days 0&E 30Kk

31 to 60 days 31 260X

61 to 90 days 61 290X
91 180K

91 to 180 days

BB 180K

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
430,564 815,956
72,582 107,080
884 143,285
136,584 312,174
1,202 SN

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5

641,816

“E-RFFHR |18]
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31.

32.

Amounts Due to an Associate and a Joint Venture 31. B —FHHEATIRSELERE

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable SERAERE  RERBREREE -

on demand.
Borrowings 32. f&®
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
Bank trust receipts loans RITIE IR IE K 844,442 1,438,194
Other loans (pledged with RMB HEMER(AAREIRITFR
bank deposits) TEHEF) 1,370,614 3,947,573
Other loans (pledged with HK$/USD HAb &R (BT ET
bank deposits or other assets) RITIF A M B EEHER) 41,631 206,680
Other loans H g% 2,691,881 1,835,974
4,948,568 7,423,421
Repayable within one year shown under REIEEHE NFTREA
current liabilities R—FAEE
Borrowings secured by pledged BRI RITIFHRIERIE R
bank deposits 1,370,614 4,101,395
Borrowings secured by other assets Hih & EERMER 11,227 11,227
Borrowings unsecured EREROER 1,532,972 2,126,914
2,914,813 6,239,536
Repayable over one year shown under  FERENE EIE R ER
non-current liabilities —EREE
Borrowing secured — more than one EERAER - BRA—F
year, but not exceeding two years BARZRME 11,227 11,226
Borrowing unsecured — more than EREROER - BBE—F
one year, but not exceeding two BRZRE
years 1,032,795 387,594
Borrowings secured — more than two EERMOER - BBRF
years, but not exceeding five years BAZHRRF 19,177 30,405
Borrowings unsecured — more than EERONER - BRBMSE
two years, but not exceeding five BARZRASE
years 970,556 754,660
2,033,755 1,183,885
; L . e 4,948,568 743321
[T S o =
=7 = = =y
- 7 al -
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32. Borrowings (Continued) 32. B®m(E)

Bank borrowings include approximately HK$859,109,000
(2014: HK$2,955,965,000) fixed-rate. They carry average
interest at 2.61% (2014: 1.84%) per annum. The remaining
bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1 month LIBOR plus certain basis points, HIBOR
plus certain basis points, EURIBOR plus certain basis
points per annum ranging from 0.37% to 3.23% (2014:
0.90% to 3.62%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, other loans of approximately
HK$41,631,000 (2014: HK$52,858,000) are secured by
two oil vessels owned by the Group with carrying value of
approximately HK$90,244,000 (2014: HK$94,110,000) and
guaranteed by the Company. Included in total borrowings
of the Group, approximately HK$4,628,597,000 (31
December 2014: HK$3,719,020,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

As at 31 December 2015
As at 31 December 2014

M2015%F12 A31 H
MB2014%12 A 31 H

iR 17 & ;X A #859,109,0007F JT
(2014 : 2,955,965,00078 7T ) & E &
FHEREE2.61% (2014 : 1.84%) °
BRTIRITERBZEER  FRRAE—
BAGBBERITRERENE TER &
B IRITRIE IR B INFS T E 2 R BUMRTT
BEFREMNETEZ  NF037%E
3.23% (2014 : 0.90% Z 3.62%) °

R2015F12 A31H - £ fh & & &
41,631,000 £ (2014 : 52,858,000 7
7T ) LA AN 55 B 5 A BR {8 49 90,244,000
7 7£(2014 : 94,110,000 7T ) B W f2
M ERIF L A ARAEER - A&
B ~ & 3% 48 % #94,628,597,0007% 7T
(2014412 A31 B : 3,719,020,000
TL)BERRARE,SHEMBRGER -

AEEZEFRAFABEEERNER
BZEEEE  #IWT

USD/HK$ EURO
BT #ETT Ex7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FAET
1,322,600 186,887
856,150 —

56 O\
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33. Share Capital

33. &

Number of
shares Amount
;218 A= &8
HK$’000
FEIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREEO.1 BTz LBk
(2014: HK$0.1 each) (2014 : R0 HB7T)
Authorised share capital: TEEMRA ¢
At 1 January 2014, 31 December R20144F1 818 - 20144
2014 and 2015 K 2015412 A31H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BBEITERBERAE
At 1 January 2014 R20144F1 A1H 1,4883,398,216 148,340
Repurchase of shares (Note) B 15 B 8& (K77 (3,000,000) (300)
At 31 December 2014 and 31 R2014F 12 A31 B &
December 2015 2015412 A 31 H 1,480,398,216 148,040

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as

follows:

Month of
repurchase

s A 13

September 2014 20149 A

Hiit B ZE2014F12 A31H IEFER -

77 T4 4B 32 BB 120 KL AR 5
mF -

15

Aggregate
consideration
paid (excluding

No. of transaction
ordinary share cost)
of HK$0.1 2R
0.1#8TZ Price per share (FEEXS
BEReA BhkES B&)
highest lowest
BS RIE
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT FET
3,000,000 3.85 3.85 11,550

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

R ERRE IR RS o
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34. Share-based Payment Transactions 34. LB EERZIEZHES

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”). The Option Scheme was expired on 17 June
2013. Pursuant to the terms of the Option Scheme, the
options granted prior to the expiration of the Option
Scheme are continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Option Scheme was to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company, may at
their discretion grant options to participants to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme. The subscription price be a price
determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer for grant of options, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for grant of
options; and (iiij the nominal value of a share. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when aggregated
with shares issued and issuable (including exercised and
outstanding options and the options cancelled) under any
option granted to the same participant under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

oA MR

BIEAR D RN2003FE6 A18H BT
BREFIAEBAZEBARAZE &
NAEN—EE R R & ([ AR T
2l]) - EBRREEIEN2013F6 817
HEm - BIREIRE B 2 &K - B
RRiER S E MR L 2 BRI SEES
B WA AR R B AR AT BT -

BRESCENAMES - B8 - H#
REAKEFE2EBERMMEIKER -
RIBBLEE > ARREFTEANIE
A 22 B2 25 4% 1 AT AR VR P B ot 81 IR AR
BARBIRMD ZBEE - RBERAHE
EEE  ENFER(IRER TEERE
ZEBWARRZH)  BNEBIME
ARERMBIWHE () BERELER
TREEZENAERXSA @ ROED
RFFBAMERABZFHRTE S R
(M EEAESERE) - REB
P A Rt B B AN S [ 4 fr] EL 4t 8 A i T &
ROz 2B REETERA TEITL
Bhas EATHBBERTERNZ
10% °

B EARIRRE A AT & ST B A B A
ArEET2EEZEMEREERED
TTEERITEZBRERD THZBR
B)P R 2BBITRATETZRNAK
BaftatER - REM12EAREE2
HERR BREMMS R &RE B #
BTSEBTREHTRMN 1% °
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34. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option
for a certain period before exercising the option save as
determined by the board of directors of the Company and
provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the option
but in any event the option period should not go beyond 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the Company.

34.

LIRS BRZZIHRR (&)
EoREMEETR(E)

BRARBEZTERERNEHER THER
BZEZFTREIN  LEREARAZR
RITEBRERCHBEBRE RS
& o

TEMARNAAEE R R EL R
R 2 EAB - R EAERT -
BRESETEBERRLET 2 AR
SH10%F 1% -

AR AW AR - AR H A
HERT 28 KA AN A R AR A iR B FHUIB
1.0087T °




Annual Report 2015 =—Z—HFEFIR | 187

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR R LRl R

For the year ended 31 December 2015
EE2015F 12 531 HILFZE

34. LR BERCZHRZS(E)
AR iEET B
TREBNEZE2015F %2014 F 12 A

BIBIMEAFERE (BRER)HAALR
RERBEREFER D ZBRERE

34. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)
Option Scheme
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s

share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such

holdings during the years ended 31 December 2015 and

2014:

Vesting period

Option type

Date of grant

REREER BEY

R AR R EBFE

Number of
share options
outstanding at
1 January
2014 and

31 December
2014
R20145
1B1AR
20145
12A31H
RETEZ
RREnE

Exercise
price

Expired during

Exercisable period the year

Number of
share options
outstanding at
31 December
2015

R2015%
12A31A
AR
MEEBE

2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537 (14,910,537) -
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
2006F5R15H 2006%5A16HE 200668 17HE
20066 A 168 2015%12 A31H
2006B 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 6,626,905 (6,626,905) -
31 December 2015
20066 A 16 H 2006F6R17HZE
2015% 12 A31R
21,537,442 (21,537,442) -
Details of the share options held by the directors included EFERMEBESHAECEREFBR
in the above table are as follows: T

Outstanding at

1 January 2014 and

31 December 2014
#2014%1B1HER
201412 A 31 HRARITE

Outstanding at
31 December 2015

Expired during the year

FREAM ®2015%F 12 A 31 HRAKITE

11,597,084 (11,597,084)

RN B I 4 BR AR AT (] 5 B9 B R A o
- #H Z=2014% 2015412 A31H
LE4F 30 £ B A AT B ARE - 382014
._%12)5131 A mﬂem%ﬁ% A5
. 21,587,4420% - G R A
ﬂ31 EIE% H><$E|’J1.45%

The Company has not adopted any new option scheme.
Thus, there was no share option granted for the year ended
3 eceerr 2015 and 2014. The number of share optlons
! ""HJ er 2014 amo
= A |y
ber)

rhﬁu
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35. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior year:

35.

BIER B

FARBAEZHREE  AEBEHER
BARLEHBABEE) RBBZE 0
T

Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation assets
MERFHE EtELEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T8 FBT FET
At 1 January 2014 2014561 A 1H 58,618 (1,358) 85,413 142,678
Arising on acquisition WEEMBAREE
of subsidiaries — (6,000) — (6,000
(Credit) charge to profit/loss RE MBS (5 ) AR
for the year (6,041) 46 (6,723) (12,718)
Exchange adjustments ERTIEEE (54) = (66) (120)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31H 52,523 (7,312) 78,624 123,835
(Credit) charge to profit/loss RERBE (1R ) AR
for the year (1,521) 4,115 (6,451) (3,857)
Exchange adjustments B 5 55 % 2,911) — (4,252) (7,163)
At 31 December 2015 P2015%12 431 A 48,091 (8,197) 67,921 112,815

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

AT RIEMBE2RA G 2 BLER G A 8E
DT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET

Deferred tax assets BT EE 3,197 7,312
Deferred tax liabilities BB EE (116,012) (131,147)
(112,815) (123,835)
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35. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 35. RERB (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$236,021,000
(2014: HK$327,897,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$12,788,000 (2014: HK$29,248,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$223,233,000
(2014: HK$298,649,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$3,790,000 (2014: HK$6,014,000) will be
expired before year 2018 (2014: year 2017). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$65,868,000 (2014: HK$79,436,000) in respect of
mainly accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$637,550,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$558,499,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

56 O\

HEWOCEMN 5

REFRE R A EE AT K
AREBEFZABDARBEEEO B
236,021,000 7T (2014 : 327,897,000
B g ) B Bt 412,788,000/ T
(2014 : 29,248,000% Jt ) HE 32 IE T i
BEE - AR B &2 5% RIREIATE
B BT 4 BE B8R T A5 42 49 2283,233,000
7 J5(2014 : 298,649,000/ 7T ) &
IR T R & E o £98,790,0007% JT
(2014 : 6,014,000/8 7T ) 2 A HER T A
BB #E 7 2018 £ (2014 : 2017 5 ) Al Hf
o HAtb B8 Bl R PR HA A o

REFRHR TERBEMEE I
Ef AEEBUHNHERZEQ
65,868,000 % 7T (2014 : 79,436,000 &
TL) °c BRAAR A A AR MR E K=
BADAIKSH B 1R IR 2 FERR TR Rl 2 7T 88
AKX AL EBEFAI MG E =8
ERELERIGEE °

BIEFRRMERE - B20084F1H1H
#2 o B BB A B AT 2 % A M 2 R
2R BEBMTENR o AEBIWESLIE
ATAFBKMBARZ R AN 2 ERE
%8637,550,0007%% JT(20144F 12 A 31
H : 558,499,000 L) N iR & M 53Rk 3%
NEHRIBEER S E - W BERAEE
AEH R R =R 2R A - AR
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries 36. WREMIELATE

NewOcean Oil Products Company Limited and NewOcean
Petroleum Company Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Ego Time (Ego Time and its subsidiaries together are
referred as “Ego Time Group”). On 19 December 2014,
Maxx Investments Limited (“Maxx Investments”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in BVI
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“the Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which an independent
third party agreed to sell, and Maxx Investments agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest in Success Pillar Limited
(“Success Pillar”), a company incorporated in BVI. The
principal business of Success Pillar is the holding of 51%
equity interest in the Ego Time Group, with the remaining
49% being held by the Group through Maxx Investments.
The acquisition was completed on 29 December 2014.

After completion the Acquisition, Ego Time Group was
changed from associates to wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. The Directors considered that the Acquisition
will bring about a further synergy effect in merging the two
oil products customer networks developed by the Group
and Ego Time Group in the past. The Acquisition also
allows the Group to gain full control of the operation of Ego
Time Group, to unit its business targets with that of the
Group, and to strengthen the operational chain for the oil
products business resulting in higher profitability and the
overall shareholder value of the Group. The consideration
for the Acquisition was HKD250,000,000.

BB ERARRIIEAABRA
A]A Ego Time(Ego Time REHKI B A
Al &% [Ego Time&EE )2 EHH
Z M B A A H2014F12 5198 -
KRR 2EBRETREBRELZENK T
Z Maxx Investments Limited ([ Maxx
Investments|) B — & 7 55 = 5 & 5] —
PEEMR(EEHZE] - Bt - B
F=HREELE - M Maxx Investments
AERBARRBELZSMKIZ Success
Pillar Limited ([Success Pillar]) 82 &
% 15 # %5 ° Success Pillarf) * E # 7%
RFEFEgo Time R E51% s - HEfR
49% /B 7N £2 [E 15 i Maxx Investments
B ZEKER2014F12 8298 %
B o

WEESER & ' Ego Time S B R & A
REAREEy 2EHAWNBAR - &
ERAE - WEEE B RE—THRR
fE - BEAREE N Ego Time 2 BiBAERE
ZMERMEFAEE O - WEESEAE
BREAEBEISEgo Time £EZ2H
EIETIRE  UBREE T CEBKEE
W ANE M ET 2 &R - BAART
RE BN REERREE - 28
I B8 2 X8 & 250,000,000 7 7T ©
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Acquisition of Ego Time Group had the following effect

36. WMMELT (&)

TE-RFFR

Wi Ego Time SR B AR EB N EE &

on the Group’s assets and liabilities: BEZFENT
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: FrSEEFME
Non-current assets FETEEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HeEREE 609
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 102,722
Other assets HEMEE 17
Deferred tax assets BB ERE 6,000
109,348
Current assets TEEE
Inventories 5 67,161
Trade debtors (Note i) FEWE SR (Hati) 825,969
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HEMERERR « e KIEMKIE 52,827
Bank balances and cash WITHBRRIRS 24,214
Amounts due from the Group FEUARE B 2 5hIE 5,517
975,748
Current liabilities BB &
Trade creditors BB SRR 212,844
Other creditors and accrued charges EMEMERERRERTER 8,652
Amounts due to the Group B FARSE 2 FIA 745,426
966,922
Net assets at Acquisition Date WHERFEE 118,174
Goodwill on Acquisition (Note i) W bE 2 g (KTt i) 372,022
Fair value of previously held 49% equity interest in BERB Ego Time £ 49% =
Ego Time Group (Note iii) ZRFE (B i) (240,196)
250,000
Satisfied by: ATHNFHAZA
Cash consideration HeNRE 250,000
Consideration payable (Note iv) ERREHZTiv) (100,000)
Cash consideration paid in year 2014 R2014FENZHERE 150,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ELSHReRESERER (24,214)

d cash equivalents in respect
jo Time Grouj '

-

W Ego Time £ ZH & &

T s
kA

HEWOCEMN 5
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note,

(i)

(ii

(i)

(iv)

Imp

The

S

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
debtors) with a fair value of approximately HK$825,969,000
at the date of acquisition had gross contractual amounts
of approximately HK$884,574,000. The best estimate at
Acquisition Date of the contractual cash flows not expected
to be collected amount to approximately HK$58,605,000.

None of the goodwill was expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.

The gain on deemed disposal of previously held 49% equity
interest in Ego Time Group of approximately HK$21,860,000
was measured as the excess of the fair value of the
49% equity interest in Ego Time Group of approximately
HK$240,196,000 at 29 December 2014 over the carrying
amount of 49% equity interest previously held in Ego Time
Group of approximately HK$218,336,000 at 29 December
2014 in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business
Combination.

The total consideration of HK$250,000,000 was paid by
two instalments and the first payment of HK$150,000,000
was settled on 24 December 2014. The second payment of
HK$100,000,000 was settled on 5 January 2015 and the
amount was recorded as other creditor in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014.

The acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$100,000 incurred in the year ended 31 December 2014
were recognised directly as an administrative expense in that
year.

act of acquisition on the results of the Group

goodwill arose on the acquisition was attributable

to the benefits of expected synergies of two oil products

cust

omer networks developed by the Group and Ego Time

Group, revenue growth and future market development of

Ego

Time Group etc. These benefits were not recognised

separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

36. WMMELT (&)

HiaE -

(0

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

R BB Z B (EZ AR
B 5 8RR 2 #1825,969,000 7 7T 7 A
FEZBEZY S T L 5H884,574,000
Bore RIKE B B T WE
2R B e REZRERTAD
58,605,000 78 7T °

WA E A BIEMBR IR AR o

WRELE LT GEgo Timesk @
49% E 25 B Y 25 #921,860,00078 7T
EIREE B B ®EEREIREEE
I ¥E 61572 - %= BEgo
Time &£ B R 201412 A29 A A F &
HE 25 Z 49% #9240,196,0007% 7T *
E LA FT# B Ego Time & B 49% ##
&= R2014F 12 298 2 EREEX
218,336,000 /8 LTS °

4 X {8250,000,000 Tt 2 MW H X
- % — H1#9 150,000,000 7T B 1
2014F 12248 X - £ ZH#H K
100,000,000 7T E R 201541 A5
At %BESRER2014F 12 A 31
AZGRAMBEMRABERP LA M
JERTFRIB o

REIL2014F12 A1 B IEFERE
A %9100,000 7 JT 2 Yk B 48 B8 Ak A
REFEANEEEZERRATTHRIH -

BRHERERBIEE

WEMELAZHENRBARASER
Ego Time B M &) m =P B A 56

W

AR K Ego Time SRR

MMSERE - BRZFNmREEED
R B B BB E IR - BULH
TEREEF D HIHER
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36. WMMELT (&)

36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no
significant contribution in revenue and profit by Ego
Time Group to the Group because the Acquisition was
completed by end of the year 2014. Had these business
combinations been effected at 1 January 2014, the
revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$20,343,972,000 and the profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$844,030,000. Before the
completion of the Acquisition, Ego Time Group made an
impairment losses of approximately HK$58,605,000 for
pending trade receivables related to bunkering contracts
made with O.W. Bunker China Limited (“OW Bunker
China”) which commenced winding up proceed on 21
November 2014. The directors consider the allowance for
doubtful debt was one-off impairment loss which would not
materially affect the value of Ego Time Group as a whole.
The details of the impairment loss related to OW Bunker
China were disclosed in the announcement issued by the
Company on 19 December 2014. The directors considered
these ‘proforma’ number to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.

37. Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

756

HEWOCEMN 5

37.

BMEERERBEZE(E)

HE2014F12A31BIEEE: AR
W s EIH 2014 F REAK - Ego Time
EETAAEAEBRMEREAHKAR
FEER - MEZZEXEBKE HR2014
F1RAIBER XEEMNKADN A
20,348,972,0008 7T + RERN &N A
844,080,000 7% 7 U BE = THSE A AT
Ego Time &£ EEEIEHEO.W. Bunker
China Limited ([OW Bunker Chinal)
EEMBENZEKRESERMA
#4758,605,0007 JT B & 1B & 18 - OW
Bunker China 72014411 A21 B #
1% - EERAREBRELS IXNEN
B - WA &% Ego Time £ EMNEBETF
BEATZE - HE OW Bunker China i
BEEECHFBENRAAF2014F12 A
19BFIENAETIERE - EFRAZRT
HEHTREREUHEBUNFERER
KERIUGE - T ABRPMIRERS
EBUAELLE -

BARR

MR20154F k2014412 A31H @ K&
B ESE RHKAEE -
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38. Lease Commitments 38. HE®iE
The Group as lessee XEEESEHEAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REFRIR  AEBRBETAIHELE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under MWAE - aM - HELRRER A
non-cancellable operating leases for office, oil vessels, HNELZRzBEELHESIE - BIEH
leasehold land and LPG gas stations which fall due as (1IN
follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEiT FETL
Within one year —FR 27,870 39,560
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFN(BEEREMSE) 68,199 47,895
Over five years b oAk 65,573 22,928
161,642 110,383
As at 31 December 2015, rentals are fixed for an average M2015F12 A31 B » L EFHF15
of 7 years (2014: 6 years). B7E(2014:6F) °
The Group as lessor EEEESHBAAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIBEHR - XEEERUTRIERE
contracted for the following future minimum lease payments EzBE&LHESZHETL :

for the LPG warehouses.

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Within one year —F RN 237 —
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFRN(BEEERMF) 20 =
257 —
From 29 December 2014 onward, the associate became a H2014F 12 B29 HIE ' Bt A RIE /K
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. BASENEZEWB AR -

oSl

. | |




Annual Report 2015 =—Z—AFFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre g R M ot

For the year ended 31 December 2015

EZ2015F 1231 HIEFE

38. Lease Commitments (Continued) 38. HE&E &)
The Group as lessor (Continued) FEEEBHBEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RB|EBR - AEBERUATHEAE
contracted with an associate and independent third party TSN KRB E = R4

for the following future subcontracting payments:

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Within one year —FR 3,085 14,884
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFRN(BEEREMRE) 719 53,695
Over five years BilmAF - 48,739
3,804 117,318
The subcontracting arrangement with an associate BAHEE N R 2 AR BRHEE R 2015410
was terminated on 31 October 2015, the details of the A31B&IE - KRIEFFIBEHRHFE21(a) ©
termination are set out in note 21(a).
39. Other Commitments 39. Hftiakikz
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but  J#&IATNIEBKEET 4
not provided in the consolidated BARNERE S M E
financial statements in respect of: ZEARRAE
Purchase of property, plant and A « 2R RRE
equipment 354,802 431,387

756 © N

HEWOCEMN 5
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40. Retirement Benefits Plans

41.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make
a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant
income with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,250
per person from January 2014 to May 2014 and HK$1,500
per person from June 2014 onward.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Related Party Transactions

Other than the related party transactions as set out in
notes 27 and 31, saved as disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following transactions with related parties during the
year:

2015 2014

40.

41.

BAREFIER
FEESENTEZEBAERERR

Rt B E - ZFTEcEER
AEBEESRIFEE  BETTAULES
RS - AEERRESRERBZEM
BEEBRIEEEBBKAZ5%EH
- BH20145F1 A E2014F58 &
B2014F6 A  FARKERDR A
HFA1,25087T K% 1,500 87T °

AEERTERBARZEEZ2MNTH
BFEE 2 RKEHNGE S - ZFHBA
AIREBRAEARBHAFTEIATERAZ
B Lo B R o AN SR B SR R AR A A 8
ZHE—BERERIEEHRR -

MEALXS

B2 R31FTEHZBEBEA LR H R
FRAMBRREMI AR EEI » K
EBMANFANEBEATETIIRS

Sales to a joint venture

Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo
(Note 1)

Sales to associates

Purchase from an associate

Rental income received from associates
(i) Oil vessels
(i) Office premises

Rental income for warehouse received
from Lianxin Energy (Note 2)

Subcontracting fee received from an
associate

Information and technical fees received
from Lianxin Energy (Note 2)

Bunkering services charge paid to an

——

HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
A—AEREEE 2,471 3,995
MG N2 HeREZ
(Biat 1) 4,560 4,919
MBS R RIHE 1,256,295 5,481,918
m—HEE A RIEBA 27,409 =
B QAL Z S A
(i) JFR A - 12,152
(ENELIES - 1,200
BT BE R IR B B 2
WA (KE2) 2,579 3,952
M —REEE A RRELZ
k= 10,448 12,643
[ B B IR URER 2 & =1L %
K (et 2) 3,761 3,793
m—REE AR TN
B EmaRGE - il st

P,
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41.

Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes:

1. Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the Group and also the
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu Hung
is the executive director of the Company.

2. The operation of Lianxin Energy is subcontracted to Sinopec
NewOcean. The details of the subcontracting agreement are
set out in note 21(a). The subcontracting arrangement was
terminated on 31 October 2015.

On 18 December 2013, Sound Management entered into
an office tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky Limited (“Ever
Lucky”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly
owned by Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office premises
owned by Ever Lucky located on 23rd Floor, The Sun’s
Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period of one
year commencing on 1 January 2014. On 30 December
2014, Sound Management and Ever Lucky entered into
another office tenancy agreement to extend the rental
period for another one year to 31 December 2015 with the
same monthly rental fee of HK$380,000. The details of the
transaction were set out in the announcement issued by
the Company dated on 30 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above and notes 27 and 31, there were
no other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the reporting period. The rental expenses paid to Shum
Ho, Neo are subjected to reporting and announcement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule, the remaining
transactions disclosed in this note and note 31 are
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempted from reporting,
announcement, and shareholders approval requirements
under Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel
The directors of the Company consider that the directors

are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments
have been disclosed in note 12.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard

> the performal
. 2 i . R .
: 756 > N
/Vfllﬂ[[lli

®

41.

REBEALRS(E)
HiaE -

1. AREBZEEZETNZDERE/H
ZF c BLWRARBZHITES -

2. B¥eRZEEEBARALTIEE
B ERBTHEZFIBERE21(a)
ZABLTHE RN2015F10 A31 B &
_U: °

MR2013F12 A 18 H @ FBEHRIEAE
RAR([FEER])ESEE2EHREW
REBKIZ 2 ERERAR([ER])E
sT— M A=A - X AT 380,000
TTHEBERUNEBETEITITE200
SREIREEF OB P AETYE
FHAR2014E1 A1 BEAH —F - B
201412 A30H @ FMEEEKEREER
SRR AZRHEL  UHEEAESE
380,000 B T AZMHAE —FE2015
F12A81H - ZBER P ZHIBEHT
RARRQRIN2014F12 B30 B T3 2 A

HA e

BUA E KM sE27 31T EE N -
NEBEATWEEMBEARS + Rk
EHRARENREEALEH - G T
ZHEZHE S B TR E ETAR RIS 14A
ZE2HEFRAE - RIEETRANE 14A
T RKERMEFARE RS AR
NElZAERS  WERGREST ETHE
BIIE N 2R - AENBRRMERT -

FREEARZEM
ARFREERRESR/AKTEZEEE
BAE  HMEE RME 12 AKE -

EERETRTRABZHMAFMES
SRBEAXRRRMZBEEE °
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ZEBWBARGEBOT:

Principal activities

FERE

Sales and distribution of LPG, oil and

electronic products
HERDERILR  ARRETER

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERAHRILR

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERAHRIR

Sales and distribution of oil products
HERA Hibm

Sales and distribution of LPG and
selling of il products
HERAERIARHENR

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDHRILR

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERAERILE

et FBREABBHRSETLZEE

AEERA - 2BKEH

BRIEAZB0% e - FTBREAZ
T ERAARAFEERFE -
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 42,
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Place of Issuedand  Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid up value of issued/
registration/ Class of share capital/  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company
L/ EBfTRER LTRGERT/
HELR&HE it/ g FEROEN ks /BRES ERESEELA
2015 2014
Balfuyang Macao Commercial Offshore ~ Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100
Limited R LRk 100,000:2F7c
BB FAEREARAA
Fruto International Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100
Offshore Limited 1§ LR 100,000 2197
ESERRMRREEREERAA
Lianxin Energy PRC* Registered capital RMB486,500,000 100 100
i e AMER AR 486,500,00070
NewOQcean Petroleum Company Limited BV Ordinary USD1 100 100
MERRERAR AERRE EER 157
Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents”) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100
(Note) B LER 2B
MERBABRAA(GREREAL ML)
MR (K8 BRAR PRC’ Registered capital USD89,150,000 100 100
hE’ iHiax 89,150,000 7
FAR(PE) ERAF PRC’ Registered capital USD107,670,000 100 100
hE’ iR 107,670,004
Domestic — Invested enterprise & RNEE
* Wholly-owned foreign enterprises 2 2EINE ¥
Note: Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Shum Chun, Lawrence who BEHAA
held the interest in Sound Agents of 50%. The remaining
interest in Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company.
e T

}

5
-
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42,

43.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

The above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial

information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.

Derivative Financial Instruments

42, FLRFZERMWBATIFNS &)

PR TE2MBERAREHARREEE
ﬁo

BB RRNFRLFAEMEEGE
ERAREREHES

LRI EERRTEFEAREESE
HEEZARFINBATF - EERRT
HEMMBEARZEHNEBRILE -

EEZRA AKREXYEEAIFIEHE
@ BYERMEME AR ZHBER
BIEIERRE -

43. FTEMBIR

Derivatives financial

instruments
TEMBEIR
Assets Liabilities
=E &R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2015 2015
Current M ED
Commodities swaps contracts EmiEHE 4 124 16,907
Deliverable forward contracts REREEH 12,254 7,398
Interest rate swaps contracts = EE 4 - 1,480
12,378 25,785
2014 2014
Current M ED
Cross currency interest rate swaps RXEBHEEHE
contracts — 1,479
Interest rate swaps contracts FIEFHE 4 1,222 2421

456
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43. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 43. FTEMBIRE)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTHEMB T A 2 F ZERBMmT

summarised as follows:

Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/interest TRERFERNEH TEHPEH

rate swaps contracts — net settlement — BEHEPH

Notional amount Period Interest rates

£y §of KR FlF

2015

USD7,500,000 and 10 June 2016 to Floating rate ranging from 6 months EURIBOR +
EURO22,171,888 (approximately 12 August 2016 0.32% to 1 month LIBOR + 3.25% per annum
to RMB206,015,977) to fixed rate ranging from 1% to 3.79%

7,500,000 T X% 22,171,888 20166 H10HE FENERZEN T 6168 A BUNRITRIZEFE + 5
(49206,015,977 AR ¥ ) 201648 A12H L0.32% = 1EHARBIRITREREE + FHX

3.25% ZEEFFENT 1% =3.79%

Notional amount Period Exchange rates/interest rates

2ReH KR EE/FIE

2014

USD84,281,563 (approximately to 28 January 2015 to Floating rate ranging from one month LIBOR +
RMB515,718,885) 12 August 2016 0.75% to 3 months LIBOR + 4% per annum to

fixed rate ranging from 1.15% to 3.79%
84,281,5633%7t(#1515,718,885 201541 A28HZE FENFFENTA @B BBERTTRZENRE + FFI=
ARE) 201648 A 12 H 0.75% Z 3l A BUERITRIZEFE + FHE 4%

ZETFEMENT1.15% £3.79%

RMB/USD6.55
6.55 AR# /T
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43. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 43. TTEMBIR(E)

Commodities swaps contracts — net settlement mmEReH — EHBRHE

Notional amount Period Prices

1 R £

2015

i) LPG January 2016 Buy at price ranging from USD350 to USD375
uSD2,190,000 per metric ton
RIER 2016 F 1 A NFEHANE350F TLE 375 F L 2 BB A
2,190,000 % 7T

i) Oil January 2016 Buy at price ranging from USD196 to USD215.5
USD9,240,000 per metric ton
8 5h 20164 1 A NTERAME196 = TR 215.5 K T 2 BIKEA
9,240,000 7T

Deliverable forward contracts — gross settlement THEHSH — EHEEH

Notional amount Period Exchange rates

£y §o4 -] Ex

2015

RMB587,574,631 February 2016 to RMB/USD6.5555 to RMB/USD6.5765

587,574,631 AR August 2016 HK$/RMB1.1934 to HK$/RMB1.2233

2016F 2 A= EURO/RMB7.0490 to EURO/RMB7.0500
20168 A 6.5555 AR¥ /ELE6.5765 AR¥E ETT

1.1934 7T,/ AT 122338 7T /AR
7.0490E T A REEZ 7.0500 BT A R#E

HE6 ¢

HEWOCEMN 5
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instruments

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions
that are covered by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with various banks. These derivative
instruments are not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. Other
than derivatives transactions mentioned above and the
disclosure in note 44, the Group has no other financial
assets and financial liabilities which are offset in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position or are
subject to similar netting arrangements.

Net financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements by counterparty.

Carrying
amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
consolidated

statement of

EE2015F 12 31 HIFFE
43. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 43. FTEMBIR &)
Netting arrangements on derivative financial TEMBIRCPHEBRERH

AREEBEETRITR G TEHERHRR
TETAREzEFEHR(EERER
HERTETAGE WM& D REZITE
RZ - ETETARGEMBHRE
NI EERE  ARBERERARITET
BErathaal A RRNERN - EAHE
BB T - T AEELRE - &
AEERGWEEZE LA TRIT R
Mo ABHEHERERE - B Xtz
ITER SR 44 PRI - AEBW
BHMNAEELGAMBRRNEREHEL
RBPFRGEE LRV BEER
MBAaE -

RRXST 2 BHI T EFEEERY
SBEUBZEMR W BEERTHAR
R o

Carrying

amounts of
financial liabilities
presented in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position  financial position Net amount
RiEM% RiFEME
RAKRPETZ HKRERZNNZ
MEBREERE MBRAREDE B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FETT
As at 31 December 2015 12015612 H31 H
Counterparty A 7 A 8,782 (15,298) (6,516)
Counterparty B R5hB 124 (5,786) (5,662)
Counterparty C RH5HC 3,472 (208) 3,264
Counterparty D R57HD - (4,493) (4,493)
Total @t 12,378 (25,785) (13,407)
As at 31 December 2014 R2014%512 A31H
Counterparty A RBHA 222 (295) 927
Counterparty B X5HB - (2,700) (2,700)

257
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44. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject 44, MEBERMEARZIEHRSE
to Offsetting Agreements

Except for the disclosure in note 43, the disclosures set out PRIGEEA3 2 BB - TRERBEBRER
in the tables below include financial assets that are offset in REBZEFEEVBEAKRRP IR 275
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. BE o
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set AEEBEEREEAR LA THIT 2R
off certain amount of pledged bank deposits and bank Al NEHEE SO EARITERR
borrowings and the Group intends to settle these balances RITER > AEBEWEANFELEE
on a net basis. BZEER -
Financial assets subject to offsetting arrangement MESEZIEHRE
As at 31 December 2014 #2014 128531 H
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the in the
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated
of recognised statement statement of
financial of financial financial
assets position position
RiFEME
HRRERPERD RiGEHE
=Y 4 CRRHE RARDETH
MEREHRN AfRiEH MERERH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Description ik
Pledged bank deposits and B HEIRIRITEZR R
bank borrowings RITER 1,929,698 (1,873,381) 56,317

#456 - N8

HEWOCEMN 5
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45. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 45. MBI RZOFHEHEE
Instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHEEDATFEMAEZETEEAM
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on BEERMBABRZLATFE

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities RIBEHR  BEFTAEB 2B EER
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting FEBaEIIANRFEE - TRHIE
period. The following table gives information about how the BN ETHENSREERYEEEZ
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities A EGFRZMEA 2 SERN &
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and AZE)  URAFEFEZRAFESRE
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy BRI AR A A 258 A SIS 2 0]
into which the fair value measurements are categorised BIREES2B(E—REE=H) -

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived D F—RATEFEEHAREENK
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for EERERMBFRAIRZEBRCE
identical assets or liabilities; KRR )T

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived o F_MATEFENBEESREE
from inputs other than quoted prices included within ZEEBER) SBEETEAE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, )RR ABUEFTSE - MR
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived AFB—FZFREIEBRIN 0 K

from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived o BE=WAFEFETIEBELIFR
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the BABRmMSEIE(EEEREA
asset or liability that are not based on observable BRI CEEXABBEHASE M

market data (unobservable inputs). BRMATEYL
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45. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 45. MBI RAZATFEHEE)
Instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and EE#E&@H'J}ZF{EHEZ:!}%EH
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on BEEERUBERZATFEE)

a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at
Financial assets/ LEE Fairvalue  Valuation
financial liabilities 31 December 2015 31 December 2014 hierarchy techniques and key inputs
HERE/ MBAR 1#20155 128 31H R2014%12831R ATERH  GERRRIEBARE
Equity securities classified as available for  Listed equity securities Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid price in an active market
sale investment in the consolidated in Korea — HK$37,770,000  in Korea — HK$81,958,000
statement of financial position
REASBRRRABAIRLERE,  BELTERES - E&@Lm&m 55 - 24 EEMEZEARE
o5 37,170,000 870 81,958,000/47C
Cross currency interest rate swaps N/A Liabiliies Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
contracts classified as derivative — HK$1,479,000 estimated based on forward interest rates and
financial instruments in the forward exchange rates (from observable yield
consolidated statement of financial curves and exchange rates at the end of the
position reporting period) and contracted interest rates and

forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties

REAUBRRZI BATEREIA,  TER B1E — 147900057 £24 ﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁmé AN RER B ERRGE
RXEBFERRAA X(gREER ERNEEREREXEL)R
ANREREANEET - TRRESERSHZ
RERRHEYR
Interest rate swaps contracts classified Liabilties — HK$1,480,000 Assets HK$1,202,000 and Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
as derivative financial instruments in liabilities HK$2,121,000 estimated based on forward interest rates (from
the consolidated statement of financial observable yield curves at the end of the reporting
position period) and contracted interest rates, discounted
at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties
RERUBRARARATENBIA,  Bf — 14800007 BE — 1,002,000 R £=h EHRENE - ARAERE IRBRMNE (8RS
S 8- 2,121,000%T PR IBZREEREEL) RafRIE G
TRRESER 55 < FERRTIEER
Deliverable forward contracts classified Assets HK$12,254,000 and N/A Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
as derivatives financial instruments in liabilities HK$7,398,000 estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
the consolidated statement of financial observable forward exchange rates at the end
posttion of the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
) risk of various counterparties
RERMBRRZA BRITENEIA,  &E - 12,254 0008 R R £=0 HHRERE o Mﬁ%ﬁi]ﬂiﬂ%ﬁ[f( BHE
REEHAN B -7,398,0004T SR TBRRERER G R nEAR
TERRSER 55 EERR FIEE
Commodities swap contracts classified Assets HK$124,000 N/A Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
as derivatives financial instruments in and liabilities HK$16,907,000 estimated based on forward commodities price
the consolidated statement of financial (from observable forward commodities price at the
position end of the reporting period) and contracted price,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credi risk of
various counterparties
REAUBRARIBETERNBIA,  AE - 12400087LR AR 28 HRRERE - ANRERENRERBAERER(A

ki §{E - 16,007, 0007 HERR IBZEAERERSL) RANER
fzt BERREER A  EERR L MEHR

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in both years. MENE—RRE R FMEEE o

hat_the_carrying - AP REBEERBRGE
¢ Py “r‘ﬁg%ﬁ@&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 46. FLFZHMBRAE
Information about the statement of the financial positon RBEBHREEARR ZHBMRARK Z
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRnT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Assets BE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG P /S 3,735,118 4,926,642
Other debtors, deposits and HEMERERER - Ze &k
prepayment B A 23,030 9,393
Deposits paid BEffEe 179,716 =
Bank balances and cash IRTEBRNIR e 161,992 13,987
4,099,856 4,950,022
Liabilities af&
Other creditors and accrued charges HEMEMNERERRERTEA 4,824 5,752
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 4,493 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfT I B A R) 2 778 940,210 2,264,465
Amount due to a joint venture B —REEDEZHIER 479 509
Borrowings & 1,322,600 856,150
2,272,606 3,126,876
Net assets SRR E 1,827,250 1,823,146
Equity - Ei
Share capital A&z 148,040 148,040
Reserves Gz 1,679,210 1,675,106

Total &5 1,827,250 1,823,146
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46. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 46. ELFZHMBRRAERZ)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: NN k)

Share  Contribution
Share Share  Exchange options surplus Retained

capital premium reserve reserve accounts profits

k* RiR EfkS WREGE BARRR REAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT A7 AT AT

At 1 January 2014 R2014%E1A1H 148,340 1,450,967 42,025 3,743 1,667 101,948 1,748,690
Profit for the year EREH = - - - - 170,247 170,247
Exchange difference arising on RAEBIIRERES

translation to presentation BiZEE

currency - - 313 - - - 318

Total comprehensive income for ~ ERZEUNEE

the year - - 313 - - 170,247 170,560
Divdend paid Ghis = - - - - 84550 (84554)
Repurchase of ordinary shares REELERD (300) (11,250) - - - - (11,550)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31R 148,040 1,439,717 42,338 3,743 1,667 187,641 1,823,146
Profit for the year ERgH] - - - - - 202,622 202,622
Exchange difference arising on RAERGIRESES

translation to presentation EREE

currency - - (100,812) - - - (100,812)

Total comprehensive (expense) FREA (K hE

income for the year B8 - - (100,812) - - 202,622 101,810
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - - (97,706) (97,706)
Transfer to retained profits upon £ RERIHEERE

expiration of share options RERH - - - (3,743) - 3,743 =
At 31 December 2015 R201512A31R 148,040 1,439,717 (68,474) - 1,667 296,300 1,827,250

g N
56 ¢\
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Results

For the year ended 31 December

H#E12B31 HLEERE
2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue A 10,116,643 13462296 14,433,446 19,633,037 = 15,514,990
Profit before taxation BR% Al A 332,944 832,966 812,225 922,218 795,755
Taxation charge BIBSH (29,915) (20,425) (29,378) (21,312) (36,783)
Profit for the year FREF 303,029 812,541 782,847 900,906 758,972
Attributable to: JEf :
Owners of the Company V/NCIESZDN 306,159 810,934 783,308 900,270 756,643
Non-controlling interests JEE A (3,130) 1,607 (461) 636 2,329
303,029 812,541 782,847 900,906 758,972
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (in HK dollars) HAR(BTT) 0.23 0.62 0.55 0.61 0.51
Diluted (in HK dollars) #E(BT) 0.23 0.61 0.54 0.60 0.51
Assets and Liabilities BERAR

At 31 December

®12831R

2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEL FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 10,622,135 12,353,147 13291766 14,246,116 = 11,404,965
Total liabilities BEE (8,774,600)  (9,768,171)  (9,174,969)  (9,340,332) = (6,016,349
1,847,535 2,584,976 4,116,797 4,905,784 5,388,616

Equity attributable to owners of AR 2 A AEE

the Company g% 1,823,754 2,568,404 4,095,536 4,874,600 5,350,423
Non-controlling interests JEE S 23,781 16,572 21,261 31,184 38,193

84,976

4,116,797

5,388,616

N

Fii
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